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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March
for the last five years.
TIRELTEBREEERAR ([ARAF]) REWBLAR (5l [AEE]) RBERFARE=A=1T—HIFEZLE
E Rl XENHBHMBEMEE -

Financial Information (HK$ million)

Total assets BEE 15,064 14,520 15,329 13,926 12,796
Total liabilities BERE 6,561 6,282 6,930 6,849 6,585
Total equity mrEs 8,503 8,238 8,399 7077 6,211
Non-controlling interests TR 534 488 510 463 390
Shareholders’ funds REESR 7969 7750 7889 6,614 5,821
Share capital fL&N
— in number (million) —#8 (B&8R) 302 302 300 293 281
- in value (HK$1.25 per share) — BB (BRE™®1.257T) 377 377 375 366 352
Revenue WA 4,759 5,638 5,013 4,113 4,189
Profit attributable to shareholders AARIRE
of the Company FE(EEN 540 315 1,637 470 1,012
Per Share Basis (HK$) BRITE (B%)
Earnings - basic BRI — ER 1.79 1.05 5.21 1.65 3.64
Dividends R E 0.60 0.70 1.20 0.85 0.85
Net assets value EEFE
- excluding non-controlling interests  — NEIEIEE R IER 26.4 25.7 26.3 22.6 20.7

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —R"F
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEET BEEETT
Segment Revenue* oL NG

m Construction and engineering R N e T2 4,759 4,658
= Property investment MEKRE 144 168
m Property development and operations )3 E K& &2 E 589 1,045
m Senior housing TERE 525 528
m Car dealership TERIE 1,317 1,454
m Others Hib 555 1,476
Total bl 7,889 9,329

Segment Profit/(Loss)* DERF (BB
m Construction and engineering SR N A, T A2 344 290
m Property investment MERE 321 163
m Property development and operations ¥ 3E K2 1&E 88 204
m Senior housing ZERE 29 36
m Car dealership HERIE (2) (6)
m Others Hh 58 (124)
Total g 838 563

#

Included share of revenue/results of associates and joint ventures

BREEBERARASEEEZRAEE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

TEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Co-Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr KO Chan Gock, William
Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph
Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
Professor POON Chung Kwong
Mr Irons SZE

SECRETARY
Mr MUI Chin Leung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC

Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS

Appleby
Robertsons

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2318 1818

Facsimile: (852) 2757 5138
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 25

WEBSITE

http://www.chevalier.com

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of Results
Interim Results

Final Results

25 November 2016
26 June 2017

Book Close Dates
Interim Dividend
Annual General Meeting
Final Dividend

14 to 16 December 2016
25 to 30 August 2017
6 to 8 September 2017

Annual General Meeting 30 August 2017

Payment of Dividends
Interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share
Final dividend of
HK$0.40 per share

21 December 2016

15 September 2017
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LETTERTO SHAREHOLDERS
B R Z A

Dear Shareholders,

In 2016/17 the Government of the HKSAR auctioned and sold a total of
290,000 square metres of residential land. In his 2017 Policy Address,
the Chief Executive reinforced the Government’s policy and approach
on land and housing supply by announcing that the Government will
provide more than 380,000 residential units by changing land use
and increasing development intensity in the short to medium term.
The Government’'s announcement, coupled with the various ongoing
large-scale infrastructure and residential projects in Hong Kong, will
continue to exert pressure on the construction and engineering industry.
The construction and engineering industry will continue to struggle
to cope with the high work demand in the industry which in turn is
overshadowed by issues such an aging construction workforce and
shortage of skillful and non-skillful labour in the different trades of
work in the industry. Whilst the Group may benefit from the constant
flow of construction and engineering works in the market as a result
of the Government'’s policy, we will need to cautiously strike a balance
between new job tenders and reasonable profit margins to ensure
sustainable growth for the Group.

The Chinese economy performed well and maintained steady growth
during the past year, and the outlook for China's residential property
market is robust. Nevertheless, the PRC regulatory environment is
dynamic and the real estate property market remains ever competitive.
In light of our high hopes and confidence in the future of Hong Kong'’s
real estate market (as proven by the fierce bidding of several plots
of land in the Kai Tak area in the last 6 months), we have decided to
realise our Chengdu residential development project together with three
parcels of land at fair market value in June this year.

Mainland and local developers will continue to actively acquire
residential land sites in Hong Kong. Although the increase in stamp duty
rate may suppress speculative investment, end-user demand remains
strong. A fierce US interest rate rise is not expected and it is unlikely
that the demand of the Hong Kong residential market will dampen. In
May, we acquired a property in Kennedy Town, followed by a successful
tender granted in June by the Urban Renewal Authority (“URA") of Hong
Kong in Tai Kok Tsui, both of which are subject to completion. The Group
will consider both Government land sales and any other redevelopment
opportunities which may arise and will proceed cautiously with the
building up of the Group’s land bank in Hong Kong.
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The senior housing business consists of three components, namely,
real estate, hospitality and needs-driven senior care services. With the
population group of the age of 65 or above increasingly on the rise in
the US, we see a bright future in this business sector. It is this reason
that we increased our senior housing portfolio with the purchase of two
additional facilities in the US. In addition to the US, the Group’s senior
housing project in Hong Kong is also underway and is progressing
according to plan. Demand for senior care services, whether in the US
or in Hong Kong, will only increase. The Group will continue to source
for investments in the market with good opportunities and good returns
and will serve the senior housing market with our invaluable experience
gained over the years.

Dr Chow Yei Ching founded Chevalier Group in 1970 with only 10
employees. He served for the past 33 years as Chairman of the Group
since Chevalier (HK) Limited (the predecessor of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited) first listed in Hong Kong in 1984. Over the last
47 years, under his leadership, the Company grew and became a
diversified global conglomerate. Due to health reasons, Dr Chow will
not stand for re-election in the coming Annual General Meeting of the
Company and will accordingly retire as a Director and cease to act as
the Co-Chairman of the Group. Members of the Board, our management
and staff would like to express our deepest gratitude to Dr Chow for his
vision, guidance and advice over the years, without which the Group
would not have attained its solid position today. | will, together with
the Group’s committed, professional and diligent management team,
continue to lead the Group and will see that the Group excel and grow
even further.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our management
and staff for their efforts and dedication during the year. | would also
like to thank our shareholders and business partners for their invaluable
support and trust.

KUOK Hoi Sang
Co-Chairman and Managing Director

LETTERTO SHAREHOLDERS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER WD

Having assessed the Group's internal performance reports, the Board
reclassified the Group's segments into Construction and Engineering,
Property Investment, Property Development and Operations, Senior
Housing, Car Dealership and Others in order to re-allocate resources
effectively within the Group. The Property Investment, Property
Development and Operations and Senior Housing segments all split
from the Property segment and formed independent segments whilst
the Insurance and Investment and the Food and Beverage segments
merged together and formed the Others segment. Car Dealership was
detached from the Others segment after acquisition of the control in
Qi Yang Chevalier Investment Company Limited (“Qi Yang”), stands as
a new segment for the year.

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$4,759 million (2016:
HK$5,5638 million), representing a decrease of 14% when compared
with the last financial year. Taking into account its share of revenue
in its associates and joint ventures, total segment revenue was
HK$7,889 million (2016: HK$9,329 million), representing a decrease of
15%. Although the construction and engineering segment recorded
an increase in revenue, the Group's consolidated revenue decreased
mainly due to the absence of the revenue in last year recognised
from the aggregated sale and pre-sale of residential units in property
development in Changchun and the disposal of the Group’s interest
in the food and beverage business. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 boosted substantially by 70%
to HK$611 million, when compared to HK$360 million in 2016 mainly
due to fair value increase arising from the revaluation of the Group's
investment properties. Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
for the year ended 31 March 2017 increased substantially to HK$540
million (2016: HK$315 million), and earnings per share to HK$1.79 (2016:
HK$1.05).

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The Construction and Engineering segment’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2017 recorded an increase to HK$4,759 million from
HK$4,658 million in last year. The profit of this segment increased by
18% from HK$290 million in last year to HK$344 million in current year.
The growth in profit mainly derived from the building construction and
electrical and mechanical engineering divisions.

The building construction division focused on private and public sectors
projects and implemented effective cost control measures so as to
enhance operation efficiency in coping with the stringent competition
in the construction market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The electrical and mechanical engineering division offers a full building
service package for various types of buildings in Hong Kong, Macau
and China and it maintained steady growth and contribution. With the
completion of sizable contracts in Macau, the division shifted its focus
back to Hong Kong during the year under review.

The aluminium windows and curtain walls division recorded a decrease
in profit during the year due to the increase in cost resulted by the
shortage of skillful labour available in the market. Given our competitive
edge and good relationship with property developers, professional
consultants and contractors, this division is still optimistic about the
performance in the coming year.

The building supply division supplies a wide range of quality kitchen
cabinets and installs glass reinforced plastic water tanks for the public
and private sectors. It recorded a slight decrease in profit during the
year due to the keen market competition.

The environmental engineering division had a turbulent year as a result
of a decrease in public works projects during the financial year. The
division is actively looking for environmental projects from both the
private and public sectors and other environmental related projects in
the sewage and water segment.

The lift and escalator division experienced a decrease in turnover and
contribution due to the setback from the sales of the equipment and
installation in the Mainland China market. In Hong Kong, due to the
problem of aging buildings, the Group is optimistic that the revitalisation
process will provide opportunities in sales and installation of lifts and
escalators business for this division.

As at 31 March 2017, the total value of all outstanding construction
and engineering contracts of the Group's subsidiaries amounted to
HK$4,105 million. Major contracts include:

1. Construction of a government complex at Tuen Mun, New Territories;

2. Construction of the expansion of the blood transfusion service
headquarters of the Red Cross at Homantin, Kowloon;

3. Construction of a residential development at Shatin Town Lot No.
587 New Territories;

4. Expansion of the Tai Po Water Treatment Works Stream Il, Tai Po,
New Territories;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

5. HVAC installation works for a hotel development at Lot 1950, D.D.
221, Wai Man Road, Sai Kung, New Territories; and

6. Design, supply and installation of curtain wall and aluminium window
for Australia Technology Park in Sydney, Australia.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year under review, the Property Investment segment
primarily comprised of properties rental business. Although segment
revenue decreased by 14% to HK$144 million, segment profit increased
by 97% to HK$322 million due to fair value increase in revaluation of
investment properties. Given the size of the Group’s rental portfolio of
approximately 660,000 square feet and 163,000 square feet in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China remained unchanged during the year
under review, it is anticipated that performance of this segment will
be reduced as certain areas of Chevalier Commercial Centre will be
occupied for self-use by the Group in the coming financial year.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Group entered into a
provisional agreement to acquire a property at 1B and 1C Davis Street,
Hong Kong at the consideration of HK$228 million. The property is for
residential and commercial use and has a total gross floor area of about
9,100 square feet. After completion of the acquisition, the property
will provide stable rental income and will also offer potential capital
appreciation to the Group.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Property Development and Operations
segment revenue decreased by 44% from HK$1,045 million to HK$589
million. Segment profit recorded a significant drop by 57% from HK$203
million to HK$88 million. The decrease was mainly due to the absence
of the revenue in last year recognised from the aggregated sale and
pre-sale of residential units in the property development in Changchun.

The occupancy of the cold storage and logistics business was
maintained at over 90 percent. During the year under review, the
division also focused on potential SME clients and provided extra
services to foster their growth. The management is confident that its
performance will continue to be stable and will expand the business
carefully when the time is appropriate.

The property management division provided comprehensive and high
quality property management services to a wide range of customers
with a portfolio of over 30 million square feet comprising of commercial,
industrial and residential buildings, shopping arcades, car parks and
other communal facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Construction of URA project at Chi Kiang Street and Ha Heung Road,
City Hub (a 50-50 joint venture of the Group), which comprises 175
residential flats and commercial portion, is due to complete in the fourth
quarter of 2017 and it is expected the pre-sale will be launched in the
third quarter of 2017

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose the entire issue share capital in Chinaford
Investment Limited (“Chinaford”) and Dolce Field Limited (“Dolce
Field”) to Yango International Investment Group Limited and Yango City
Group Co., Ltd at a net consideration of RMB1,570 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,773 million). Chinaford and Dolce Field are the
investment holding companies of K#\E T FHEZEREGR A F which
is principally engaged in the Group's property development projects
in Chengdu.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Group was awarded the
development right by URA in respect of the development of a site
located at Fuk Chak Street and Li Tak Street at Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon at
the consideration of HK$680 million. The project, covers a site area of
approximately 8,200 square feet, is planned to be developed into small
to medium sized residential units with a total residential gross floor area
of about 55,000 square feet and 7000 square feet of commercial gross
floor area. Development of the project is expected to be completed by
2020/2021.

SENIOR HOUSING

In view of its significant in revenue and its contribution to the Group,
the senior housing business was detached from the Property segment
and formed a new Senior Housing segment. This segment revenue
decreased slightly by less than 1% to HK$524 million and profit dropped
by 20% to HK$29 million. Such soft result was primarily due to changes
in the reimbursement process in North Carolina which resulted in
lower average reimbursement and an increase in bad debt provision.
Measures have been taken to further control costs and negotiation
with the operator in securing a minimum net operating income. It is
conservatively expected that the performance will return to normal in
the coming year and we are still optimistic about the prospect of the
business. The Group owned 23 senior housing facilities as at 31 March
2017 providing 1,017 assisted living beds, 733 memory care beds and
119 skilled nursing beds to serve different needs of the aged population
in the US.

During the year, the Group agreed to grant a loan in the amount of not
exceeding HK$800 million and an estimated working capital of HK$50
million to Hong Kong-Macao Conference Limited and Hong Kong-Macao
Conference Holding Limited for its participation in the redevelopment of
a piece of land into a church and facility building. The project is located
at Ventris Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong. Upon completion, it will be
used as the senior housing facility and residential care home for the
elderly. The development is expected to be completed in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Group acquired two additional
senior housing properties located in Michigan, US, at an aggregate
consideration of US$33 million. The properties provided an aggregate
of 299 units with a total rentable area of over 170,000 square feet.

CAR DEALERSHIP

After acquisition of the control in Qi Yang, Car Dealership segment was
detached from Others segment as a new segment for the year. The
segment turnover decreased by HK$138 million to HK$1,317 million
while the segment result increased by HK$4 million as compared with
last year.

In Chengdu, a group of companies providing 8 import and domestic
car brands operated a total of 13 4S shops. Over 16,000 units of car
were sold during the year putting us in a leading position in Chengdu
domestic car market.

In Canada, the performance of our two automobile dealerships, Action
Honda and Aurora Chrysler was satisfactory for the year under review.
Our Canada team is confident that both dealerships will continue to
excel and meet performance in the coming year.

OTHERS

During the year under review, as a result of the realignment of the
Group's income resources with growth strategies, the Group merged
the insurance and investment business and food and beverage business
into this segment while car dealership segment was detached from it.
Segment revenue dropped by HK$920 million to HK$555 million mainly
due to the share of lesser revenue from food and beverage business
after Cafe Deco Holdings Limited was diluted from 60% to 25.28% in
December 2015. Notwithstanding the drop in segment revenue, with
the positive contribution from the investment portfolio of the insurance
and investment business, the segment result rebounded by 147% from
segment loss HK$124 million to segment profit HK$58 million.

Revenue for the insurance division dropped in 2016/2017 primarily due
to intense competition in the Employees’ Compensation business.
Despite a decline in gross premium, the insurance division managed
to achieve a satisfactory combined ratio in its underwriting business.
Both the insurance and the investment divisions recorded an increase
in profit as a result of a decrease in claim incurred and gain in fair
values of financial instruments and in mutual/hedge funds, respectively.
The division will continue to adopt a prudent underwriting approach to
strengthen its competitiveness whilst maintaining sustainable growth.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased from HK$5,538 million in the year
2015/16 to HK$4,759 million in the year 2016/17. The decrease was
mainly due to the absence of last year's revenue recognised from
the aggregated sale and pre-sale of residential units in the property
development in Changchun and the disposal of the Group’s interest in
the food and beverage business.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased from HK$1,212 million in the year 2015/16 to
HK$744 million in the year 2016/17 and gross profit margin decreased
from 21.9% to 15.6%. The decrease was mainly due to the disposal of
the Group's interest in food and beverage business.

Other income, net

Other income, net of HK$106 million was recorded in the year 2016/17
(2015/16: HK$63 million). The increase was mainly due to turnaround of
investments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments from loss HK$25 million in the year 2015/16 to gain HK$16
million in the year 2016/17.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net of HK$203 million were recorded in the year 2016/17
(2015/16: Other losses, net of HK$131 million). The significant increase
was primarily due to the increase in fair value of investment properties
of HK$226 million (2015/16: HK$32 million), mainly arose from Hong
Kong and Mainland China and last year's impairment loss on amount
due from an associate of HK$119 million no longer exist in current year.

Selling and distribution costs

The disposal of the Group's interest in the food and beverage business
constituted the decrease in selling and distribution costs from HK$452
million in the year 2015/16 to HK$101 million in the year 2016/17.

Share of results of associates

The Group's share of results of associates dropped from HK$117 million
in the year 2015/16 to HK$88 million in the year 2016/17, mainly due to
the setback from the sales of the equipment and installation on lift and
escalator division in Mainland China.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
LR

Share of results of joint ventures

The Group's share of results of joint ventures recorded a loss of HK$5
million in the year 2016/17 (2015/16: HK$25 million). The improvement
was mainly contributed by the property development business in
Beijing, Mainland China.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net decreased by HK$7 million as the management
satisfactorily made savings on the finance costs during the refinancing
of the existing term loan facility in September 2016.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$540 million
was achieved in the year 2016/17 (2015/16: HK$315 million), a substantial
increase of HK$225 million mainly accounted for aforementioned
increase in fair value of investment properties.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Investment properties

The carrying value of investment properties increased by HK$169
million to HK$3,833 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$3,664
million), representing the fair value gain amounted to HK$226 million
and partially adjusted by depreciation in Renminbi when translated into
Hong Kong dollar.

Property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment was substantially
increased by HK$431 million to HK$2,330 million as at 31 March 2017
(2016: HK$1,899 million) which resulted from the deemed acquisition
of QiYang Group and fair value increase of staff quarters.

Interests in associates

Interests in associates dropped by HK$402 million to HK$519 million
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$921 million) representing the deemed
acquisition of QiYang Group of HK$355 million and the full consolidation
of its results and financial position into the Group's consolidated
financial statements and disposal of Wonder of HK$53 million.
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Properties under development (under non-current assets,
current assets and assets held-for-sale)

Properties under development (under non-current assets, current assets
and assets held-for-sale) increased by HK$140 million representing
the development costs incurred in properties development projects in
Chengdu and Changchun, Mainland China during the year and partially
adjusted by the depreciation in Renminbi when translated into Hong
Kong dollar. On 1 June 2017 the Group entered into an framework
agreement to dispose the property development project in Chengdu,
Mainland China, the relevant properties under development carrying
value of HK$533 million was then classified as assets held-for-sale as
at 31 March 2017.

Properties for sale (under current assets and assets held-for-
sale)

Properties for sale (under current assets and assets held-for-sale)
decreased by HK$275 million mainly due to sales of properties in
Chengdu and Changchun, Mainland China and depreciation in Renminbi
when translated into Hong Kong dollar during the year. On 1 June
2017 the Group entered into an framework agreement to dispose the
property development project in Chengdu, Mainland China, the relevant
properties for sale carrying value of HK$580 million was then classified
as assets held-for-sale as at 31 March 2017.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments increased significantly by HK$306
million to HK$1,393 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$1,087 million)
which composed of deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group and deposits
and advances paid for investment projects.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash decreased by HK$247 million to HK$1,762
million (2016: HK$2,009 million) mainly due to partial settlement of
bank and other borrowings during the year as the Group maintained a
strong cash position, of which 80.5% (2016: 91.7%) of bank balances
and cash were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and US dollar while
13.9% (2016: 4.2%) were denominated in Renminbi.

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals increased by HK$624
million to HK$1,922 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$1,298 million)
which composed of deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group, deposits
received on pre-sale of properties under development in Changchun,
Mainland China and accrued contract costs.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
LR

Bank and other borrowings (under current liabilities and
non-current liabilities)

Bank and other borrowings decreased by HK$323 million to HK$2,790
million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$3,113 million) due to settlement
made during the year as our Group maintains a strong cash position
and management satisfactorily made saving in finance costs. 88.2%
and 10.8 % (2016: 90.8% and 8.3%) of bank and other borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong and US dollar, and Renminbi respectively.

The Group’s within one year bank and other borrowings portion
largely decreased from 30.9% as at 31 March 2016 to 18.6% as at 31
March 2017 due to the refinancing of the existing term loan facility in
September 2016.

Majority of the borrowings in Hong Kong and Mainland China carry
floating interest rates, of which most of them are based on Hong
Kong or London Interbank Offered Rates or the People’s Bank of China
Benchmark Loan Rate, while majority of the borrowings in the US carry
fixed interest rates insured by the US Government.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

As at 31 March 2017 the Group's net assets attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to HK$7969 million, an increase of HK$219
million when compared with 31 March 2016 of HK$7750 million. Such
increase mainly resulted from the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company of HK$540 million, revaluation surplus of properties for
own use under revaluation model of HK$94 million, offset by dividend
payment of HK$211 million and exchange difference on translation of
operations of overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
HK$225 million.

LEVERAGE RATIOS

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and the US.

As at 31 March 2017 the Group's total debt amounted to HK$2,790
million (2016: HK$3,113 million), HK$955 million (2016: HK$846 million)
was attributable to senior housing business and without recourse to
the Company.
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Analysis of the net debt is set out below:

Unsecured: I
- senior housing business —REREEB
— other business — HmER
Secured: HEM
— senior housing business —REREEB
— other business — HEmER
Total debts 1RET
Bank balances and cash RITEFEE S
Net debt FET

As at 31 March 2017, with the decrease in bank and other borrowings,
total debt to equity ratio decreased to 32.8% (2016: 37.8%), which
was expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings over
the Group’s net assets of HK$8,503 million (2016: HK$8,238 million).
Net debt to equity ratio dropped to 12.1% (2016: 13.4%), which
was expressed as a percentage of net bank and other borrowings
(representing total bank and other borrowings net of bank balances and
cash) over the Group’s net assets. Ratio of total debt to total assets of
HK$15,064 million (2016: HK$14,520 million) decreased from 21.4% to
18.5% as at 31 March 2017.

With the existing banking facilities and the recurrent cash generation
from its operation, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet
the funding requirements for its ongoing operation as well as its future
expansion.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
LR

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group’s treasury activities are centralised in order to
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi or US dollar. The Group's liquidity and financing requirements
are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity
of bank and other borrowings, the Group will consider new financing
while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
INTEREST RATES

The major currencies used to operate the businesses are Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had
arranged foreign currency swap contracts amounting to HK$111 million
(2016: HK$239 million) to hedge part of its foreign currency risk from
various foreign currencies used for business operations. The Group had
outstanding interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$800
million (2016: HK$800 million) in total as at 31 March 2017, enabling the
Group to manage its interest rate exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, bank and other borrowings of HK$1,409 million
(2016: HK$1,818 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were
secured by charges on investment properties of HK$1,282 million
(2016: HK$2,196 million), property, plant and equipment of HK$747
million (2016: HK$1,282 million), other non-current assets of HK$22
million (2016: HK$22 million), inventories of HK$73 million (2016: HK$82
million), debtors, deposits and prepayments of HK$59 million (2016:
HK$63 million) and deposits at bank of HK$406 million (2016: HK$333
million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. The commitment is to be financed by borrowings
and internal funds.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DR CHOW YEI CHING G.B.S., O.B.E., Executive Director, Co-Chairman
of the Board and Chairman of the Executive Committee, aged 81,
founded Chevalier Group in 1970. Dr Chow was re-designated from
Chairman to Co-Chairman of the Company on 12 January 2016. In
1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In
1997 he was conferred the degree of Doctor of Laws honoris causa
by The University of Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University
in Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Social Science by City University of Hong Kong.
In 2013, Dr Chow was also awarded Doctor of Social Science honoris
causa by Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Dr Chow's
enthusiasm in public services is evidenced by his appointment in 2001
as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was
also appointed as the Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Bahrain
in Hong Kong in 2001. Dr Chow also actively participates in various
professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs.
To name a few, he is the Founding President of International Ningbo
Merchants Association Company Limited, the Vice Patron of The Japan
Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the
National Taiwan University — HK Alumni Association. In recognition of
his contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was
awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan.
Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from
the HKSAR Government in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Non-Executive Director of the Company and Miss Lily
Chow, Executive Director of the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG, M.H., Executive Director, Co-Chairman and
Managing Director, chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member
of the Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged
67 joined Chevalier Group in 1972. Mr Kuok was appointed as Co-
Chairman of the Company on 12 January 2016. Mr Kuok has extensive
experience in business development and is responsible for the strategic
planning and management of the operations of lift and escalator,
building construction, building supplies, aluminium windows and curtain
walls, electrical and mechanical engineering, civil engineering, property
investment and development as well as investment projects of Chevalier
Group. Mr Kuok is the President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors
Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China
Branch of The International Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice
President of The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in
Hong Kong.
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Mr Kuok is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference from the 9th to 12th
sessions. He has served on a number of HKSAR Government Boards
and Committees, including the Election Committee, the Examination
Committee (Registration of lift engineers and escalator engineers) and
the Lift and Escalator Safety Advisory Committee of the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. Mr Kuok was awarded the Medal
of Honour by the HKSAR Government in 2016 for his dedicated public
service, particularly for his contributions to the development of the
electrical and mechanical services industry.

MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director
and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 56, joined Chevalier
Group in 1986. Mr Tam oversees all legal affairs of the Group and he is
responsible for the operations of cold storage and logistics; insurance
services; property investment and development; property management;
and travel agency businesses.

Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Peking University of
the People's Republic of China; a Master of Arts Degree from City
University of Hong Kong; and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr Tam is
a Fellow Member of each of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom; and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is also a Chartered
Member of the Chartered Institute of Housing.

At present, MrTam is the elected President of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries; a Councilor of the General Insurance Council
in the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers; and the Immediate Past
President of the Hong Kong Association of Property Management
Companies. He is also an appointed Member of each of the Property
Management Services Authority; the Occupational Safety and Health
Council; the Employees’ Compensation Insurance Levies Management
Board; the Property Management Industry Training Advisory Committee
of the Education Bureau; the Advisory Committee on Water Supplies;
and the Steering Committee on the Promotion of Electric Vehicles.
In addition, he is an Honorary Secretary of the Insurance Claims
Complaints Bureau. Mr Tam is also a member of The Board of Directors
of Bao Minh Insurance Corporation in Vietnam.

Mr Tam is also appointed as the Honorary Vice Consul of the Kingdom of
Bahrain to Hong Kong. He also serves as the Secretary General of the
Hong Kong Bahrain Business Association. In China, MrTam is appointed
as a Standing Committee Member of the 13th Changchun Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr Tam is also
a Council Member of the Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors.
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MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 67 joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He is
responsible for the internal audit of Chevalier Group. Mr Ho is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

MR MA CHIWING, Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, aged 48, joined Chevalier Group in 1993. Mr Ma has
extensive experience in project management and is currently in charge
of the senior housing, car dealership, hotel investment and trading
businesses of the Group. Mr Ma holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The University of Warwick, U.K., a Bachelor Degree
in International Business Studies from City University of Hong Kong,
a Corporate Finance Certificate from UC Berkeley, the US, and a
Professional Certificate in China Construction from Tsinghua University,
Mainland China.

MISS LILY CHOW, Executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, aged 54, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is responsible
for strategic planning and business development of the Group. Miss
Chow holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of British
Columbia, Canada. Miss Chow is currently a Standing Committee
member of the Ningbo Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Miss Chow is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei
Ching, the Co-Chairman of the Company and a sister of Mr Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Non-Executive Director of the Company.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM S.B.S., Ph.D., Non-Executive Director,
aged 71, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1968. He served in the HKSAR Government
for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide range of departments
including the Water Supplies Department, the Highways Department,
the Civil Engineering and Development Department and the Works
Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as the Director of Water Supplies.
Dr Ko retired from the civil service in January 2007.

MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Non-Executive Director, aged 43,
joined Chevalier Group in 2000. He holds a degree in Master of
Engineering from The University of Oxford, U.K. and is currently a
General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce and a General Committee Member of The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. Mr Chow is a Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Bahrain Business Association. He is also a member of
the Shanghai Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference. Mr Chow is also a court member of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and The University of Hong Kong. Mr Chow is
the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Co-Chairman of the Company and
brother of Miss Lily Chow, Executive Director of the Company.
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DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH O.B.E., J.R, Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 75, joined the Company in 2002. He is the Independent Non-
Executive Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an independent
non-executive director of Build King Holdings Limited, Road King
Infrastructure Limited, and Harbour Centre Development Limited.
Dr Chow is a civil and structural engineer by profession. He has over
40 years of experience in the planning, design and construction of
many major engineering projects in the U.K., Middle East, Mainland
China and Hong Kong. He was formerly the Chairman of the Hong
Kong Construction Workers Registration Authority and Honorary Senior
Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was
previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital Governing Committee, as well as a Member of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.

MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.B.S., J.P, Independent
Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 58, joined the Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree
in Business Administration from Cass Business School London, U.K. in
1983 and is currently a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising firm
of Accountants and member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales as well as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. His community duties include the Director and Fourth Vice
President & Admissions, Budgets & Allocations Committee chairman
of the Community Chest, member of the Insurance Appeals Tribunal,
member of the Occupational Safety & Health Council, an independent
director of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, member of
Hospital Governing Committee of Caritas Medical Centre and member
of the Council Committee of The Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts. Mr Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2011.
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PROFESSOR POON CHUNG KWONG G.B.S., J.P, Ph.D., D.Sc.,
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee, aged 77, joined the Company in 2012. Professor Poon
obtained a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree from the University
of Hong Kong, a Doctor of Philosophy degree and a Higher Doctor
of Science degree from the University of London, U.K.. He was
a postdoctoral fellow at the California Institute of Technology and
University of Southern California. He also held the Honorary Degree
of Doctor of Humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2009. Professor Poon is currently the chairman of Virya Foundation
Limited (a registered non-profit charitable organisation). He is an
Emeritus Professor and the President Emeritus of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and had devoted 40 years of his life to advancing
university education in Hong Kong before he retired in January 2009
from his 18-year presidency at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Professor Poon was appointed a non-official Justice of the Peace in 1989
and received the OBE award in 1991, the Gold Bauhinia Star award in
2002, and the “Leader of the Year Awards 2008 (Education)” In addition,
Professor Poon was appointed as a member of the Legislative Council
(1985-1991) and a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (1998-2013). Professor Poon is
a non-executive director of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited and
an independent non-executive director of Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited and
Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited. All of those companies are
public companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

MR IRONS SZE B.B.S., J.P, Independent Non-Executive Director, aged
55, joined the Company in November 2016. Mr Sze graduated with a
Bachelor’s degree in Science from University of Wisconsin-La Crosse,
United States in 1985. Mr Sze has extensive experience in investment
and corporate management. Mr Sze is an independent non-executive
director of Continental Holdings Limited and a non-executive director
of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited. He was appointed as a
non-executive director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited on 1
February 2017 all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an executive director of a private company, Hang
Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship in various
private companies. Mr Sze is a member of the National Committee and
an executive member of the Beijing Municipal Standing Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, and currently
the Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong. He was also elected as a member of Election
Committee of the Chief Executive of the HKSAR in 2016. Mr Sze was
appointed the Justice of the Peace and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the HKSAR in 2011 and 2015 respectively.
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYFEXR

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at the date of AEEBRAREABZEEMEFIN
this report are as follows: T

(1) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR OWN () HERE " BRME
USE

Approximate

gross The Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
ith B R BEERIZ* ZHFH AEEREER
sq. ft. F AR %
Hong Kong
i
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and and carpark R
one-third interest in 201 RAEREES

car parking spaces of

Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
NEEERRB/\FETREER L

TE—Z——Z2-F-NE-

theE=-+=#K

=D = 2201 EEFEEA

Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T% A3
Fanling

MEZEBLEFRETERRE

Ground Floor of Blocks A and B, Industrial 14,900 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, T% H
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

BREKEG T ARRELERD

ARE R BEEH T
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi Industrial 253,500 Medium 875
EREXBE_TNAE=+TZ=R I H HA
8 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung Cold storage 380,000 Medium 75
EREEH)\R warehouse R

REEE

124-130 Kwok Shui Road and Cold storage 427500 Medium 75

79-85 Yau Ma Hom Road, warehouse A

Kwai Chung REEE
HREGEE - THE—B=T%RE

BB TAENT AR
9 Henderson Road, Jardine's Lookout Residential 9,500 Long 100
BEFEZBENR F=E =
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
ARE =T F= KH
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYEX

(1) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR OWN () HERE " BRYE (8)

USE (CONTINUED)

Approximate
gross The Group’s
floor area* Lease term interest

ZREH  AKEFREER

Location

ith B EEEEAE*
sq. ft.E AR %

Singapore

K

Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road,
Singapore 349481

The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,

Singapore 349473

Canada

mEX

838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C.

4334-4340 Kingston Road,
Ontario, MIF 2M8

14535-14583 Yonge Street, Aurora,
Ontario

us
XH

430 East Grand Avenue,
South San Francisco, CA 94080

13258 Nelson Avenue,
City of Industry, Los Angeles,
CA 91746

4510 Duraleigh Road, Raleigh,
NC 27612

1700 Montana Drive, Charlotte,
NC 28216

3060 SE Stark Street, Portland,
OR 97214

14420 SW, Farmington Road,
Beaverton, OR 97005

535 U.S Highway 158W, Yanceyville,

NC 27379

2560 Willard Road, Winston-Salem,
NC 27107

Industrial
TI%

Industrial
TI%

Hotel
B

Office and workshop
for automobile
dealership

REREEHEIMAE
kT

Office and workshop
for automobile
dealership

RIERERHEIPRE
KkI%

Industrial/
Warehouse

I%/ 8

Industrial/
Warehouse

I%/ B
Senior Housing
ZERE
Senior Housing
ZERE
Senior Housing
ZERE
Senior Housing
ZERE
Senior Housing
ZERE

Senior Housing
ZERE

106,500

16,900

66,000

20,200

25,000

37,000

31,400

52,700

34,400

150,500

35,000

38,900

33,300

Ereehold
KA EERE

Ereehold
KA EERE

Freehold
KAERE

Freehold
KAERE

Ereehold
KA FERE

Ereehold
KA EERE

Ereehold
KA EERE

Freehold
KAERE
Freehold
KAERE
Freehold
KAERE
Freehold
KAERE
Freehold
KAERE

Freehold
KAERE

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

98.6

100

100

100

98.6

98.6
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(1) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR OWN () HERE  BRAYME (&)
USE (CONTINUED)

Approximate

gross The Group’s

Location floor area* Lease term interest
it B S BRHEENE* ZHFH AEERGEER

sq. ft. 5 R %
Thailand
=
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom KAZERE
Debsirin Sub-district, MAERBRIIE

Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis

Mainland China

HEIA
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark K H
FETRERREE —BT/\SRTE FE - BmHkEES
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, YN 8
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou

BN R BE AT AR RILES
TNE=ZZENE

(I)PROPERTIES FOR SALE (NEEm%E
Approximate
gross The Group's
Location floor area* Lease term interest
1t 2 EEEELE* ZANFH AEEfLES
sq. ft. F AR %
Hong Kong
B8
Units 1601-1603 on 16th Floor, 3,800 Medium 100
Chevalier House, 45-51 Chatham Road South, H
Tsim Sha Tsui
QQ&DEE%WL?W-FEIﬁ-F FEITKRE
‘|’/\$§ nNE —NE=FE

Mainland China

FER
Phase | of Chevalier City — 240 apartment units, 656,000 Medium 96
79 residential units and 134 shop units, i Hf

Luyuan District, Changchun
REMAEREARIEM240ELE - 79BEER134ERE#H

My Villa - 12 villas and 7 shop units, 162,000 Medium 44

Huairou District, Beijing i Hj
It RMIERERE 2{E R BN K7 A
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(INPROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYER

(MEERPIZE

Estimated
gross floor The
Stage of Expected date Approximate area after Group’s
Location completion of completion  Major usage site area  completion* interest
1 2 EE BETIAH TER% A8t TRERE A&
ERVE HRAO FritfE s
sq. ft. ¥R sq. ft.EAR %
Mainland China
HE Rt
Luyuan District, Changchun In progress 2017 to 2027 Residential and 2,550,000 5,863,000 96
RETHER TiRETH S Y commercial
“EC+F FEREE
¥ Excluding carparks * TpiEEBE
+ Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities and resettlement + TEEHTE - 55 RREEREBEE

buildings

ZIEEEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

& REARE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange sets out two levels of corporate
governance code, namely code provisions that a listed company must
comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended best
practices that a listed company is encouraged to comply with but
need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. All the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company's
Bye-Laws.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George, an Independent Non-Executive
Director, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 2 September 2016 due to an overseas commitment.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company
is required to appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board and the audit committee must comprise
a minimum of three members. Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.1 of the
CG Code, the nomination committee should be chaired by the chairman
of the Board or an independent non-executive director of the Company.
Following the retirement of Mr Sun Kai Dah, George at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2016, both the
number of independent non-executive directors and the members of
the Audit Committee had fallen below the minimum, and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee had been vacant and did not meet the
requirements under the Listing Rules. Following the announcement of
the Company made on 25 November 2016 regarding the appointment of
Mr Irons Sze as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company,
Professor Poon Chung Kwong as a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company and Mr Kuok Hoi Sang as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Company is now in compliance with Rule 3.10A, Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies, monitors
and evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews
the corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, notifiable transactions,
director appointments or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting
policies. Management profile of the Company as at the date of this
report is set out on pages 21 to 25.

The Board comprises six Executive Directors, two Non-Executive
Directors and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board met
four times during the year under review. The attendance of Directors
at the Board Meetings, the Board Committees Meetings and General
Meeting is set out in the table below:

EEERRE

=g
EECREAMARRBEBIRHEREME
EAMEE - SEF EwEARNRER
o HBBEBARDR RERENHE
P BRRITE BB UAEEE
BEREAMAR  REEMTHASEES
BEHE ECRE  UTRIAQF 2B
EERKFE - ZEEENERESEAAS
B EFeEEFRAPHES  ATQM
X5 EFEINER  MIREHIRE
GHEE - RAREZH  ARBIERE
BENENE21BEE25H

ERAHALHTER  MEENTES
ROEBIERTEEMER - BEERAE
EEFEEALRITTORES SEFAE
EFEGeH EFESASRHRBEAR
FHOLEEDT

Meetings Attended/Held
SRR/ BRY
Annual

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bz 34 EHZEE FMzRe REZE® REBEXE
Executive Directors
WTES
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Co-Chairman) 0/4 - - - 0/1°
ANBEL (BELE)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and Managing Director) 4/4 - " 22 17
BEERE (BEFEREFLLE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 4/4 - - - "
BERRLE (GEFLLEE)
Mr Ho Chung Leung 4/4 - - - 1"
{RRzE
Mr Ma Chi Wing 4/4 - - - "
BERTE
Miss Lily Chow 4/4 - - - "

B/ A
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TEERRS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EET (H)
Meetings Attended/Held
SRLE BTRY
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bz Ezg ERZEE FMzEES REZEE BREAFEAE
Non-Executive Directors
FHTES
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 4/4 - - - 1
REEET
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4/4 - - - 11
A% ERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUEHTES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 4/4 33 n 212 n
FHAEET
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles 4/4 33 " 2/2 n
BERL
Professor Poon Chung Kwong 4/4 17e - - mn
BRAYE
Mr Irons Sze 2/2¢ - - - -
HERERE
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George 1/1¢ 1/1¢ il 1/1¢ 0N
BREEE
a. On medical leave since January 2016. a RIT—X F—ABKRR
b. Appointed a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 25 November 2016. b REZZ—ARF+-—AZ+HhHEZXAEZZES
K8
c. Appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 25 November 2016. ¢ RIE—RF+—-AZ+RBEZEEABEIERNIT
=
d. Retired as an Independent Non-Executive Director, ceased to be the chairman of the d RIZ—RENA-_BEREBIIEHNTES T H
Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration BEMRELZEETR BRZESRTNEES
Committee with effect from 2 September 2016. K B B

32  CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other except that Dr Chow Yei Ching is the father
of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow; while Miss Chow
is a sister of Mr Chow.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 the Company met at all
times the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors or representing at least one-third
of the Board (except for the period from 2 September 2016 to 24
November 2016, the number of independent non-executive directors fell
below the minimum) and with at least one Independent Non-Executive
Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial management
expertise and professional qualifications.

The Company received from its Independent Non-Executive Directors
annual confirmation of independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board assessed their independence and concluded
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company also provides reading materials and updates
to the Directors on the latest developments and changes to the Listing
Rules, applicable laws and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company arranged a seminar for the
Directors given by PricewaterhouseCoopers on matters relating to the
PRC business tax/VAT policy reform and its impact on our business in
the PRC. All Directors attended and/or received the materials at the
seminar. Directors’ training is an ongoing process and all Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company's
expenses. Directors are requested to provide records of training they
received to the Company Secretary of the Company for records.
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TERERRE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board shall have power to appoint any person as a director either
to fill a vacancy or for expansion of the Board. The Company has set
up a Nomination Committee for formulating nomination policy for
consideration by the Board and making recommendations to the Board
on the selection, appointment and re-appointment of directors. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New directors appointed by the Board during
the year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at
the annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following
their appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from
office by rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting
since the last re-election or appointment of such Director.

Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr Ma Chi Wing, Mr Yang
Chuen Liang, Charles and Mr Irons Sze shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Wednesday, 30 August 2017 (the "AGM") in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws. Dr Chow Yei Ching will not stand for re-election
and accordingly will retire as a Co-Chairman and Executive Director and
cease to be the chairman of the Executive Committee of the Company
after the conclusion of the AGM. Save for Dr Chow, the other retiring
Directors, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

The following appointments were recommended by Nomination
Committee to the Board for consideration and confirmed by the Board

of the Company on 25 November 2016:

(i) Mr Irons Sze be appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company;

(ii) Mr Kuok Hoi Sang be appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company; and

(iii) Professor Poon Chung Kwong be appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision of CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the
functioning of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses. The Co-Chairmen of the Company
are Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Kuok Hoi Sang and Mr Kuok also acts
as the Managing Director of the Company. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director of the Company.

Dr Chow Yei Ching was unable to perform his duties as Chairman
due to an unexpected medical condition, and as a result Mr Kuok Hoi
Sang was appointed as the Co-Chairman of the Company with effect
from 12 January 2016 in addition to his position of Managing Director
of the Company. The Board considers this a temporary arrangement
and appropriate for the Company as it can preserve the consistent
leadership culture of the Company whilst allowing efficient discharge
of the executive functions of the chief executive. Meanwhile, the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group are delegated to
divisional management under the leadership of Mr Kuok Hoi Sang in the
role of Managing Director who is supported by the Executive Directors
and senior management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee, have been adopted and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are regularly reviewed
and updated by the Board. MrYang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent
Non-Executive Director, is the chairman of the committee. He has
extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. Other members
include Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Ming
Kuen, Joseph and Professor Poon Chung Kwong. The Audit Committee
is responsible for, among others, reviewing the nature and scope of
audit performed by external auditors and their appointments, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and overseeing the Group's financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems,
and reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit
function. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results
of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
March 2017. At the meetings, they reviewed the connected transactions
(if any), last year's final results and accounts for the year ended 31
March 2016, the interim results and financial statements for the six
months ended 30 September 2016 and reviewed with management the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
the auditing, financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The final results and financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in
the meeting held on 20 June 2017 They also reviewed and approved
the engagement of external auditors for providing non-audit services,
the remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by external auditors, risk management and internal control systems and
the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been adopted and posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are regularly
reviewed and updated by the Board. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (chairman of the committee) and Mr Yang
Chuen Liang, Charles; and one Executive Director, namely Mr Kuok
Hoi Sang. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the
Company, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy for approval by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation model
where it has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended
31 March 2017 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2017. Details of
the emoluments of Directors and senior management by bands are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and duties
of the Nomination Committee, have been adopted and posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are regularly
reviewed and updated by the Board. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (chairman of the committee) and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Ming Kuen,
Joseph and MrYang Chuen Liang, Charles. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive. The Nomination Committee has
the responsibility to consider, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
The Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and agreed on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and made relevant
recommendations to the Board for adoption with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2017 to review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
to assess the independence of all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, to recommend the re-election of directors who would retire
from office at the annual general meeting of the Company and to make
recommendations on new appointment or any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and managing the daily operations of
the Group's business to an Executive Committee which was established
in 1991. Written terms of reference, which describe the authority
and duties of the Executive Committee, have been adopted and are
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. Members of the Executive
Committee comprise six Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching
(chairman of the committee), Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing,
Ho Chung Leung, Ma Chi Wing and Miss Lily Chow.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for
overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operating systems or in
achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, on an annual basis. It also considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function. Significant issues in the management letters
from both internal and external auditors will be brought to the attention
of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken.
All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report
risks. Such risks include strategic, credit, operational (administrative,
system, human resources, tangible and reputation), market, liquidity,
legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is continuously
monitored by the Board through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority. The Board has clearly defined the
authorities and key responsibilities of each division to ensure adequate
checks and balances. The internal control system has been designed to
safeguard the Group's assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for producing
reliable financial information; and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and industry standard.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, there were no major issue but areas for
improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and both
the internal and external auditors with appropriate measures taken.
The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control
systems in place for the year and up to the date of issuance of the
annual report is effective and adequate.

The Company's Internal Audit Department monitors the Group's internal
governance and strives to provide objective assurance to the Board
that appropriate, adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems are in place. It has unrestricted access to review all
aspects of the Group's activities and internal controls. It also conducts
special audits of areas of concern identified by management or the
Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based
audit approach. All audit reports are circulated to the Audit Committee
and key management. The Internal Audit Department is also responsible
for following up the implementation of recommendations and corrective
actions.

DIRECTORS" AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries and of the Group's financial performance and cash
flows. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
have adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong
and suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are fair and reasonable and prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The Auditor
of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017 as set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 66.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERRE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the fees paid/payable to the auditors
in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors
to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

B0 2 B =

BE_Z—tF=A=+—RHIHRFE
W AR EZBE RN 2 BRI
RBEXN BN EMM 0T

Amount (HK$'000)

BRA% 14 & 8 (BT
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide 6,918
ZE R network of PricewaterhouseCoopers
FELRIOKBGRTAN BT REME N & RO B R IRBA R ETE
— other auditors 4,105
H b A% BLED
Non-audit services - PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide 488
IEZE R network of PricewaterhouseCoopers
EERUKBE TR SRR R E B Bk E R IR R R E TSR
— other auditors 1,500

H Ao 4% 2R A

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry of all Directors,
each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Model Code throughout the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company'’s affairs. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary had duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The requisition
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Convening a general meeting (continued)

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) themselves, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the said date.

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary and deposit the same at
the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail
to enquiry@chevalier.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting ( “GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or shall not be
less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also
be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders
concerned under applicable laws and rules.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a director is posted on the website of the Company.
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TERERRE

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s Board and senior management maintains close
communications with investors, analysts, fund managers and the
media through various channels including individual interviews and
meetings. The Group also responds promptly to request for information
and queries from the investors.

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or senior
management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and
other information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company's
website at http://www.chevalier.com.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND BYE-LAWS OF THE
COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report prepared
by the Group pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

Unless otherwise stated, this report focuses on our Hong Kong
operations which represent the core businesses of the Group.

Sustainability is essential to the Group’'s development, as well as for
the viability of its business and for the benefit of the community. We
are dedicated to offering premium products and services to achieve
all round customer satisfaction. The Group believes in environmental
protection and cares for the community through engaging in various
charitable initiatives to make positive contributions to society. We also
nurture our staff and offer career development opportunities to further
ensure business continuity.

During the year under review, the Group committed itself to a high
standard of corporate social responsibility and strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations reporting. The two key subject areas for
reporting are: (A) Environmental and (B) Social.

(A)ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The major source of our carbon emissions is the use of energy. We
have implemented various energy saving measures to help reduce
our carbon emissions (please refer to the “Use of Resources” and
“The Environment and Natural Resources” below).

Use of Resources

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in all
business practices. To contribute to the sustainable development of
our environment, the Group joined the Silver Corporate Membership
Programme of World Wildlife Fund Hong Kong (WWF) and actively
participated in events organised by WWF

The Group also took part in various large-scale projects related
to water and wastewater, as well as solid waste treatment and
disposal, including but not limited to, the construction of the Tai
Po Water Treatment Works Stream |l, the upgrading of DSD Ma
Wan Sewage Treatment Works and CLP Black Point Power Station
Sewage Treatment Plant, and the maintenance of electrical and
mechanical control systems at various sewage treatment works and
their outstations.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group introduced a green policy to enhance the awareness
of environmental protection among staff with the aim of saving
energy, fully utilising resources and recycling wastes in our daily
office operation.

The Group took measures to reduce paper usage including usage
of electronic devices, and encouraged the use of websites and
online version of corporate communications. Since 2008, Forest
Stewardship Council-certified papers have been used for the
production of our annual and interim reports to reduce the impact
on the environment and community.

To reduce the power consumption of our lighting systems, the
Group has replaced all lighting basins continuously throughout our
offices with T5 florescent tube, saving 20% of electricity energy as
compared with T8 florescent tube. Most of our office equipment
carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department which helped further decrease energy consumption in
our offices.

Our construction and engineering segment puts much effort into
protecting the environment at project sites. Measures implemented,
to name a few, included controls over noise, waste water discharge,
dust control, controlled chemical waste disposal, use of recyclable
waste materials and prevention of chemical leakage. Another
example was the use of biodiesel in some of our machineries on
site. Environmental protection policies and plans were set up for
different projects. Some of our group companies have obtained the
ISO14001 certification awarded by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency which also demonstrates our commitment to environmental
protection.

Our property management business has obtained the 1SO14001
certification since 2006. Activities were held for recycling and for
the promotion of green living lifestyle for residents and/or tenants
of properties managed by the Group. In order to further save on
energy and expenditure, the Group has set a target for its audited
sites to reduce electricity consumption by 5% in the next 5 years
by changing light tubes from T8 to T5 and by turning off certain
low-usage lifts during non-peak hours. In some of our managed
sites, we have in place recycling programs for the collection of
second hand clothes, moon cake containers, lai see envelopes,
toner cartridges, batteries, electric bulbs/tubes and glass bottles
to promote recycling to our residents and/or tenants. Upon the
implementation of the Municipal Solid Waste Charging Scheme,
the property management business will make every endeavour to
support the implementation of such scheme.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B)SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment and Labour Standards

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the Group is
committed to offering professional development opportunities and
a healthy working environment for all employees and on-site staff.
In addition, we have implemented equal opportunity employment
practices.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of approximately 3,200
full-time employees globally, with approximately 2,100 in Hong Kong,
800 in Mainland China and 300 in other locations, mainly the US,
Canada and Thailand.

The Group reviews its compensation and benefits programs regularly
to ensure that its compensation and benefits packages remain
competitive. In addition, the Group continues to conduct annual
review of its pay and benefits packages of employees including
medical scheme, health check program, travel insurance, training
subsidies and retirement benefits to align them with prevailing
offers in the market.

Different recreational activities were also arranged by our Human
Resources Department. Interest classes and workshops were
organised during the year under review to increase the sense
of belonging of our employees. The Group strives to help our
employees maintain a work life balance. A staff recreation centre
provides staff members with a place to rest, relax and socialise. In
addition, to promote our colleagues’ interest in reading, the Group
continues to, during the year, update and expand the variety of
books and magazines in our library to cover different topics.

The Group advocates a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities. The Group complies strictly to equal
opportunities legislation, such as the Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Race Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance
and Family Status Discrimination Ordinance. To ensure diversity and
equality, we recruit, remunerate and promote employees based on
their experience, skills and performance, without prejudice to age,
race, disability, gender or family status. In addition, the Group is
strongly committed to compliance with relevant laws and regulations
and does not engage in any forced or child labour.

The Group upholds high standards of business ethics and promotes
good personal conduct of its employees. Our Personal Conduct and
Staff Conduct Code in the Human Resources Policies and Procedure
Manual, can be easily accessed by staff members through our
intranet.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)
Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to all employees and on-site staff. We regularly monitor
our work environment and staff facilities. The Group has stringent
regulation for employees who are assigned to work on construction
sites to minimise and prevent exposure to occupational hazards and
to ensure a high standard of occupational safety. Safety and health
care trainings are provided from time to time for newcomers and
relevant personnel at our construction sites so as to improve their
awareness on safety in a working environment. Moreover, we offer,
and it is mandatory for our colleagues on sites to use, special safety
equipment such as safety helmets, ear plugs, dust masks, goggles
and safety shoes. Additional rest periods and shelters, ventilation
facilities and potable water for workers are also provided during
hot weather.

Occupational Health and Safety Committee

Our property management business has obtained OHSAS18001
as a recognition of its compliance with occupational health and
safety requirements since 2006. Head office and selected sites are
audited periodically by the British Standards Institution for renewal
of the certificate. We have a Safety Committee which consists
of property management staff members from head office and
site level operation staff which formulates site safety measures
and policies. Regular meetings are scheduled every 3 months for
post-implementation review of audited sites, as well as information
exchange on accidents or injuries and precautionary measures that
have been taken by each of the audited sites. Trainings are organised
in each audited site every 3 months to enhance their awareness
of occupational safety. We have maintained a low accident rate in
our audited sites last year. Further, one of our group companies
is the Immediate Past President of the Hong Kong Association of
Property Management Companies which promotes the importance
of occupational safety through organising various occupational
safety-related activities.

Site Safety Subgroup

Our construction and engineering business ensures site safety
inspections are carried out on a regular basis and any finding in
major breaches and unsafe condition are rectified promptly. The
site safety subgroup, comprised of representatives from our project
companies and subcontractors, and operation meetings are held
frequently.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B)SOCIAL (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training

The Group recognises that the knowledge and skills of our
employees are vital to the Group's continued business development
and success, we, therefore, encourage our staff to pursue further
with their professional development. The Group nominates staff to
attend internal and external training programs from time to time
and when appropriate. Our training programs also range from
professional and technical training to personal development skills.
The Group also provides education subsidies to encourage staff
in further developing their skills and broaden their knowledge.
To continuously attract new talents, the Group also organises
apprenticeship programs and provides apprentices with on-the-job
training.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group carefully selects qualified suppliers to ensure that the
entire production process is in line with our standards and rules.
We not only request our new suppliers to submit a review of all
relevant documents, but also conduct rigorous check to assess their
reliability. We carry out inspections and assessments regularly to
review the suppliers’ standards and terminate collaboration with
unqualified suppliers.

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its relationship with
subcontractors and suppliers through an efficient procurement
system. We have also adopted systems for competitive tendering
and subcontractors’ performance monitoring and reporting.
The Group conducts regular reviews of terms and conditions of
subcontracts and supply contracts between the Group and our
subcontractors and suppliers which enables the development of
effective and strong partnerships. Such reviews cover the potential
enhancement of social, ethical, environmental and gender equality
criteria in subcontracts and supply contracts.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that good customer and after-sales services
are keys to the success and sustainability of the Group. In order
to cater for prompt response in meeting with the needs of our
customers, the Group has, therefore, set up customer service
teams for its different business units to handle customers’ queries
efficiently.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group respects the privacy of personal data and has developed
policies on the collection and usage of personal data. Review and
revision of the personal data and privacy policy are carried out to
ensure its effectiveness and compliance with relevant laws.

For our property management business, the Group discusses issues
with site managers and members of the Safety Committee, and
regularly provides updates to site managers and/or person-in-charge
for maintaining the recognition of ISO9001, ISO14001, OHSAS18001
or to fulfil statutory requirements. The Group also reminds site
managers to regularly review existing contractors’ terms and take
necessary precaution measures whenever applicable.

Customer needs and satisfaction have always been the priorities of
the Group. Our information technology related businesses provide
comprehensive order processing, fulfilment and back-office services
to consumers. Our customer service centre provides a wide range
of information and assistance to answer customers’ inquiries and to
offer repair and maintenance services to consumers.

Anti-Corruption

The Group adheres to stringent anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in the Group’s Human Resources
Policies and Procedure Manual that includes conflicts of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and confidentiality of information,
bribery and corruption and equal opportunities. As part of the
Group's orientation, new employees receive anti-corruption training.
The Group's gift policy under the “Acceptance of Advantage in
Employment” clearly states the required process and procedure for
handling and accepting gifts and advantages. No cases of corruption
were reported within the Group during the year under review.

Community
Community Investment

The Group has dedicated itself to take up its corporate social
responsibility for the communities where it is present. It strives
to repay society by participating in community services, charitable
sponsorships, in education, cultural and sports activities and in the
promotion of environmental protection.
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(B)SOCIAL (CONTINUED)

Community (continued)
Community Investment (continued)

To support the development of community services, the Group
sponsored a variety of charitable events during the year under
review, including “SPS 20th Anniversary Charity Show" organised
by Suicide Prevention Services and "ACCA Community Day”
organised by the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
The Group also made donations to different non-profit organisations,
including Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong Asthma Society and Sudden
Arrhythmia Death Syndromes HK Foundation. In addition, the Group
and Hong Kong Red Cross jointly organised the “Chevalier Blood
Donation Day” to help people in need. The Group’s contribution
to and care for the society is recognised and the Group has been
conferred the award of “Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service since 2011.

Education and Culture

The Group strives to cultivate young talents and enrich educational
opportunities by sponsoring educational programs of all kinds.
The Group financed the scholarship scheme of CMA Secondary
School Education Trust and Vocation Training Council’s Outstanding
Industrial Attachment Scholarships. In addition, the “Chevalier
Culture & Education Foundation” aims to foster cultural, academic
and educational exchanges amongst Hong Kong and other countries.
The Group is also the Platinum Sponsor of Opera Hong Kong which
promotes art development and foster public’s interest in the field.

Sports and Environment

The Group has been a long-time patron of the Hong Kong Jockey
Club's “Chevalier Cup Race Day” Moreover, the Group also
supported other sports activities such as “The Community Chest
Corporate Challenge” organised by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong and “Construction Industry 2017 Happy Run” organised by
Construction Industry Council.

The Group is committed to building a green community. We
participated in the “Charter on External Lighting” launched by The
Environment Bureau in order to minimise light nuisance and energy
wastage. Moreover, the Group has a committed partnership with
WWEF and we actively participated in events organised by WWEF, such
as "WWHF Run for Change 2016@Tolo Harbour"

Volunteering

In order to take the initiative in serving the community, the Group
has in place a volunteer team — "“Chevalier Cares” since 2011.
During the year under review, Chevalier Cares arranged various
visits with the non-profit organisations such as the Hong Kong
Young Women's Christian Association, Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society, Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong and Wai Ji
Christian Service. It participated in different voluntary programs and
served those in need including the elderly, children, disabled and
low income families.
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The Board presents to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are shown on pages 166 to 172.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2017, analysed by operating segments, are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the businesses of the Group during the year, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred subsequent
to the year ended 31 March 2017 (if any), a description of principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and discussion on the Group’s
prospects are provided in the Letter to Shareholders on pages 8 to
9, Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 14, Financial
Review on pages 15 to 20 and note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, discussions on the Group's compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group, relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental policy
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report and Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 30 to 42 and pages 43 to 49
respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 68. The Board
now recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.40 (2016:
HK$0.50) per share in cash payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 8
September 2017 Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2016:
HK$0.20) per share paid on Wednesday, 21 December 2016, the total
dividends for the year amounted to HK$0.60 (2016: HK$0.70) per share.

Subject to the approval by shareholders at the AGM, the proposed final
dividend will be payable in cash to shareholders on or about Friday, 15
September 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
25 August 2017 to Wednesday 30 August 2017 both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24 August 2017

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend (subject
to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Wednesday, 6 September 2017 to Friday, 8 September
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
5 September 2017

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the year are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 34 and note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2017 the Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$1,307773,000 (2016: HK$1,218,844,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2017
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial summary and financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 5 and on pages 15 to 20 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's purchases for the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers was less than 30% while the Group’s revenue for
the year attributable to the Group's five largest customers and largest
customers were 39% and 17% respectively. None of the Directors,
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
any shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company) as at 31 March 2017
has any interest in the Group's five largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are
set out on pages 26 to 29.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 3,200 full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2017 Total staff costs amounted
to HK$935 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 The remuneration
policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature
of job, market trend, company performance and individual performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis,
medical schemes and retirement schemes.

The remuneration package of the Directors and the senior management
is based on their contribution to the performance of the Group and is
supervised by the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$7233,000 to
charitable bodies.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against
such rights under the laws in Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-Laws, every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang
Mr TAM Kwok Wing
Mr HO Chung Leung
Mr MA Chi Wing
Miss Lily CHOW

(Co-Chairman)
(Co-Chairman and Managing Director)
(Deputy Managing Director)

Non-Executive Directors

Dr KO Chan Gock, William
Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles

Professor POON Chung Kwong

Mr Irons SZE (appointed on 25 November 2016)
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George (retired on 2 September 2016)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr
Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr Ma Chi Wing, Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles and
Mr Irons Sze shall retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible,
may offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive
Directors.

The Board had been informed that Dr Chow Yei Ching will not offer
himself for re-election and accordingly will retire as Co-Chairman and
Executive Director and cease to be the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company after the conclusion of the AGM. Save
for Dr Chow, the other retiring Directors, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out in the “Management Profile” section on
pages 21 to 25.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party Transactions” in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company's
business to which the Company's subsidiaries was a party or were
parties and in which a director of the Company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQ"), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in the Company - Shares

INTERESTS IN

Personal
interests

BA#R

Name of Directors

EEEE

Capacity

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 189,490,248*
JE 748D EnlEAA

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 153,460

/A EnEBA

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 209,583

EIEIES ERERA

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000

fa] KR EnlAA

*  Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 189,490,248 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 62.76% of the issued share capital of the Company. These shares were
same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Securities” below.

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, no other person has interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “"ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the "MPF Schemes"”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The ORSO
Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both employees
and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee's
basic salary, depending on the length of service with the Group. For
members of the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs per employee, at a maximum of HK$1,500 per
month for the year ended 31 March 2017, to the mandatory contribution
of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage
or sum of the monthly payroll.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$29

million against which no forfeited contributions had been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017 so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders

Capacity
FERR g4

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner
B IR EmEAA
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner
ENESTF EmEAA

*  Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow Yei Ching, is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 189,490,248 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Approximate

Number of Percentage of
Shares held interest %
RGO EE RN %
189,490,248 62.76
189,490,248 62.76
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
March 2017, with deviations from code provisions A.4.1, A.5.1, A.6.7
and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules which have already been stated
in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 42.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of Directors’
biographical details since the date of the Company’'s Interim Report
2016-2017 is set out as follows:

Mr Irons Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of Bel Global
Resources Holdings Limited on 1 February 2017

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of Directors’
biographical details required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the
Company’s share which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares as at 26 June 2017, the
latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior to the issue
of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

KUOK Hoi Sang
Co-Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHEVALIER
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the “Group") set out on pages 68 to 172,
which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

B2 B AR

HETEREEERLARRK
(REFEZEZMAE LA BRAA)

=

IO

EMAEFHANART

HIBREBREGRAR CATHEEIERAR]D &
HIBAR (ATHH [ERE]) JIERFESE
1T2EMEFEMBRE - 8%

e RZZ—+HFZA=+—HNKRETBKRR
&

o BERAIEENGARES
. BEZALEENGASEREE

o BEZRBILFEMNGAEEREHR
s HEZRALFENGARSRER &

s HAMBWMAMIE BEIZFFBEM
o

ERHER

HMRR - ZEGEVBRRERBEEESE

2 ([BEEAMAE]) RN (EERBR
SEAD (TEBMBHREER ) EEMPHIHR
M7 BEEER-_Z—tF=A=+—HHOKSE
SRR EBEZB IFFENGFEE BRI R
FERTRE  YDEREB (RRED) B
BREZREE -

RRNER

HADRIEEE ARG RM (EBEE
A (TEBETER ) ETES - BRAEZFE
AN AN B IR EARSE [RBRRHES A
MEHMRAENEE] BhEE— T -

HPEE - BROPFESHE BB R ES
WABMNETERRHEER -
B/t

REFB G DG RME (FEGEENBIET
ADOATEME PRI - BB BEERE-
WEETTATMEMEREREE -

2017 ik HtEBREEERLT 59



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BIED R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue recognition from construction works;

° Valuation of investment properties;

o Recoverability of properties under development and properties for sale;
o Impairment assessment of goodwill; and

° Deemed acquisition of car dealership business in Mainland China.

Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition from
construction works

Refer to notes 4(h) and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Group recognised revenue from
the construction works of HK$2,780
million.

The recognition of revenue from the
construction works involves a high
degree of management judgement in
relation to the determination of gross
profit margin of each construction
contract, which is determined based
on the estimated total construction
costs, estimated total construction
contract sum (including variation
orders and claims), as well as
the percentage of completion of
construction works. Most of the
construction works take more than
one year to complete during which the
project scope may change from time
to time. Management estimate the
contract revenue and budgeted cost at
the commencement of the contracts
and regularly reassess these amounts
and the financial impact with reference
to the progress of construction works.

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
recognition of revenue from construction
works included:

e Tested the key controls around the
construction cycle with particular
focus on, but not limited to,
controls over cost budgeting and
periodic review of estimated total
construction costs and contract
sum;

e In our testing of management's
estimation on gross profit margin
of each construction contract,
which is determined based on
the total construction costs, total
construction contract sum and
the percentage of completion of
construction works at the end of
the reporting period, we selected a
number of construction works on a
sample basis and:

e discussed with management
and the respective project
teams on the progress of the
projects;

e assessed management's
estimates in relation to matters
that may impact the estimated
contract sum and contract
costs arising from the variation

60 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FARENEE

FAsRERT FIRERBR I RZHAE - R

EIZN

MM BHRRNETRAERNTR - BLE

HRERMETZES

BEMBmREHAB R

EITRERN - AT EHELEHERERERBNE

B

B EETPEIWERETFEMANT

. BRETRENKRARER

. REWENGEE

. BEPWERFEW AT IEE

. BEEHRENE &

. 8RS T B AT E IR T -
BMHES 0

HEBEER EERREETER

BETENRARR

FLEGAVB]ME

M54 (h) 126

HEz-_ZT—+tF=
A=+ —HL®#F
I EEERRAE
HETEHRABE
27.80187T °

BETIRENOKRAER

BREEERSER
EANENENET
ER B EHE - HE
NIRRT
HErBESNERE
(BHREEHITERR
B) A REETRST
ITEDLTURERE -
ARBOREETIEFR
FHEs—FxT N
ZHEEBHENE
THEEEFH  ERER
B KRR £ R (il At
AR WA K TEE K
N WSEFETIZ
HEEERELZS
SRENMBTE -

HPStHERERE
ETREMRARERN
RFEE:

o EHBITENRER
B 32 R A P
EFHREAR AR
BHZEHRATE
B NGE AT iR
i

s NAREERENSE
EREANNERN
R(EREEBARK
- BRESHNEE
A R 7 5 B R Y
BETEZXTIAESD
LT LAREE) P {E
EETE - HAPYIR T
BARERETZ

BT I

e HEEERSE
B H BB
HEEE



Key Audit Matter

Due to the existence of significant
management judgement required to
determine the amount and timing
of revenue recognised from the
construction works, we considered it
a key audit matter.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 4(a) and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group's investment properties
were carried at HK$3,833 million as at
31 March 2017 and a revaluation gain
of HK$226 million was recognised in
the consolidated income statement
as part of other gains, net. The
Group’s investment property portfolio
comprises of commercial, residential
and industrial properties in Hong Kong,
the Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

to the original contracts,
such as, claims, disputes,
variation orders and liquidation
damages with reference to
the correspondence between
the Group, subcontractors
and suppliers which support
management’'s estimate of
changes to construction works;

e tested the actual costs incurred
on construction works during
the reporting period by tracing
to supporting documents
including architect's certificates
issued to subcontractors and
invoices from subcontractors
and suppliers;

e recalculated the revised
percentage of completion based
on the latest estimated total
construction sum and the actual
construction revenue certified by
the architect; and

e recalculated the construction
costs recognised based on
the revised percentage of
completion.

We consider management’s estimates
in determining the budgeted revenue
and costs and the percentage of
completion of construction works and
revenue recognised to be supported by
the available evidence.

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
valuation of investment properties included:

e Evaluating the independent valuers'
competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

e Obtaining the valuation report
including the market comparable
data used and meeting with
independent valuers to discuss the
valuation methodologies;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BIED R &

Key Audit Matter

Management has engaged independent
external valuers, to estimate the
fair value of the Group's investment
properties as at 31 March 2017 based on
the income capitalisation approach and
where appropriate, direct comparison
approach.

The valuation of investment properties
depends on certain key assumptions
that require significant management
judgement, including capitalisation
rates and prevailing market rents.

Due to the existence of significant
management judgement in assumptions
used in the valuation of investment
properties we considered it a key audit
matter.

Recoverability of properties under
development and properties for sale

Refer to notes 4(f), 21 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group had HK$1,077 million and
HK$378 million of properties under
development and properties for sale
respectively as at 31 March 2017
The Group's development properties
portfolio comprises of completed
properties and properties under
development in the Mainland China.

Management assessed the recoverability
of properties under development
and properties for sale based on an
estimation of the net realisable value
of the underlying properties which
involves considerable analyses of the
current market price of properties of
a comparable standard and location,
construction costs to be incurred to
complete the development and a
forecast of future selling price.

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

e Checking the accuracy of input
data, on a sample basis, used by
the independent valuers including
rental income and occupancy
rates by agreeing them back to
management'’s records, historical
actual information or other
supporting documentation including
key terms of lease agreements and
rental income schedules; and

e Involved our internal valuation
experts to assess the methodologies
used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions used in the
valuation of properties by comparing
the data used by the independent
valuers against the published
market vyields for capitalisation
rates, prevailing market rents of
leasing transactions of comparable
properties and recent market
transaction prices of properties
with comparable conditions and
locations, where appropriate.

We consider management's valuation of
investment properties to be supported
by the available evidence.

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment on the recoverability of
properties under development and properties
for sale included:

e Testing the key controls around the
property construction cycle with
particular focus on, but not limited
to, controls over cost budgeting for
estimated costs to completion; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of
key assumptions used/adopted in
management’s assessment, on a
sample of properties selected,
including:

e expected future sales prices
which we compared to the
contracted sales price of the
underlying properties or current
market prices of properties
with comparable standards and
locations, where applicable;
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Key Audit Matter

If the actual net realisable values of
the underlying stock of properties are
more or less than expected as a result
of changes in market condition and/
or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material reversal
of or provision for impairment losses
may result.

Due to the existence of estimation
uncertainty and management judgement
in assessing the recoverability of
properties under development and
properties for sale, we considered it a
key audit matter.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to notes 4(c) and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group had HK$565 million of
goodwill as at 31 March 2017 relating
to the senior housing business in
United States of America.

Management assessed whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units (“CGU") have been
determined by management based
on value-in-use calculations. The value
in use calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets
approved by management which
involve the use of judgement applied
by management such as determining
discount rate and net operating
income.

Due to the existence of estimation
uncertainty and management judgement
in assessing the potential impairment
of goodwill we considered it a key audit
matter.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

e anticipated cost to completion
and committed contracts,
for which we compared total
construction costs to latest
approved budgets and checked
those budgets to supporting
documentations such as signed
contracts.

We found that management’s assessment
on recoverability of properties under
development and properties for sale is
supportable in light of available evidence.

The procedures performed to assess
the methodologies and assumptions
used by management in the impairment
assessment of goodwill are summarised
below:

e Testing the key controls surrounding

the impairment assessment
process;
e FEvaluated the valuation

methodologies used in the
impairment assessment prepared
by management;

e Agreed the input data used by
management to supporting evidence
such as actual results, financial
budgets approved by management
and other supporting documents;
and

e Assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions such as discount rate
and net operating income applied by
management including discussion
with management to understand
and evaluate management's basis
for selecting the assumptions,
compared the current year actual
results with the prior year forecast
and benchmarked to available
market information to assess the
reasonableness of management
forecasts.

We considered the assumptions used
by management in the impairment
assessment of goodwill to be supported
by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

Deemed acquisition of car dealership
business in the Mainland China

Refer to notes 4(j) and 36(b)(i) to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group holds 40% equity interest
in Qi Yang Chevalier Investment
Company Limited (“Qi Yang”), an
associate of the Group. The remaining
60% equity interest is held by a
Mainland China business partner.
Qi Yang and its group companies
(collectively “Qi Yang Group”) is
engaged in car dealership business in
the Mainland China.

During the vyear, the Group and the
Mainland China business partner
agreed to implement certain changes
to the board compositions of Qi Yang
and its wholly owned subsidiary.
As a result of the changes in board
composition, the Group obtained
control over the relevant activities of
Qi Yang and its subsidiaries.

Since the Group obtained control
over Qi Yang, Qi Yang became a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, the transaction is regarded
as a business combination which
requires identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed to be measured initially at
their fair values at the date on which
control is obtained.

Accounting for the business combination
of Qi Yang is an area of focus because
of the critical accounting estimates
and judgements involved in (i) the
assessment of control over Qi Yang,
and (i) the valuation of the assets and
liabilities that are recognised at the
deemed acquisition date and the fair
value of the previously held interest in
QiYang.

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

We performed the following procedures
to assess (i) the Group's control of Qi
Yang and (ii) the key assumptions used
in assessing the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of the Qi Yang Group
recognised at the deemed acquisition
date and the previously held interest
in Qi Yang:

e Obtained and inspected relevant
documents, contracts and
agreements related to the change
of control over the relevant activities
of QiYang Group and discussed with
management to understand how to
carry out the control;

e Assessed the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
management’s external valuer;

e Obtained the valuation report
and discussed with the external
valuer the methodologies and key
assumptions used; and

e Involved our internal valuation
experts to evaluate the
methodologies and assumptions
used to determine the fair values of
(i) assets and liabilities recognised
at the deemed acquisition date and
(i) the previously held interest in Qi
Yang.

Based on the procedures performed
above, we consider the change of
control and key assumptions used in
assessing the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of Qi Yang Group, and the
previously held interest in Qi Yang, to
be supported by the evidence obtained.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BIED R &

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cho Kin Lun.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

me W@k

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE_Z—+F=ZA=T—RHILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Other gains/(losses), net
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before taxation

Taxation
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— basic (HK$ per share)

— diluted (HK$ per share)

The notes on pages 76 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

Note
h=a
WA 6
SHEKAR
EF
EmUA - JFEE 7
Hibless /(E518) @ JF58 8
HE RS A
T
KR T
FThEt & N R E4E 18
Frib e B hEER 19
B AU A 9
B 7% 8 A 9
MKER - F8E 9
B 75t BT e 10
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IEFRAR M
BRER
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RS -

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

BEET I

4,759,376 5,637,763
(4,015,070) (4,325,855)
744,306 1,211,908
106,219 63,410
202,663 (130,842)
(101,223) (451,869)
(217,853) (239,510
734,112 453,097
87,922 116,932
(4,672) (25,407)
817,362 544,622
19,333 23,646
(93,538) (105,156)
(74,205) (81,510)
743,157 463,112
(132,025) (102,966)
611,132 360,146
540,263 315,056
70,869 45,090
611,132 360,146
1.79 1.05
1.79 1.05
T6EE172B 2 M Dt SR a M HkEk 248



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEEEWER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=ZA=1t—HLFE

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T
Profit for the year FERR 611,132 360,146
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) FEHMEEmKE (ZH)
for the year
Item that may not be reclassified to profit or loss AHRrEENBEERENER
Fair value surplus of properties for own use BRYEZ AR BERR 94,395 55,564
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEenkEERREZERNER
to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of BREEIINMEB AR - BE AR R
operations of overseas subsidiaries, AEDECEBEEZ
associates and joint ventures HNE H A Z 5 (237,786) (147,073)
Share of other comprehensive expense Firt —EE & QA RIAY
of an associate Etem s i - (3,865)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEZIREN DR EEE
investments 9,506 (48,538)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AR E 2 IR E R EE S
transferred to consolidated income statement R EREWNESE 5,676 17,160
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial BE AR S REL PNITEN S
instruments designated as cash flow hedge T EBF Kis B & ix B HNE
in respect of interest rate swap and foreign BRI R EFE
currency forward contracts 4,985 (6,857)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year, FEEMEPEIE  BREEZ
net of tax (123,224) (133,609)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EKREE 487,908 226,537
Attributable to: B
Shareholders of the Company AN E R ER 429,878 191,272
Non-controlling interests eI 58,030 35,265
487,908 226,537
Note: BRE -
Items shown within other comprehensive income/(expenses) are disclosed net of tax. REME2ERA (ZH) FrRZEE HRNBFER
W -

The notes on pages 76 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FICAR1T2AZMEINEFREMBFHRE A
statements. BE S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B EEIR R 3R

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
R-Z—tF=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Properties under development
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Inventories
Properties for sale
Properties under development
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from customers
for contract work
Derivative financial instruments
Prepaid tax
Bank balances and cash

Assets held-for-sale

Current liabilities

Amount due to an associate

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amounts due to non-controlling interests

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Derivative financial instruments

Creditors, bills payable, deposits
and accruals

Unearned insurance premiums
and unexpired risk reserves

Outstanding insurance claims

Deferred income

Current income tax liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Liabilities directly associated with
assets held-for-sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

wEME

WE - BB RRE
kS
HAO MBI A

L NIA £
AEME T En
AN EZRE
BRAME
REBIEE &=
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RBAEE

JRE Wi gt = X ] BR R

FEUT & & DR BRR

JRE Wi SE 2 P A 2 AR K
BARBEIIANERREZRE
FE
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YRR - 7 hiR® R IAF0R
A # TIZERE P WELZ 5RIA

PIAEMBTA

TESTHIA
RITEFLRS

FHEHEEE

REBEE

JE AN — R & 2 R AR R

BB SRR

JE AN SR IR M 25 AR X

AN TRREREP SN Z5R

TEFBTA

P BRAR - I ZRIR
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RIEUA

EHMRENHAE
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HREERRBRE

70  CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

44

18
19

27

28

31

32

44

2017 2016
= ZTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
3,832,583 3,663,625
2,330,127 1,899,365
629,741 629,014
9,386 3,135
518,705 921,070
591,623 520,705
124,154 129,428
565,828 1,128,747
26,815 18,547
82,837 121,123
8,711,799 9,034,759
14,985 18,074
7,828 59
71,862 25,039
554,771 505,848
298,999 136,317
377,635 1,233,028
511,116 342,077
1,392,534 1,087,487
114,795 119,283
97 1,606

11,782 6,834
1,761,632 2,009,282
5,118,036 5,484,934
1,233,787 -
6,351,823 5,484,934
- 240

1,581 53,230
260,964 -
555,512 934,670
2,974 9,557
1,921,861 1,297,737
60,279 80,976
305,272 352,519
21,158 17,227
74,798 62,964
520,247 960,852
3,724,646 3,769,972
148,268 -
3,872,914 3,769,972
2,478,909 1,714,962
11,190,708 10,749,721




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
RZE—tF=R=+—H

2017 2016
=2—+F —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Capital and reserves BRAR &
Share capital ik 33 377,411 377,411
Reserves i 34 7,592,045 7,372,273
Shareholders’ funds RRES 7,969,456 7,749,684
Non-controlling interests AR 533,863 488,571
Total equity R 8,503,319 8,238,255
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Unearned insurance premiums EE(RR & 44,705 80,560
Bank and other borrowings AT R E AR IETR 32 2,270,192 2,151,684
Deferred tax liabilities RILHIEA & 35 372,492 279,222
2,687,389 2,511,466
Total equity and non-current liabilities HERRERBERE 11,190,708 10,749,721
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2017 and signed on KEFERN_T—LFAZT/NARE - Ah
its behalf by: THESERRESE
KUOK Hoi Sang HO Chung Leung
BEE R
Director Director
2 EZE

The notes on pages 76 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FICHR12AEZMEINFREMBFHRE A
statements. A o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE_Z—+F=ZA=T—RHILFE

Equity
attributable to Non-
shareholders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
P NS
EihER IR R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BETT
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—-XFEMA—H 7,749,684 488,571 8,238,255
Profit for the year FIE T 540,263 70,869 611,132
Fair value surplus of properties BRMEZ AR ERG
for own use 94,395 - 94,395
Exchange difference on translation BREFINNB AR
of operations of overseas BENTREE
subsidiaries, associates and 7 EBAESL
joint ventures ZONE N R = ER (224,947) (12,839) (237,786)
Change in fair value of AHEEZRER
available-for-sale investments NAREESH 9,506 - 9,506
Impairment loss on available-forsale  AJ{#tH & 2 &)
investments transferred BERBEERE
to consolidated income statement ImelEX 5,676 - 5,676
Fair value adjustments on EERBSREL HH
the derivative financial instruments PTHEM B TAEEH
designated as cash flow hedge T =4 HA K7 3 BRONGE
in respect of interest rate swap BHNRN R ERAE
and foreign currency forward
contracts 4,985 - 4,985
Total comprehensive income FELEKRBE
for the year 429,878 58,030 487,908
Dividends paid BB A (211,350) - (211,350)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT P IR R 2 B
interests - (17,536) (17,536)
Capital contributions by non-controlling JE{Z i 4 25 & A& A
interests - 5,159 5,159
Deemed acquisition of QiYang Group 3 AUEZGEE - 21,305 21,305
Disposals of HE
- Wonder — Wonder 1,509 (21,651) (20,142)
— other subsidiaries — EAbIE AR (265) (15) (280)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tH=A=+—H 7,969,456 533,863 8,503,319
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity
attributable to
shareholders of
the Company
AR TRE
EihER
HK$'000
BT T

=) 5 3£ 4
REEEEER
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity

FFIER
HK$'000

BT T

HK$'000
BT T

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—-HFMA—H 7,889,251 509,498 8,398,749
Profit for the year FIE i F 315,056 45,090 360,146
Fair value surplus of properties BRMEZ AR ERG

for own use 55,564 - 55,564
Exchange difference on translation BREFINNB AR -
of operations of overseas NI Yy
subsidiaries, associates and 7 EBAESL
joint ventures ZINE H AR (137,248) (9,825) (147,073)
Share of other comprehensive Pl — Rt & R R1AY
expense of an associate HEtamZd (3,865) - (3,865)
Change in fair value of AHEEZIRER
available-for-sale investments NREZE (48,538) - (48,538)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  AJEHE Z EHK
investments transferred WEBERERE
to consolidated income statement melER 17160 - 17,160
Fair value adjustments on BERBSREH A
the derivative financial instruments TEMBTIERHA
designated as cash flow hedge FRimHEA 408
in respect of interest rate N EFHE
swap contracts (6,857) - (6,857)
Total comprehensive income FEXERZLE
for the year 191,272 35,265 226,537
Dividends paid BT S (360,377) - (360,377)
Issue of shares under scrip RIE AR BT 813 1TRY 5
dividend schemes 26,295 - 26,295
Deemed disposal of interest R HE Tt Cafe Deco
in Cafe Deco P 3,243 (42,270) (39,027)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B T IR i 2 IR B
interests - (14,355) (14,355)
Capital contributions by non-controlling JE#% i #E 25 E A& A
interests - 433 433
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—R"E=A=+—H 7,749,684 488,571 8,238,255
The notes on pages 76 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial EBI6EE172B 2 M It Eira MRk 248
statements. KEBS °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.r\/\iﬁrﬁlﬂl;%%%

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE_Z—+F=ZA=T—RHILFE

2016
—EF
HK$'OOO
/E, L :FTE
Operating activities REEK
Cash generated from operations REEEZHRE 36(a) 314,172 335,046
Interest paid BRFE (105,627) (114,252)
Profits tax paid E%ﬁﬁf' %R (82,402) (83,336)
Profits tax refund & 613 3,406
Net cash from operating activities REREEK 2B FE 126,756 140,864
Investing activities REEW
Interest received B UFE 19,333 23,646
Dividends received from associates B E R E 2R E 218,225 102,454
Dividends received from investments BUIRE 2 RS 10,538 22,687
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (9,628) -
Proceeds from disposal of an HE—BIREME Z FTSHE
investment property 5,973 6,052
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREE (44,874) (66,085)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEME  BMEIEREZ
and equipment Fr8 58 3,753 2,364
Purchase of intangible assets E%Eﬁﬁxéf? (6,749) (137)
Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group BREEZGER 36(b) (i) 120,309 -
Disposal of Wonder H & Wonder 36(b)(ii) 30,284 -
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco R HEFE Cafe DecoZ i 36(b)(iii) - (24,563)
Acquisition of Dolce Field U ER B 36/(b)(iv) = 2,304
Capital contributions by JEE R R EANIEA
non-controlling interests 5,159 433
Investment in an associate R—EBE AR ZIRE - (9,450)
Advances to associates mEE R B FTTEZ B3R - (38,564)
Repayments from associates REHE QR 2 EERE 2,848 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate H & —fEi SN[ 2 FriS s - 300
Advances to joint ventures A%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’FZ% b4 (7.600) (13,529)
Repayments to joint ventures ERAEDEZR 4,099 -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BB A ﬁﬁz%xé - (769)
Proceeds from disposals of HEREEZIRE ZFEHRIE
available-for-sale investments 14,780 23,907
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits flﬂ{é: FIE 2 SRITIF R
maturing after three months A (3EmM) 283,920 (196,612)
Net cash from/(used in) investing RE (AR REEK 2
activities REFE 650,370 (165,562)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =]}
mERERER
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE_Z—+tF=-A=-+—HLFE

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T
Financing activities AME XK
Dividends paid BfRE (211,350) (334,082)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT T IR R 2 AR B (17,536) (14,355)
Drawn down of bank and other borrowings  12EURTT R H b &% 2,327513 868,672
Repayments of bank and other borrowings &8 R17 & B &% (2,723,661) (1,333,745)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T RE N (72,457) (189,845)
Net cash used in financing activities AREEEBE RS FH (697,491) (1,003,355)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERBSESEYEN(BD)
cash equivalents 79,635 (1,028,053)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNZHERREZEEY
of the year 1,374,081 2,413,878
Bank balances and cash transferred RITEFTRERE 44
to assets held-for-sale BIEHEEEZRS (110,004) -
Effect of changes in foreign NEBERBE 2L
exchange rates (5,818) (11,744)
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERZEERBESEEY
of the year 1,337,894 1,374,081
Analysis of balances of cash and RERBEEEYZEFTIN
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash wITEFRAS 29 1,761,632 2,009,282
Less: Pledged bank deposits o BEARITIFR (405,867) (333,410)
Less: Unpledged bank deposits A ZE A& B 2 EIEHRRTT
maturing after three months TR (17,871) (301,791)
1,337,894 1,374,081

The notes on pages 76 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FICAR1T2AZMEINEFREMBHRE A
statements. BE S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar B RS RAR  RE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1

76

BT HFZA=T+—RIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public listed
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and 22nd Floor,
Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 26 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, staff quarters,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss.

As at 31 March 2017 the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by HK$155,115,000. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going concern
taking into account committed available banking facilities and cash flows
from operations and consequently prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) New standard, amendments and improvement to existing
standards that are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 April 2016

The following new standard, amendments and improvement to
existing standards, that are relevant to the Group's operation, are
mandatory for the financial year of the Group beginning on 1 April
2016:

e HKAS 1 (amendment), “Disclosure initiative”

e HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (amendment), “Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation”

e HKAS 27 (2011) (amendment), “Equity method in separate
financial statements”

e HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (amendment), “Investment
entities — Applying the consolidation exception”

e HKFRS 11 (amendment), “Accounting for acquisition of interests
in joint operation”

e HKFRS 14, "Regulatory deferral accounts”

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the new standard, amendments and improvement
to existing standards does not have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated results and financial position nor any substantial
changes in the Group's accounting policies and the presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE-_Z—+F=-A=+—RILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE_Z—+F=A=1T—RHILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that have been issued but not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following new standards, amendments and improvements to
existing standards, that are relevant to the Group's operation, have
been issued but not yet effective for the financial year of the Group
beginning on 1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 7 (amendment), “Disclosure initiative™'

HKAS 12 (amendment), “Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses”!

HKFRS 4 (amendment), “Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”?

HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial instruments”?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (amendment), “Sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture”*

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”?

HKFRS 15 (amendment), “Clarification of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers”?

HKFRS 16, “Leases”®

Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS 2014-
2016 Cycle ®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

The amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018; whereas the amendments to HKFRS
12 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE-_Z—+F=-A=+—RILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) REEE ()
(i) EMHEREREAEELER

(ii) New standards, amendments and improvements to existing

standards that have been issued but not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

The Group will adopt the above new standards, amendments and
improvements to existing standards as and when they become
effective. The Group is currently assessing the potential impact of
these new standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards but expects their adoption will not have significant effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements except as set out
below.

HKFRS 9, "Financial instruments’ addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. It replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes
three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. There is now a new expected credit losses
model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in
HKAS 39, which is based on the change in credit quality of financial
assets since initial recognition.

As at the reporting date, the Group is not yet in a position to
estimate the impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group’'s consolidated
financial statements. The Group will continue to make more detailed
assessments of the impact.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” replaces HKAS
18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining when to recognise revenue and how much revenue
to recognise through a 5-step approach: (i) identity the contract(s)
with customer; (ii) identify separate performance obligations in a
contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate transaction
price to performance obligations; and (v) recognise revenue when
performance obligation is satisfied. The core principal is that a
company should recognise revenue when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer.

As at the reporting date, the Group is not yet in a position to
estimate the impact of HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
financial statements. The Group will continue to make more detailed
assessments of the impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

80

(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that have been issued but not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing
activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from
HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for on
the consolidated statements of financial position for lessees. The
Group is a lessee of certain office which are currently classified
as operating leases. HKFRS 16 provides a new provision for the
accounting treatment of leases when the Group is the lessee, almost
all leases must be recognised in the form of an asset (for the right
of use) and a financial liability (for the payment obligation). The new
standard will therefore result in an increase in assets and financial
liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position. As for
the financial performance impact in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, straight-line depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset and the interest expenses on the lease liability are
recognised and no rental expenses will be recognised. Based on the
Group’s undiscounted operating lease commitment as at 31 March
2017, the management expects HKFRS 16 will not have significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE-_Z—+F=-A=+—RILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b) 5Bk E &8 ()

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the carrying value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries
are stated at costs less impairment losses. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable
during the year.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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(CONTINUED)

(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint
venture, representing the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group's interest in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree at the date of acquisition.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at the fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportional share of the recognised amount of
acquiree's net identifiable assets. If the Group recognises non-controlling
interest in the acquiree at fair value, goodwill includes the portion
attributable to the non-controlling interest.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill arising on
an acquisition of an associate or a joint venture is included in the cost of
the investment of the relevant associate or joint venture.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is included in
investments in respective associates and joint ventures and is tested for
impairment as part of the overall balance. For the purposes of impairment
testing, separately recognised goodwill arising from an acquisition is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint venture,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an
associate or a joint venture represents the excess of the share of net
fair value of an acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of the
acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be measured
reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair value at the
date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of profit or loss and
of changes in other comprehensive income of the associates, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of loss of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of loss is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, unrealised
profit and loss are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised loss provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the
full amount of loss is recognised. Accounting policies of the associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interests in associates
are stated at costs less impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted by the Company for on the basis of dividend received and
receivable during the year.

(e) Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control and over which none of the participating parties has
unilateral control.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified either
as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor has.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator recognises
its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities
(including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including
its share of revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation)
and its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred jointly).
Each joint operator accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as
revenue and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in
accordance with the applicable standards.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Joint arrangements (continued)

84

(f)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest
in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, is cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(f) BMIETH (&)
(i) Financial assets (i) MEEE

The Group's financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of financial
assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amounts due from subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-controlling interests, debtors and
receivables and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

As at 31 March 2017, loans and receivables represented amounts due
from associates, joint ventures and non-controlling interests, debtors
and receivables, bank balances and amounts due from subsidiaries
of the Company.
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(CONTINUED)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories set out
above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are stated at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be reversed
in subsequent periods.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(f) BFIET A (&)
(i) MBEERRATA (&)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including amounts due to joint ventures
and non-controlling interests, creditors and payables, outstanding
insurance claims, bank and other borrowings and amounts due to
subsidiaries of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such derivatives
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of such derivatives
are recognised directly in profit or loss, except for those derivatives
qualified for hedge accounting are recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are separated
from the relevant host contracts and deemed as held-for-trading
when the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts,
and the combined contracts are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss. In all other circumstances, derivatives embedded are
not separated and are accounted for together with the host contracts
in accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group needs
to separate an embedded derivative but is unable to measure the
embedded derivative separately, the entire combined contracts are
treated as designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair values of the derivatives
(excluding the interest component and those derivatives qualified for
hedge accounting) are recognised in other income, net. The interest
component is reported as part of interest income from investments
included in revenue.
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(CONTINUED)

(g) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional valuation conducted
as at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the asset
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

Transfer from an investment property carried at fair value to properties
for sale is at its fair value at the date of change in use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFEEMHME (&)

(CONTINUED)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) Y% - BERR

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses except for staff quarters.

Staff quarters are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Revaluation
are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from the fair value of a revalued asset
at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised
in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset
recognised in equity.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to the retained
profits is made for the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation original cost.
Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal,
any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred to retained profits.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences depreciation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Depreciation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and other
assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
or fair values less their residual values over their estimated useful lives
at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge
Building Over the shorter of 20 to 50 years or

the remaining lease term

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Over the remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, office 10% - 33'/3%

equipment and
motor vehicles

Others 10% — 20%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

20

(i)

(i)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceed and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended for sale upon
completion comprise prepaid lease payments, development expenditure
and borrowing costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net realisable
value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs to complete
development and selling expenses.

(k) Impairment of investments in associates and joint

ventures

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications of
impairment of the Group's investments in associates and joint ventures
primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their businesses.
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these future cash
flows and discount rate. Management estimates the future cash flows
based on certain assumptions, such as revenue growth.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted average method. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds
in the ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses.

(m)Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and buildings
held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The costs of properties for sale comprise cost of acquisition of properties
and related development costs.

(n) Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
as measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out during
the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When
it is probable that estimated total contract costs will exceed estimated
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due
to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customers are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under debtors.

(o) Assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held-for-sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transition
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount
is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in
the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Trade creditors

92

(r

(s) Unearned

—

Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of mortgage
facilities provided by banks to certain property buyers, and credit facilities
provided by financial institutions to its subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and joint venture partner as insurance contracts.

insurance premiums and unexpired risk

reserves

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portions of the
premiums written which relate to periods of insurance subsequent to the
end of the reporting period and are deferred to subsequent accounting
periods. Unearned premiums are computed on the basis of net premiums
written for all classes of insurance. Net premium written represents
gross premiums received or receivable after deducting reinsurance
premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected value of
claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in
force which, at the end of the reporting period, exceeds the unearned
premiums provision in relation to such policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(t) Insurance claims (t) RizRE

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported but
not yet paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR")
as at the end of the reporting period which is calculated with reference
to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and reported.
Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and expenses paid
during the year and the change in the reserve for outstanding claims
during the year. Reserves for outstanding claims are reported on an
undiscounted basis which include reserves for reported claims and
reserves for IBNR claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The reserve of
a reported claim is made by the claims handler based on his experience
and based on the information, documents and the claim amount
submitted by the claimant and is checked by the officer before updating
the information into the claims system. The reserve is reviewed and
revised regularly to reflect the development of the claim and the change
of the market practice.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs a liability
adequacy test to ensure the adequacy of the insurance claim liabilities.
In performing these tests, current best estimates of all future contractual
cash flows are made. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit
or loss.

(u) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

(v) Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured with reference to the value of work carried out during the
period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever is
later.

Income from sale of goods such as information technology equipment,
motor vehicles and food and beverage are recognised when goods are
delivered and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue
is arrived at after deduction of any sales return, discount and value-added
tax.

Income from rendering of services such as provision of maintenance and
property management, warehouse and logistics services and hotel and
senior housing operations are recognised at the time when services are
rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are accounted
for as deferred income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

94

(CONTINUED)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income when
an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note is issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights
to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

(w)Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the statement of financial position as an obligation
under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs as stated in note 2(y) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. Benefits
received and receivables as incentives to enter into operating leases are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease terms on a
straight line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(x) Employee benefits (x) EEEF

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans

Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

(iii)Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an expense
as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

(y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

(z) Taxation

Taxation represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes profit or loss items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

96

(CONTINUED)

(z) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are determined based on
the presumption that the carrying amount of such investment properties
will be recovered through sale with the corresponding tax rate applied.

(aa)Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the exchanges rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value has determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net investment in a
foreign operation, which are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that gain
or loss are also recognised directly in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTHEBE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(aa)Foreign currencies (continued) (aa) 75 (£8)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences so
arising are recognised in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

(ab)impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGU). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

(ac)Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and
other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank and other borrowings, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

98

The Group's major financial

instruments include available-for-sale

investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments, debtors and receivables, creditors and payables,
outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies and
non-controlling interests, bank balances and bank and other borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from derivative financial
instruments, bills payable, floating rates bank and other
borrowings and floating rates bank deposits. Majority of the
Group’s bank and other borrowings carry interests at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The management monitors interest rate exposure and hedges
significant interest rate exposure by using financial instruments
such as interest rate swap contracts. Certain instruments are
qualified for hedge accounting.

As at 31 March 2017 if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by one percentage point and all other variables were
held constant, the post-tax profit of the Group, excluding impact
of fair value changes of derivative financial instruments would
decrease/increase by HK$7,528,000 (2016: HK$10,282,000),
resulting mainly from the change in the borrowing costs of bank
and other borrowings and interest income of bank deposits.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from various currency exposures. Foreign
currency risk arises when the Group's recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies that are not the entities’
functional currency.

The Group's financial assets that are exposed to foreign currency
risk mainly comprise of investments in debt and equity securities,
accounts receivable balances arising from sales to overseas
customers, bank balances and cash and amounts due from
related companies and group companies (on entity level). The
Group's financial liabilities that are exposed to foreign currency
risk mainly comprised of accounts payable balances arising
from purchases from overseas suppliers and amounts due to
group companies (on entity level). It is the Group's policies to
ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and hedges significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts. Certain instruments are
qualified for hedge accounting.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BERMREERERBER (8)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEREAKEZR (8)
(a) TiZEK ()

(i) SMEREFR (&)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than the
functional currencies of the Group’s entities) that are exposed to
foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated in Australian dollar,
Canadian dollar, Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Japanese Yen, Macau
Pataca, Renminbi, Singapore dollar, United States dollar ("US
dollar”) and Vietnam Dong. The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the year are as follows:

The Group
A

Australian dollar BT 17,410
Canadian dollar mExx 183,485
Euro (¢ 5,065
Hong Kong dollar ok 24,577
Japanese Yen H 13,676
Macau Pataca SR HE -
Renminbi AR 318,393
Singapore dollar T 103,711
US dollar e 1,336,590
Vietnam Dong W E 53,338
Others Hith 45,692

TH ER SMNE R R 2 MBI T A
(TEEREELEZEEE)
TE2LURT - IIEATT - BE
B - RE BRI ARK
g~ £t ([Ex]) kil
FEREL - REBINERE
Uz HBEERMBABRER
ZEREEMT

Liabilities
&f&
2017

—E—tF
HK$°000
BETT

(89) (248)
(647) (10,798)
(10,271) (23,006)
(462) (4,587)
(732,406) (423,500)
(105) (1,219)
(21,391) (3,448)
(1,315) (326)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to every
percentage point increase and decrease in the functional currency
of corresponding group entity against the above foreign currency.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for every percentage point increase
in foreign currency rates. Positive numbers below indicate an
increase in profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above
foreign currency strengthens every percentage point against the
functional currency of corresponding group entity.

The Group

rEE

Increase in profit S|4 0
Increase in investment revaluation reserve WA EGHEEEN

TRAVIANEEZAMEEDE
MBS H A EINE 2 BRI
WO—EBE DR BUIRE - HUR
AT R BIER & BRI AN
BEREUZHARBEERMNR
B WERFERIZERSEN—
BEEDHZMETARHE - LT
TEBRRR A £ 518 5 1R A R 5= [
rEZHEEESTE—ERS
BoBRTEERN REEM
FREEFTIEM -

2017
—EF—tF

HK$'000
BT
12,105 19,098

1,242 1,294
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk
The Group are exposed to listed debt and equity securities
price risk because investments held by the Group are classified
on the consolidated statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted debt and equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one percentage
point and all other variables held constant:

- the post-tax profit and investment revaluation reserve
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 would
increase/decrease by HK$3,238,000 and HK$501,000 (2016:
HK$3,265,000 and HK$400,000) as a result of the changes in
fair values of investments at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale investments respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale investments,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments, debtors and receivables, amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling interests and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of
the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable economic
conditions and the lower liquidity situation which could in turn impact
their ability to repay the amounts owed. Deteriorating operating
conditions for debtors may also have an impact on management’s
cash flow forecasts and assessment of the impairment of receivables.
To the extent that information is available, management has properly
reflected revised estimates of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers
in each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to
trade debtors is 60 days, except for insurance business where credit
period granted to certain debtors is over 60 days. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

Amounts due from related companies and non-controlling interests
are continuously monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is
made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, interest receivables
and bank balances are limited to financial institutions or investment
counterparty with high quality. The Group controls its credit risk
to non-performance by its counterparties through monitoring their
credit rating and setting approved counterparty credit limits that
are regularly reviewed. The Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure that
the limits are strictly followed.

The Group has assessed the credit risk arising from guarantees given
to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to certain property
buyers, subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and joint venture
partner taking into consideration the realisable value of the underlying
projects/assets. The Group does not expect any significant credit risk
arising from these guarantees.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual
debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management and
flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents, readily
realisable marketable securities and to have committed short term
and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
committed and uncommitted general credit facilities from banks for
working capital purposes.

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE-_Z—+F=-A=+—RILFE

3 HSEERBFERBER (8)

31 MBEABER (&)
(b) FERER (&)

I M5 [ a2 O B R B4R AR s AR R D
BRAFEXZUF2EEER I
S2EHPBRR - BELRREM
AEMETHEEE MAEFTE
GRMEFFEERDSBEIELRER

e

AEERPEERBRIFZESBEE
FREHFHETEEUHREEZ
RE - BAREINABRRREEZR
B TEMBIA  BRASAK
RITETF - AEEBBETERS
HF2EAFRERZHE FRL
gy TR 2 ERRE &
HEGEERBARG IEEZZHFR
BITE K - WA E TR 8 EM
ERZZZHFRER - 1IN X5
HFHRBEBERRE - BEH
TR - RRERETHRRA

AEECHBEUETETHEE
R WEBAR BERA  aEE
ER—RRECEBHZEERE
MASEEEBRAERMELZE
ERR - EPERIERER &
EMAHRER ASEBEANSE
BERTISELFNERNEERR -

N5 B 3 B R ME A BRI E A SR
FHFEHEANERER

(c) E2RE AR

AEERNRFHEAEZ ELRDAE
R ERREARBRANES 5 ME
v ABERER Y AEESRD A
HEBRPHEREEARKES
&M o

BEAE AKBEERTHEZD

EHERAEE-REERE BN
EN2EETHAE -

2017 Fik H+EBREEEGRLT 101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BHEAMREEEEREEK (8)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEREAKEZR (8)
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) E&REBEAM (&)
The Group's liquidity position and compliance with loan covenants are AAREEERNERAEEZR
monitored closely by the management of the Company. The following BEeRRREBETERLHBBMR
table details the Group's contractual maturity for its financial liabilities TERFANAEERBRERRMBE
at the end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn up based BZEHEEBIER - RIETDIBEAR
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the SEAURHEEREINZERFARZ
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table MBABZAMBRaRNERH -
includes both interest and principal cash flows. XEBEMNERAEZEERE °
Total
Less than 2-5 More than  undiscounted
The Group 1 year 1-2 years years 5 years cash flows
AERES
bS] PR—F —EC-F “EEE BBEE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BET T BT BRI T
2017 ZB-tF
Amounts due to joint ventures EREEMEERT 1,581 - - - 1,581
Amounts due to T FE AR AR 2R BR 3R
non-controlling interests 260,964 - - - 260,964
Creditors and payables ENERRENTE 589,373 - - - 589,373
Outstanding insurance claims KRARBRE 305,272 - - - 305,272
Derivative financial PTEMBIA
instruments (net settled) (FH) (155) (128) (210) (1) (504)
Derivative financial instruments  #T4B#HTA
(gross settled) (BEss)
- outflow — 29,743 - - - 29,743
- inflow —RA (28,994) = - = (28,994)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 595,157 425,504 1,408,727 975,471 3,404,859
Financial guarantees in HARBEN 2 HBER
contingent liabilities 363,440 295,255 132,300 - 790,995
2016 —E-REF
Amount due to an associate EN—EBERRER 240 - - - 240
Amount due to a joint venture  JEN —ASDERER 53,230 - - - 53,230
Creditors and payables ENERLERTE 638,440 - - - 638,440
Outstanding insurance claims KRARBRE 352,519 - - - 352,519
Derivative financial instruments #7481 T &
(net settled) (3#£5) 6,830 5,422 2,151 - 14,403
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£87&TA
(gross settled) (agpetE)
- outflow - 119,043 18,940 - - 137,983
— inflow —RA (118,859) (19,114) - - (137,973)
Bank and other borrowings BAREMER 1,060,711 397110 1,129,157 1,245,525 3,832,503
Financial guarantees in FABEAHBER
contingent liabilities 14,081 527,468 2,496 3,232 547277
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2Capital risk management

3 BMEEMEREBERBER (8)

32BAREMEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital structure
to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its companies and
make adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes of economic
conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors the capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio,
which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises total debt
less bank balances and cash) over total equity. Total debt represents bank
and other borrowings.

The net debt to equity ratio of the Group is as follows:

The Group

REE

Total debt BB

Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRS
Net debt FER

Total equity farEss

Net debt to equity ratio FETG RS R

Net debt to equity ratio decreased from 13.4% as at 31 March 2016 to
12.1% as at 31 March 2017 mainly due to the settlement of debts as the
Group maintains a strong cash position.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to maintain
an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a required solvency
margin. For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group's
relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency margin requirements
as set out by the relevant authorities in Hong Kong.

FREEERER 2 BERREREEF
Bzt RABEBAREZEBR
L P RIR SRR AE IR -

AEB TR TR RERBEERE
B NRASREREBE NEEA R
HERAREZES  WHLBER K
TEBRZE(CHERGRIELAE -

AREEZFES ARSI R 2 BEER
AA REERFER (BRAEBR
ROTB/EEFELRES) AR ZADL -
BEBIERIT R EMER -

REREZFEF AR RN

2,790,439 3,112,636
(1,761,632) (2,009,282)
1,028,807 1,103,254
8,503,319 8,238,255

12.1% 13.4%

FEFEEREER T —RNFZA=
+—H2134% "TREZZ—+tF=A
=+—H82121% TEARAEEHHH
BEMRSRRmSERES -

REEBRBRARGHENE  FEE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at
fair values by level of inputs to valuation techniques to measure fair
values. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March 2017:

3 BMEEMEREBERBER (8)

33 EME

TREARTERIREZEEITERA
BABBNER DT AKERAAE
FIRZ TS T A - BRAMAZBIRTI DR
RARBERBEAZ NII=EER :

s FHMAREENAEEERMSZ
WE CREE) (F—4) -

s FHEERBBEZHABBIEE
RE—BAZIHRE - MHEATERE (AE
%) s (BB BRI BE
(=) -

s FRMEEXAMBZHABEIIFK
BRABRZTSEE (THEREZE
ABE) (B=4) -

TRV -_F-EF=A=+—B&K
AREHEZARBEMBEERMBA

18

The Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EE Rt EZR F=MH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BETT
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value  ZA 4B ABE
through profit or loss BRIE M EE
— debt securities — EBESH 324,505 114,329 - 438,834
- equity securities — AR E A 59,429 - - 59,429
- mutual and hedge funds —BEEREHAES 695 - 55,813 56,508
Derivative financial PTHEMHITE
instruments - 97 - 97
Available-for-sale A E BB EE
financial assets
- equity securities — AR EH 50,070 - 7,770 57,840
— private funds —LEES - - 66,314 66,314
434,699 114,426 129,897 679,022
Liability e
Derivative financial PTHEBBIA
instruments - (2,974) - (2,974)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3Fair value estimation (continued)

3 BHEREEBERBER (8)

33 QREME ()

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March 2016:

The Group Level 1
rEE FE—

HK$" 000
BT

TABIIR-F—AF=A=+— A%
AnEHEZARABHEERSHE

Level 3 Total

FE_R E= B
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000

Assets &E
Financial assets at fair value  ZQA R EHIAEZ

BT T BETIT BETIT

through profit or loss REZMBEE

- debt securities — BEBES 296,016 55,265 - 351,281

- equity securities — RABEFH 72,492 - - 72,492

- exchange-traded funds —RGEEES 2,717 - - 2,717

— mutual and hedge funds — BEREIES - - 79,358 79,358
Derivative financial PTEMBTA

instruments - 1,606 - 1,606
Available-for-sale financial A E 2B EE

assets

- equity securities — IRAE 40,015 - 7,760 47,775

~ private funds -REES - - 81,653 81,653

411,240 56,871 168,771 636,882

Liability =R
Derivative financial PTEMETA

instruments - (9,557) - (9,557)

The Group uses quoted market prices for financial assets included in level
1. The quoted price which is used, is the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of the fair value.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, overthe-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

RE-—BAZHBEEMS  AEER
AHSHE-- MANRERESEED
HEERER AR EZER

WEEERMS LEE MK T A (I
BIMTETR) 2 AR BFBGBERE
BE ZESHENLIZERRISRY
THEE (WA BE)  TERESEBL
EEFEMLET - WHETARAAEREZ
FEEZEIEMER - AIZITABTA
FEZR

fid —IRHZIHERBIEIL IFR B AT B
THEE - AZTABFAE=R -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3 HSEERBFERBER (8)

3.3Fair value estimation (continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves;

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period with
the resulting value discounted back to present value;

For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active market,
the Group establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, reference to net
asset value of investee and discounted cash flow analysis, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in
a reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses;
and

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in the
hierarchy for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3Fair value estimation (continued)

3 BMEEMEREBERBER (8)

33 QREME ()
TREVNF=MRAAERENYH LA

The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy
of financial instruments for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016:

The Group

A%E

At 1 April 2016

Purchases/capital
contributions

Receipt for capital returns

Fair value gain recognised
in other comprehensive
income

Fair value gain recognised
through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss

Disposals

At 31 March 2017

The Group

R &E

At 1 April 2015

Purchases/capital contributions

Receipt for capital returns

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised
in other comprehensive income

Fair value losses recognised
through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in
profit or loss

Disposals

Derecognition

At 31 March 2016

RZE—RFMNA—H

BA S BEEAN

EEE R

PR AL 2 g
ERZARE
Yezs
RIBEMERZ
A AR
RIBaRFERZ
HERR
HE

RZE—+F
=ZA=t+-~H

RZZ2-H4NA-H
BN/ ATEA
BEER
REMEERERR L
DrEYE/(E8)
REEBAZAAERR

REEERZREBR

e
RILFER

RZZ-~F
=R=1+-H

HE_T—tFR-_T—A"F=A=+
—HIEFEZ#H
Mutual and Equity Private
hedge funds securities funds Total
EER
HHES LN REES PR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT T B¥T T BET T BET T
79,358 7,760 81,653 168,771
2,030 - - 2,030
- - (14,780) (14,780)
- 10 5,117 5,127
5,409 - - 5,409
— = (5,676) (5,676)
(30,984) - - (30,984)
55,813 7,770 66,314 129,897
Equity/
foreign
exchange
linked Mutual and Call Equity Private
notes  hedge funds option securities funds
BER
HARIE HhEe A A hEEE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BB BB BB BETT
7816 75,382 18,073 7750 167,715 276,736
- 34,067 - - 769 34,836
- - - - (23,917) (23,917)
- - - 10 (41,314) (41,304)
- (10,768) (18,073) - - (28,841)
- - - - (17.160) (17160)
- (19,323 - - (4,440) (23,763)
(7816) - - - - (7816)
- 79,358 - 7760 81,653 168,771
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Fair values of investment properties and staff quarters

The valuations of investment properties and staff quarters held directly
by the Group are made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS"). They are performed in
accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published
by HKIS. The valuations are reviewed annually by qualified valuers by
considering the information from a variety of sources including (i) current
prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar
properties in less active market, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iii) rental income derived from existing tenancies
with due provision for reversionary income potential based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results and a
set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its tenancy and
cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in light of current market
conditions including open market rents, appropriate capitalisation rates
and reversionary income potential. For the year ended 31 March 2017,
discount rate in the range of 2% to 7% (2016: 4% to 6%) were used
in the discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value also reflects on a
similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property.

As at 31 March 2017 if the market values of investment properties and
staff quarters had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the carrying values of the Group's investment
properties and staff quarters would have been HK$383,258,000 and
HK$60,313,000 (2016: HK$366,363,000 and HK$48,744,000) higher/
lower respectively.

(b) Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on the higher of their fair values
less costs to sell and value in use, taking into account the latest market
information and past experience.
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4 CRITICAL
(CONTINU

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IIE\[?)COUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(c) Impairment assessment for goodwill and other intangible

assets

The Group tests whether goodwill and other intangible assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies stated
in note 2(ab) to the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or their fair values less cost to sell, whichever are higher,
and both bases require the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The Group
expects that any reasonable change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amounts are based would not cause the carrying amounts
of goodwill and other intangible assets to exceed their recoverable
amounts. Please refer to notes 16, 17 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements for details.

(d) Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments

(e) Fair

()

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an equity
available-for-sale investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and
short-term business outlook for the investee and historical price volatility
of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value of available-for-sale investments below
cost are considered significant or prolonged, an additional loss of
HK$645,000 (2016: HK$6,984,000) would be incurred in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017,
being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity on such available-for-sale investments to profit or loss.

values of available-for-sale investments and

derivative financial instruments

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Net realisable values of properties under development
and properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and properties
for sale to net realisable value based on assessment of the realisability
of properties under development and properties for sale which takes
into account cost to completion based on past experience and net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. If there is an increase in
cost to completion or a decrease in net sales value, the net realisable
value will decrease which may result in writing down properties under
development and properties for sale to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying value of properties
under development and properties for sale is adjusted in the period in
which such estimate is changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(g) Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group's insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for outstanding
claims. The Group determines these estimates on the basis of historical
information, actuarial analysis, financing modeling and other analytical
techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities are affected by assessed
net loss ratio. As at 31 March 2017, assessed net loss ratio was 57%
(2016: 65%). Differences resulting from reassessment of insurance
liabilities are recognised in subsequent consolidated financial statements.
The Group continually reviews the estimates and makes adjustments as
necessary, but actual results could differ from what is envisioned when
these estimates are made.

(h) Construction contract revenue recognition

(i)

(i)

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as stated
in note 2(n) to the consolidated financial statements, the Group uses the
percentage of completion method to determine the appropriate revenue
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of completion is measured
by total amount of work done certified by customers over total estimated
contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group needs to
estimate the gross profit margin of each construction contract, which is
determined based on the estimated total construction contract costs and
estimated total construction contract sum, including variation orders and
claims. If the actual gross profit margin of construction contract differs
from the management’s estimates, the construction contract profit to be
recognised in the following years will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2017 deferred tax asset of HK$61,727000 (2016:
HK$39,194,000) in relation to unused tax losses had been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual taxable profits generated are more or less than
expected, additional deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associates and joint ventures, is subject to
income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Consolidation of Qi Yang Chevalier Investment
Company Limited (“Qi Yang”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Qi Yang Group”’) with less than 50%
equity interest held by the Group

As detailed in note 36(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statements,
in anticipation of the changes in board composition and management
control of Qi Yang Group effective from 30 March 2017, the Group is
able to control the respective board of directors of Qi Yang and is able
to direct relevant financial reporting activities whilst the Group has less
than 50% equity interest in Qi Yang Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the Directors, the chief operating decision-maker, that are used
to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider the business from a
product/service perspective. The Board reviewed the Group's internal reports
to assess the Group's performance and to re-allocate resources. During the
year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s segmentation was reclassified into
Construction and Engineering, Property Investment, Property Development
and Operations, Senior Housing, Car Dealership and Others. The previous
Property segment was split into Property Investment segment, Property
Development and Operations segment and Senior Housing segment,
meanwhile the Insurance and Investment segment and Food and Beverage
segment were merged into Others segment. Car Dealership segment was
separated from Others segment as a new and standalone segment for the
year.

Principal activities of the segments are as follows:

Construction and Engineering: Construction and engineering work for
aluminium window and curtain walls, building construction, building supplies,
electrical and mechanical and environmental engineering, lift and escalator
and pipe technology.

Property Investment: Properties rental business.

Property Development and Operations: Property development and
management, cold storage and logistics and hotel operations.

Senior Housing: Senior housing business.
Car Dealership: Retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles.

Others: Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and business
machines, food trading, general insurance business (except aircraft, aircraft
liabilities and credit insurance), investment in securities and restaurant and
bar.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group's
share of revenue of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate
consolidated basis. The sales from associates and joint ventures to the
Group and sales between individual associates and joint ventures are not
eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement includes the Group's share
of results of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate consolidated
basis. Unallocated corporate expenses, finance income and costs, taxation
and other major items that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not
included in segment results.

Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current assets as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except prepaid
tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and other
unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank and other borrowings, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.

e I HRAR MR
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Revenue and results

5 SEEH ()
(a) WARE4

Property

Construction development

and
engineering
BER
BHIE
HK$'000
AT

Property
investment

HK$'000
BRTR

and Senior
operations housing
NEERR
gE RERE
HK$000 HK$'000
RETR BETR

Car
dealership

nERE
HK$'000
ARt

Others

i
HKS'000
BT

Total

4%
HK$'000
BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BECE-tf
SAEt-ALEE

REVENUE WA
Total revenue BPA 2,942,565 144,276 558,867 524,303 328,821 338,614 4,837,446
Inter-segment revenue HEZEARA = = (39,290) = = (38,780) (78,070
Group revenue SERA 2,942,565 144,276 519,577 524,303 328,821 299,834 4,759,376
Share of revenue of associates and FEBERARAELERA

joint ventures 1,836,231 - 69,553 - 988,015 255,392 3,149,191
Proportionate revenue from a BHERE-HREREL

joint venture eliminated RHBIRA (19,499) - = s = S (19,499)
Segment revenue AERA 4,759,297 144,276 589,130 524,303 1,316,836 555,226 7,889,068
RESULTS ES |
Segment profit/(loss) 2EER /(BB 343,880 321,693 87,931 28913 (1,907) 57,776 838,286
Included in segment profit/loss| are: ART /(BB B
Share of results of associates il YN+ 96,746 - 264 - (11,335) 2,041 87922
Share of results of joint ventures ilaeas 195 - (4,867) - = = (4672)
Increase in fair value of FENEIDREEN

investment properties - 226,033 - = = = 226,033
Depreciation and amortisation, TEREE  TRERL

net of capitalisation (7813) (4,273) (29,506) (35,931) (1,847) (2,674) (82,044)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHE RENRELR

investments - - - - - (5,676) (5,676)
Unrealised gain on derivative TEHBIAZRERNE

financial instruments - - - = = 691 691
Unrealised gain on investments at BOAETNERREL

fair value through profit or loss RENRERYR = = = - - 1,206 7,206
Wite (down)/back of inventories to () BEFER

net realisable value, net TERSE 58 (23) - - - (1,006) 264 (765)
Impairment (loss/gain on trade and BARAENES 2

other debtors WE (B8)/ s (5,283) - - (15,165) - 74 (20,374)
Gain on deemed acquisition of RANEEREE s

Qi Yang Group - - - = 7060 = 1060
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

REVENUE
Total revenue
Intersegment revenue

Group revenue

Share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures

Proportionate revenue from a
joint venture eliminated

Segment revenue

RESULTS
Segment profit/(loss)

Included in segment profit/floss) are:

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Increase in fair value of
investment properties
Depreciation and amortisation,
net of capitalisation
Impairment loss on amount
due from an associate
Impairment loss on goodwil
Impairment loss on available-forsale
investments
Unrealised gain on derivative
financial instruments
Unrealised loss on investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Write (down]/back of inventories to
net realisable value, net
Impairment loss on trade and
other debtors

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Revenue and results (continued)

EL TN
FERERARAELERA

BYERE-RAzLEL
B HMA

i1 0N

ES |
AR/ (B8

ABH/(6R)
et
filie 80854
REREZLAESN

REREE NRALY

Eh-BRERARTL
ﬁﬁ%h
BELREEE
AE s RENREEE

TR IRz AR RS

BLAEIINERREL
FENKERER
WW/%@#“E
TERFE F
E%&EM%WEMZ
HEER

e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

5 FEEM (F])
(a) AR %4 (1K)

Property
Construction development
and Property and Senior Car
engineering investment operations housing dealership QOthers

g ek AEf At
HK§'000 i HK$'000 HK$ 000
ﬁn"*.,.[ i et : ﬁ‘.my '_ i3 7

2,709,256 167905 1,048,707 528,152 320,631 867814 5,632,465
- - (45,495) - - 49,207) (94,702)

2,709,256 167905 1,003,212 528,152 320,631 808,607 5,537763

1,968,585 - 41,991 - 1,133,865 667104 3,801,545
10,050) - - - - - 10,050)
4,657791 167905 1,045,203 528,152 1,454,496 147511 9,329,268
290,273 162,971 203,344 36,322 (5,544) (123,921) 563,445
115,191 - 143 - 8,926) 10,623 116,932
59 - (25,466) - - - (25,407)

- 31,997 - - - - 31,997

(7663) 4,422) (29,194) (38,561) 1,938) 25,039) (106,814)

- - - - - (118,832) (118,832)

B} - - (4,656) - - (4,656)
. - . - - (17160) (17160)

79 - - - - 3,690 3,769

. - . - - (26,550) (26,550)
(175) - - - 7129 273 1839
(2,473 - - (6,130) - 1) (8,644
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 SHEER (&)
(a) Revenue and results (continued) (a) AR ELE (48)
Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management BEHEZBERAZR ZERHAEREK
with reference to market prices. BTSERERE -
Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group’s revenue in the BOBBPAEBAEBRGERERAZ
consolidated income statement as follows: AR -
2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BET T
Total segment revenue B FEIRA 7,889,068 9,329,258
Add: Proportionate revenue from a o BEERE —EAENEZ
joint venture eliminated = BIA 19,499 10,050
Less: Share of revenue of associates and B FTaEE N R A ERA
joint ventures
Construction and installation contracts BERTEAY 1,384,204 1,538,034
Sales of motor vehicles and others REREMZHE 988,015 1,133,865
Maintenance and other services RE R E MRS 479,917 442,098
Food and beverage Z8R 204,687 139,011
Hotel operations G 8 34,838 37,391
Sales and leasing of properties MEHERHAE 34,439 4,447
Fresh produce supply B R IEDHE 23,091 506,699
3,149,191 3,801,545
Total revenue in the consolidated income Rira R 2 B (HisEe)
statement (note 6) 4,759,376 5,537,763
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as ¥ R BEBR B AT A 2 SR -
follows:

Segment profit bak byl 838,286 563,445
Unallocated corporate expenses APOBDESH (20,924) (18,823)
Finance income B RS 19,333 23,646
Finance costs MBEA (93,538) (105,156)
Profit before taxation R B BT ) 743,157 463,112
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Assets and liabilities

5 SEEH ()
(b) BER AR

Property
Construction development
and Property and Senior Car
engineering investment operations housing dealership Others Total
BER NEBRR
BHIR NERE gE RERE RERE =0 ]
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BT AETT AETT AETT AET T AET T AETT
At 31 March 2017 RZB-tE=A=1-A
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,667,310 4,333,824 4,651,523 1,500,024 197414 1,537,983 14,488,078
Included in segment assets are: NREERE:
Interests in associates L UNS 463,261 - 1,588 - - 53,856 518,705
Interests in joint ventures ARPEVER 11,950 - 500,060 - 79,613 - 591,623
Amounts due from associates RUBEDRER 14,985 - - - - - 14,985
Amounts due from joint ventures EUALPEER 44 - 7784 - - - 7828
Additions to non-current assets (note)  REFERBAE (Ff3) 10,030 10,689 37858 26,72 360,211 8,584 454,099
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PEER 1,584,312 47201 662,486 64,824 448,974 490,484 3,298,281
Included in segment liabilities are: NEBERE:
Amounts due to joint ventures ERASPEER - - 1,175 - 406 - 1,581
At 31 March 2016 R-E-REZfA=1-A
ASSETS EE
Segment assets HEEE 1,862,348 5,186,060 3,283,510 1,314,825 386,552 1623178 13,646,473
Included in segment assets are: NEEERE:
Interests in associates BENEzER 469,955 - 2,294 - 340213 108,608 921,070
Interests in joint ventures REREVER 11,755 - 508,950 - - - 520,705
Amounts due from associates AN 76 18,072 - - - 2 - 18,074
Amount due from a joint venture El—HasrEER 59 - - - - - 59
Additions to non-current assets (note)  FEFEEHEE (M) 15,442 8,203 913,397 14,488 2,366 31,145 985,041
LIABILITIES 2k
Segment liabilities AEER 1,611,548 86,195 444,437 53,916 9,356 601,611 2,807063
Included in segment liabilities are: HEaERE:
Amount due to an associate R -HRELTAEN - - 240 - - - 240
Amount due to a joint venture Ef-HALPEER - - 53,230 - - - 53,230
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e SRR M EE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Assets and liabilities (continued)

Note:

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including
interests in associates and joint ventures) and deferred tax assets.

Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and liabilities is
provided as follows:

5 FEEH ()
(b) BER A ()

EAHP  FRDEETEEMHLA (2
BB EATRA B R HE) RETH
HAE -

DHRAERAREGEERABZHENT

Segment assets DEEE

Prepaid tax TERFIE

Unallocated bank balances and cash AOBLRITHEG LIRS
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE B

Other unallocated assets HihRDBLEE

Total assets REE

2017 2016
—B—tF —=- R
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
14,488,078 13,646,473
11,782 6,834
521,217 838,810
26,815 18,547
15,730 9,029
15,063,622 14,519,693

Segment liabilities NEaR
Current income tax liabilities EHMERas
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMERK
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEAE
Other unallocated liabilities HihRHBEEAE
Total liabilities wafms

(c) Geographical information

The Group’s operations in construction and engineering businesses are
mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Australia.
Property investment businesses are mainly carried out in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Canada and Singapore. Property development and
operations businesses are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Canada. Senior housing businesses are carried out in Hong
Kong and the United States of America (“US"). Car dealership businesses
are carried out in Mainland China and Canada. Other businesses are
mainly carried out in Hong Kong, US and Thailand.

The associates’ and joint ventures’ operations in construction and
engineering business are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Singapore and Macau. Property development and operations
businesses are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Car dealership businesses are carried out in Mainland China. Other
businesses are carried out in Hong Kong, Macau and Australia.
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2017
—E—tF T—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET R BETT
3,298,281 2,807,063

74,798 62,964
2,790,439 3,112,536
372,492 279,222
24,293 19,653
6,560,303 6,281,438

(c) HEEH

AEBRERERTIEEBIEESR
B BN - RPISORMENE - W
REXBTECERE  PEAM - NE
RBFINBELE - MEBR R ZEXT
TEEERE  PREAMRINEREE-
REREEXEBTIECEERENRAR
(TXE]) &F - AEBEREXBIEE
TEAM R INERKEE - R EBKRIE
EERE  XBRRBUERE -

BEARRABREZEERKMKTIE
EBIZ2ETE  PEAM IR
MPVEE - MEBRRIREEXBIEL
BERPENMERE - TEREERE
PRI AME (R - EMEBAESRE R
P BB B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Geographical information (continued)

5 SEEH ()
(c) HEZH (M)

Segment revenue by geographical areas
RUEHD 2 HBRA

Company Associates

and joint

ventures

Company Associates

and and joint 2017 and

ventures Total subsidiaries
BENaR Bt

RELE ag

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT ABTT BETT BETT

551,792'

subsidiaries
KARR
HEAR
HKS'000
AR

Hong Kong 5 3,287455 619769 39072 49 2,047593

Mainland China RE A 88896 2112200 2201103 2 663680 2415707 3079387 3

Us <] 632,261 - 632,261 8 633,077 - 633077 7

Canada mex 371,753 . 371,753 5 369,731 - 359,731 4

Singapore N 12,101 315,534 32163 4 12,594 267403 279,997 3

Macau 3 226,809 31,269 258,078 3 680,185 19,407 729,592 8

Australa Bl 85,742 50,508 136,250 2 195,751 506,699 702,450 7

Thailend %8 40,112 - 40,112 1 34,553 - 34,553

Others -0 14,247 405 14,652 - 10,599 187 11,086 -
4759376 3,129,692 7,889,068 100 BRI 3791495 9329258 100

VORE-RAEREZRLAIRADRY

' The proportionate revenue from a joint venture is eliminated.

FEBRFEERFE2EFAS - B
E_E—+F=ZRA=+—HIEFE &
#:800,422,0007T H) U2 A K B 32 5 Ko 4
MIEDENE TS - EREE
ZBWARI0%IA £ (ZF—7RF -
7 #665,729,0007T) °

The Group maintains a healthy and balanced portfolio of customers. For
the year ended 31 March 2017, HK$800,422,000 (2016: HK$665,729,000)
was derived from a single external customer in construction and
engineering segment and accounted for more than 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

AT RS T A (BIEMIGHEE AR
haabirfgn) MEEHRBEEN
SMERBI S ZERBDEERTES

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current assets
other than financial instruments (including interests in associates and
joint ventures) and deferred tax assets analysed by geographical areas:

Hong Kong
Mainland China
us

Singapore
Canada
Thailand
Macau

Others

)
PEIAH
XHE
s
JIEVN
Z=H
BT
Hity

T
Non-current assets
FERBEE
2017

—B—tF N
HK$°000 HK$'000
AT T BETT
3,644,385 3,533,080
1,855,008 1,940,771
1,248,677 1,252,701
434,809 472,632
204,122 169,062
7,960 9,512
1,230 2,238
1,916 7,994
7,398,107 7,387,990
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

6 REVENUE 6 YA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—R
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BETR
Revenue represents amounts received and WARBUTEEZE KRR
receivable from: FENROE ¢
Construction and installation contracts BERZEAN 2,779,578 2,517,064
Sale of information technology equipment, BHIBHERME - RBER
motor vehicles and others Hib 7 $HE 696,837 709,889
Senior housing operations ZEREEE 524,303 528,152
Sales and leasing of properties YEHERTBE 298,404 812,704
Warehouse and logistics services B E R R 227,819 199,251
Maintenance and property management services R& NMEETIRRGE 122,825 174,334
Hotel operations IS &8 43,472 40,794
Insurance premium R B 32,869 51,904
Interest income from investments RETRE ZFBHRA 18,940 15,933
Dividend income from investments KERE ZIREWA 10,538 22,687
Leasing of vehicles and equipment AERRBEE 3,791 6,103
Food and beverage B8 - 458,948
Total revenue (note 5) A (FI7E5) 4,759,376 5,537,763
7 OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HAtUgA - R 88
2017 2016
—E—tF NE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BETR
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value BARBEIIABRERZ
through profit or loss BEME (EE) 14,294 (23,258)
Gain/(loss) on derivative financial instruments THEBEIT AN/ (EBB) 1,385 (1,569)
Other investment income HEERA 22,185 11,359
Commission income LR ON 6,927 8,404
Marketing and promotion income 5 & 8 R R WA - 4,830
Sales and marketing services income from KE—MEBERARZHEER
an associate (note 43) MHHEERBWA (FizE43) 27,930 26,037
Management fee income from associates and REBEARREEREL
joint ventures (note 43) EREWA (FiFE43) 24,091 24,478
Others Hph 9,407 13,129

106,219 63,410
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 8 H{tkss (E5i8) - B
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—R
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BB
Increase in fair value of investment BEMEZ AR ELGM (FFF14)
properties (note 14) 226,033 31,997
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—IFIREWE 7 276 52
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, HEWE  BERREZ
plant and equipment sk (&518) 498 (188)
(Loss)/gain on disposals of HENTRIE Y (BiE), Wi
— Wonder (note 36(b)(ii)) — Wonder (Fz£36(b)(ii)) (3,972) -
— other subsidiaries - EpE AR 265 (97)
Loss on disposals of associates HEBE R FZEIE (3) (147)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & A H & Z & KUz - 12
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate JEUW — &5t < A FIBER 2 RE KB - (118,832)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 16) mEZREEBRE (FMiE16) - (4,656)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments  AJ{ft & 2 L EHEEE B (5,676) (17,160)
Impairment loss on trade and other debtors EH5REMEIERR ZBEER (20,374) (8,644)
Gain on deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group BAEWNERGEE 2 WS
(note 36(b)(i)) (B#E36(b)(i)) 7,060 -
Exchange loss P 5 518 (1,444) (13,179)
202,663 (130,842)
9 FINANCE COSTS, NET 9 MER  FH
2017 2016
—E—+tF T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and RITE S RIRTTR
bank and other borrowings HERHF ST 105,627 114,252
Less: Amounts capitalised to W BEREPYE S (W)
properties under development (note) (12,089) (9,096)
93,538 105,156
Less: Interest income from bank deposits B RITIFE A F B A (19,333) (23,646)
74,205 81,510
Note: B3
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development of FERAREEREREBIENERRZESNERL
properties was 4.8% per annum (2016: between 4.6% and 5.9%). FEREAL8% (ZE—RF  NT46%E5.9%) °
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e SRR M EE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE_Z—+F=A=1T—RHILFE

10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging the following:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(note 15)
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Staff costs (note a)
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of
— premises (note b)
— equipment

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— non-audit services
— under-provision in prior years

Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 17)
Write down of inventories to net realisable value
and crediting the followings:

Write back of inventories to net realisable value

Gross rental income of HK$145,672,000 (2016:

HK$147,291,000) from properties less direct
operating expenses (note c)

Notes:

10 BRI ATEF

BB BDEN S HIBR T HRE ¢

W - BERREZITE (K15)
B BHER N TREZ 8

BTHX (KiEa)
W BERHNITIEZ2H

MENTEE 2 BEREEA
— BF (Hiikb)
— @

% SR B &

— % ERTE

— IR ERTS

- BAFEEEIR
Hibsmp g E#E (fE17)
WoRFEEE A #IRFE
Wit AT3IIER -
BT EE A # IR E
YERSEIAE145,672,0007T

(ZZ—"F : %%147,291,000
TL) BEELE T (M5Ec)

84,150 106,361
(2,591) (2,166)
81,559 104,195
935,441 1,079,220
(213,787) (201,715)
721,654 877,505
45,159 110,846
2,551 3,789
47,710 114,635
11,023 11,239
1,988 2,144
110 154
13,121 13,537
485 2,619

765 -

- 1,839
123,471 132,501

GER

(a) Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 38 (a)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in staff costs are amounts of HK$1,685,000 (2016: HK$1,582,000)
in respect of termination benefits made to staff and HK$29,432,000 (2016:
HK$36,018,000) in respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement

benefit schemes, net of forfeited contributions.

(b) No contingent rental is included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing (b)

of premises (2016: HK$5,439,000).

(c) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$5,991,000 (2016: HK$4,971,000) (c)
less outgoings of HK$735,000 (2016: HK$831,000) from joint operation. Included in
rental income is a gross amount of HK$136,140,000 (2016: HK$139,136,000) derived
from investment properties less direct operating expenses of HK$20,842,000 (2016:

HK$10,492,000).
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11 TAXATION 1"

e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

IR

Current tax AEFEHIE
Hong Kong BB
Mainland China and overseas AR A b K g S

Under/(over)-provision in prior years

Deferred tax EERIR
Origination and reversal of temporary R A R 2 B A N
differences (note 35) (F17£35)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on Mainland China and overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per
consolidated income statement as follows:

BEFEREIR (BERE

Profit before taxation B 750 BT g
Adjusted for: P -
Share of results of associates K NS
Share of results of joint ventures Fha & hEEE

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary difference
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and
deductible temporary difference not
previously recognised

Under/(over)-provision in prior years

Others

Taxation for the year

LTSI E16.5%
(ZZT—RF:

16.5%) st E Z 1A

52,156 55,394

22,960 28,188

) 13,759 (770)

88,875 82,812

43,150 20,154

132,025 102,966
BEBENNER OB EFERBE R A IERE
16.5% (ZZ—/RNF :16.5%) T & - A

At K258 SN FIER T DR 6 A ik 5B AR BUR

MRAEEREEBAERR 2 RITHEG
& o

EIERIA Z B A B IRR M 35 &
=

BAWBERABRFHAGEFERFEREBE Y
a0 -

HEHMBAEERQE ZHEAR]

AFEATRBER 2 &
PAENZ B2 HEFE
BERBRAZHREBEZE
RTERBBBIEZHIEFE

ARTHRAHRE R EZR 2 HIE

TE
HRBERTHERZVEERR
AR ERIEER 2 RMIAFE

BEFERETR (BERE)
Hitp

FEBIEA

2016

ZE—RF

HK$'000

BT T

743,157 463,112
(87,922) (116,932)
4,672 25,407
659,907 371,587
108,885 61,312
13,153 14,064
10,077 45,344
(20,303) (31,845)
13,266 47,082
(4,531) 2,368
(4,183) (28,077)
13,759 (770)
1,902 (6,512)
132,025 102,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2017

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company K2 &) I 5 &1k i F

12 ZREF

(a) E&
FREARBFDIRBEARQ B REEG G
MBS E—_TE—tF=A=+—H1t
FEBBHITL B2 NEFIEEE -

2016
ZE—RF

HK$°000
BET
540,263 315,056

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRITEBIR 2 METHH
in issue ('000 shares) (F1&)
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREARZBF (BE)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the
Group had potential ordinary shares in an associate, which were issuable
upon exercise of share option being granted. There was no potential
dilutive effect from such share option held during the year. As at 31
March 2017 and 2016, associates of the Group had potential ordinary
shares which were issuable upon exercise of share options granted.
There was no potential dilutive effect from such share options during
both years.

13 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2016: HK$0.20) 2R HR S FREE0.207T
per share paid (Z=—R"F : B¥0.207T)
Final dividend of HK$0.40 (2016: HK$0.50) ¥R K BIRR B FA% B 0.407T
per share proposed (ZZF—"F : B¥0.507T)

In respect of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2016,
HK$26,390,000 were paid in form of shares under the Company’s scrip
dividend schemes in respect of the special and final dividends for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Final dividend of HK$0.40 per share totaling HK$120,771,000 has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The amount will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31 March 2018.
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301,928 300,801

1.79 1.05

(b) 88

BRESRANTERABRDBITEBR
ZIMEFEHEABRMEEEHELR
REHBMAESL RZT—+t k=
T-RF=ZA=+—H AEE—HEH
ENRBBELEER  mRHAELZ
PR ET T TRIT R - RF
ERFLAEREYEELEBELES
B RZITE—LFRZFT—RE=A
=+t—H XEEBEAREEL LR
B - ZBR D AR 2 BT R A]
FEREITZ IR o LR G HARE L B AR
HEELEBTHELE -

13RE

2016
—E—RF

HK$'000
BETT

60,386 60,386

120,771 150,964

181,157 211,350

REBEE-_Z—RE=ZA=+—HBILtEERD
EHZBREmME EFHE-T—RHF=
B=Z+—BILFEZERIRABERE B
26,390,000 T E R IEA R B AR B ATEI A
BB -

EERRAABREETR0408T - 5 LB
120,771,0007C - K AR B 5 < IR E
FREG LERFRIAER - FAMEE - 2EH
RBE-_Z-/\F=A=+—HILFEIIE
REEMZ DK °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

14 IR BEWME

At beginning of the year F9)
Exchange realignment M '
Addition wNE

HE—REEYE

Disposal of an investment property

Transfer to properties for sale HEFEYE
Increase in fair value (note 8) RAEEN (HFES)
At end of the year FR

The Group's investment properties at their carrying values are analysed as
follows:

Hong Kong B
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FEELY (2R TF)
Mainland China and overseas AR A K2 g AN
Freehold KA ERE

On long-term leases (over 50 years)
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years)

Notes:

(a) The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and overseas as at 31 March 2017 had been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out on that date by Crowe Horwath (HK) Consulting & Valuation Limited,
which is an independent firm of qualified valuers having appropriate qualifications
and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation,
which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS,
was arrived at with reference to market evidence of transaction prices of similar
properties or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best use.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of HK$48,000,000
(2016: HK$45,000,000) represented the Group's share of interests in joint operation.

(c) Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value of
HK$1,282,306,000 (2016: HK$2,196,284,000) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

ML (E+FHRLE)
FHIRA (tER+HF)

3,663,625 3,680,497
(61,006) (21,831)
9,628 -
(5,697) (6,000)

- (21,038)

226,033 31,997
3,832,583 3,663,625

AEEZREMEREREZDTOT

2016

R

HK$'000

BT

2,412,135 2,388,866
496,225 502,844
876,786 728,481
47,437 43,434
3,832,583 3,663,625

GEX

(a) AKRBLNER - PEAMBEEINZIREME
WZE—+F=A=+—B2ZRREIREMH
EESE (BB GMEHMERAF (It
RIBILEBRIEETT AN ERLEESE
TTORGEZEBERRER) BRRETZ
HEAZREMSH - ZEEETEEREM
DEmEmz BB NEMBSYEGELERL
BE2RM5 EEUYE S ESFL - RE
BHEWNFEREFE - SMEREMEM
= HEAARERERsMRERE -

b) MREBZHAMEZREDAEES
48,000,0007T (=% — 734 : j£#45,000,000
TC) BARERTL GBS 2

(c) B # (& /& %1,282,306,0007T (=& — X

£ ¢ #B162,196,284,0007T) 2 REME B E
B (EARTAEBRRITERZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_FT—tF=ZA=+—HLFE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14 BEWE (F)
Notes: (continued) Mzt : (88)
(d) Valuation of investment properties (d) BREMEZAE
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy of TREIIE= f&‘f@% KIEEMERE
investment properties for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016: T—HFRZT-RF=ZA=1— EIJJ:EJEZ

Commercial properties Residential properties Industrial properties Total
[ZE3ES EENE IENE &
Mainland Mainland

Hong Kong China  Overseas Hong Kong China Hong Kong  Overseas

EE  HERL B & HERL £ i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tn  EMTn  BRTn  EMTx  B%Tx  EMTn B%Tn  E%TR

At 1 April 2016 R-F-~ENA-H 1,111,656 24,839 23,905 28,580 703,131 1,248,630 522,884 3,663,625
Exchange realignment EH AR - (220) (1,033) - (43,763) - (15,990)  (61,006)
Addition RE - - 8,377 - - - 1,251 9,628
Disposal of an investment property HE-BRENE - - (5,697) - - - = (5,697)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value (note 8) DAEEN/(RD) (Hzs) 9,093 693 6,512 3,120 202,847 11,056 (7288) 226,033
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+E=A=+-H 1,120,749 25,312 32,064 31,700 862,215 1,259,686 500,857 3,832,583

Commercial properties RESEEINOTE Industrial properties
EELES fEEmE I#m%
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Overseas  Hong Kong China  Hong Kong Overseas
BE  RERY & THRL A )
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
7 BETT T BIr 7
At 1 April 2015 R-Z-1FMA-A 1,068,326 46,913 22,899 34,840 712,284 1,266,955 528,280 3,680,497
Exchange realignment [E5 A% - (1,036) (540) - (28,814) - 8,559 (21,831)
Disposal of an investment property HE-BRENME - - - (6,000) - - - (6,000)
Transfer to properties for sale BRGENE - (21,038) - - - - - (21,038)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value (note 8) DAEEN/(RD) (Hzs) 43,330 - 1,546 (260) 19,661 (18,325) (13,955) 31,997
At 31 March 2016 WZE-~EZA=+-H 1,111,656 24,839 23,905 28,580 703,131 1,248,630 522,884 3,663,625
The Group includes a team that reviews the valuations performed by the AEEBSEHNBB LT EMBMEREE R
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and reports directly to the FEEZEN  BZEREERASREEA
senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held BWE - aRERBABZELERER (BEE
between the senior management and valuers at least once every six months, in ERERFERE BB B hA T —
line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates. R EBE RERR ©
At the end of each reporting period, the Group: REMEER - AEEH -
e verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; o REUBUERENMEENHARE
e assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year o MEMEMGEREFEGERSEETH
valuation reports; and 28 &
e holds discussions with the independent valuers. o ERENFTERMEITE R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Valuation of investment properties (continued)
Fair values of commercial, residential and industrial properties in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and overseas are generally derived using the direct comparison
method and wherever appropriate, by the income capitalisation method. Direct
comparison method is based on comparing the property to be valued directly with
other comparable properties, which have recently transacted. However, given the
heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate adjustments are usually
required to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to
be achieved by the property under consideration. Income capitalisation method is
based on the capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of
sale transactions and valuers' interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have reference
to recent lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine fair values

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on recent lettings for investment
properties, within the subject properties and other comparable properties. The

lower the rents, the lower the fair values.

Prevailing market rents used in the income capitalisation method:

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

14 IREW=E ()

fisE - ()

(d)

RAEYEZHE ()

FE - PEAMIEIEE  EERIEDE
ZARE-REBERLEE - RIVERRA
W BEAMOEAEGH - BREBVEDERSE
BHEZYERFINER S 2 ] Yy
EEERLLE - A \RNEEMEZ S
LEE - BEAREAAEEEEEZTNY
EFEZERNEZZRELEERE - Wa
AMMOEDENBBRAEE ZBENMEE -
WAFERRAERENTUNENE - MEAR
(L TH BB E 32 5 2 07 A0 3T B0 0 B
REE 2 ERFMENERMSL - EfLED
RAZBRITHSEEIREE L E R EAM AT
sy 2R RERBERmEE -

BEFERAFELELD

EERA B EXT A BEHA B
RITMSHEEDERBREYE  NEZ[EN
WMEREMAE R EN 2 SO M HEER
izt - HEME  BIAAEYE -

RAREEAMENRITHSHES -

EEME
—FER (FASTIR K]

Residential properties
- Mainland China (per square meter (“sq. m.") per month)

Commercial properties [EEUES
- Overseas (per square feet ("sg. ft.") per month)
- Hong Kong (per sg. ft. per month)

- Mainland China (per sg. m. per month)

-&E (BARTIR)

I$m%
- &% (§ATHR)

Industrial properties
- Hong Kong (per sg. ft. per month)

Capitalisation rates are estimated by valuers based on the risk profile of the
investment properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower the fair values.

Capitalisation rates used in the income capitalisation method:

-8 (BRAGEHIRIFAR])
—HERE (FASTIR)

HK$133 to HK$863 HK$88 to HK$860

B133TEEM863 T M8 EAMES60T
HK$26 £%267T N/A TiE R

N/A RiEA HK$23 #6237

N/A RiEA HK$118 &% 1187T

N/A RiEA HK$9 to HK$12

BEOTERR12T

B Ry RFT AR FfAEZ REMEZ
BB G o RS - B AR EBE

WA AMERBHEAEE

Residential properties FEME

- Mainland China — RER,
Commercial properties mENE

- Overseas — g

- Hong Kong - &%

- Mainland China — HERH,
Industrial properties TEME

- Hong Kong -&k

Comparing price per sq. ft. or per sq. m. with other recently transacted comparable
properties formed the inputs under direct comparison method, which is in average
of approximately amounted to HK$7800 per sq. ft.,, HK$21,500 per sq. m.,
HK$5,300 per sq. ft. for commercial properties in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
industrial properties in Hong Kong respectively for the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: N/A).

2.8% to 6.5% 2.0% t0 6.0%

2.8%%6.5% 2.0%%6.0%

6% N/A TEA
N/A FEA 35%
N/A REA 5.6%
N/A REA 4.5% 10 5.8%

4.5%%5.8%

S E A AT L B ENE T REEFF A KE
R ZEBEREELEETOE AZE -
ZERRBE_ZE—tH&=ZA=t—HLF
EEE PEAEMNEENERESILEYD
¥ BREFHREL7,8007T - FFFHKE
#21,5007T & & F 75 R H5,3000 K FH91E
SBAF TEA) -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y3 - BERR

Cold
storage
warehouse

YA k4B A
RBER

HK$000
BSTR

Hotel
properties

EENE
HK$'000
BRI

Other properties for own use

RtE A%

Other
properties

EEUHE S
HK$'000
AU

Plant,
machinery
and
equipment

Staff
quarters

Furniture,
fixtures,
office
equipment
and motor
vehicles

B RE-

HE - B
ES
HK$'000
BT

EIfE
HK$'000
BETR
(note c)

(Hfste)

HAERE
ERE
HK$'000
ASTR

Total

5
HK$'000
B8TR

Cost or valuation HAG R
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1%=A=1+-H 239,038 148,151 1,251,696 446,660 105,118 417652 2,608,315
Exchange realignment EHAE - 2,968) (1,384) - (1,732) (4,414) (10,498)
Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 36(bl(ivl) Y2 (F3E36(bl(iv)) - - - - 312 4,120 4,432
Additions NE - 121 8,175 - 19,012 38,777 66,085
Disposals e - - - - (2,121) (9,434) (11,555)
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe 5 B ECafe Deco i3
Deco (note 36(b)fiii)) (BHf3E36(b) iil)) - - - - (38,864) (109,679) (148,543)
Increase in fair value R - - - 41,000 - - 41,000
At 31 March 2016 RZE—7EZA=1-H 239,038 145,304 1,258,487 487,660 81,725 337,022 2,549,236
Exchange realignment ERAE - (2,974) (593) - (1,991) (3,405) (8,963)
Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group RAlERGEE
(note 36(b)(i) (Fi=E36(bI() - - 329,993 - 26,049 - 356,042
Additions AE - 136 18,206 - 4,116 22,416 44,874
Disposals e = - - - (3,975) (12,440) (16,415)
Transfer to assets held-forsale (note 44)  BEEEHEEE (Hiid4) = - - 5 - (2,772) (2,172)
Increase in fair value DEEm - - - 115,470 - - 115,470
At 31 March 2017 RZE-+t£=ZA=1+-H 239,038 142,466 1,606,093 603,130 105,924 340,821 3,037472
Accumulated depreciation and RARERAE
impairment
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1%E=A=1+-H 80,645 59,183 175,398 7392 52,996 262,612 638,226
Exchange realignment ERAZ - (936) (614) - (946) (3,765) (6,261)
Charged for the year (note 10) FENE (Wit10) 6,125 2,287 30,328 7392 12,813 47416 106,361
Disposals e - - - - 2,056) (6,947) 9,003)
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe BB ECafe Deco 12
Deco (note 36(o)(ii) (FizE36(0)i) - - - - (12,163) (52,725) (64,888)
Increase in fair value DREEN - - - (14,564) - - (14,564)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-7E=ZA=1+-H 86,770 60,534 205,112 220 50,644 246,591 649,871
Exchange realignment B - (1,008) (661) - (1,249) (948) (3,863)
Charged for the year (note 10) FEifE (Witio) 6,125 2,090 30,626 8,337 6,370 30,602 84,150
Disposals HE - - - - (4,178) (8,982) (13,160)
Transfer to assets held-for-sale (note 44)  BEH{ELELE (Hiz44) - - - - - (1,096) (1,096)
Increase in fair value DREEN - - 5 (8,557) = = (8,557)
At 31 March 2017 WF-tE=f=1-A 92,895 61,619 235,077 - 51,587 266,167 707,345
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2017 RZE-+t£=A=1+-H 146,143 80,847 1,371,016 603,130 54,337 74,654 2,330,127
At 31 March 2016 R=E—R"EZA=F-H 152,268 84,770 1,063,375 487440 31,081 90,431 1,899,365
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The carrying value of properties comprise:

Freehold land and buildings thereon
Leasehold land and buildings thereon

(b) Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a total carrying
value of HK$746,789,000 (2016: HK$1,281,830,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

(c) Revaluation of staff quarters

The Group had measured the staff quarters under the revaluation model. The fair
value of staff quarters as at 31 March 2017 had been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out on that date by Crowe Horwath (HK) Consulting & Valuation
Limited, which is an independent firm of qualified valuers having appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary
potential.

Fair value of staff quarters are generally derived using the direct comparison
method. Direct comparison method is based on comparing the property to be
valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate
adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that may
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under consideration.

If the staff quarters were measured under the cost model, the carrying value
would be as follows:

Cost PR
Accumulated depreciation RETITE
Carrying value BREE

AL RERE EZEF
HE TR ENE E 28T

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

15 W% - BERRE ()

e

=

) MEZFEEERE

o

2017 2016
—B—tF

—ZZT—RF
HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BETT

784,471 748,675
1,416,665 1,029,278
2,201,136 1,777,853

(b) BRTE 4R {E 5 %746,789,0007C (Z T — /N4 :
75 11,281,830,0007T) 2% - BE k& E
EEEF - (EARTAEERTEEZER -

(c) EFETHES

AEECZELRAGFEETIES -BIHEE
BE_Z—+F=A=+—HZARETRE
BESE (BB st EHMARAT (I
REILAEREET YR AMLRAERE
TOEBEZEEERRER) RERETZ
BHEMSH - ZEEVETESREMB S M
Bz BERNEMBEMEGERRID 2R
5 ERUNEZZSEEL - RBREER
NFRREEE o

BTEEZAAE-REAERLBENES
He BERLEBEDNENBEGREZMELR
RERZS Ht A BMEFERLE - &
i EREENEZ ZHICEE - BREAR
ERAETEEERTOMEMEZERNE
EERFEREEHE -

HEMKAEAFBEETRES - BIREEN

T~

2017 2016

—B—t% BN
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

63,263 63,263
(42,801) (40,372)

20,462 22,891
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

16 GOODWILL 16 B

At beginning of the year F1) 629,014 690,184
Exchange realignment R 727 733
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco 18 & & Cafe Decoz #Ezs
(note 36(b)(iii)) (PR EE36(b) (i) - (57,247)
Impairment loss (note 8) BEBE (M3E8) - (4,656)
At end of the year FR 629,741 629,014
Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 37 BB ZBEF T ERBERGRE M HREMN
to the consolidated financial statements. 537 ©
17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 HitnEREE

Roads,  Cold storage
drainage and public
and bonded Trademarks
waterworks warehouse  of restaurant Favourable
license licenses and bar leases Others Total

B X% RERE
Rk RARRFH EERER

IRER RIER ZHE ERRE Hit ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BRI BETT BETT BETT
Cost R

At 1 April 2015 R-E-RFMA—A 26,534 3,000 18,094 11,855 14,386 73,869
Exchange realignment BT - - - - (130) (130)

Deemed disposal of interest A ECafe DecoZ
in Cafe Deco (note 36(b)fiii)) 1z (FIFE36(b)Iii) - - (18,094) (11,855) - (29,949)
Addition AE - - - - 137 137
At 31 March 2016 RZE—"E=f=1+-H 26,534 3,000 - - 14,393 43,927
Exchange realignment R AR - - - - (578) (578)
Addition NE - - - - 6,749 6,749
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+t&F=ZA=+-H 26,534 3,000 - - 20,564 50,098

Accumulated amortisation and R BERAE

impairment
At 1 April 2015 R-E-RFMA—A 26,534 3,000 5,610 11,855 9,635 56,634
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - - (131) (131)
Charged for the year (note 10) FEFE (F310) - - 865 - 1,754 2,619
Deemed disposal of interest in A& Cafe Deco
Cafe Deco (note 36(b)fiii)) 12 (MzE36(b) i) - - (6,475) (11,855) - (18,330)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-"E=ZF=1-H 26,534 3,000 - - 11,258 40,792
Exchange realignment EHAR - - - - (565) (565)
Charged for the year (note 10) FENE (FH:10) - - - - 485 485
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+$=A=1-H 26,534 3,000 - - 11,178 40,712
Carrying value RE®
At 31 March 2017 RZF—+%=A=+-A - - - - 9,386 9,386
At 31 March 2016 RZE—"E=Zf=1+-8 - - - - 3,135 3,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks license
(“License")) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
following estimated useful lives or license period:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years
Trademarks of restaurant and bar 15 years
Favourable leases 4 years
Lease-in-place 3 years

The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of this License is at minimal
cost and the Group would renew this License continuously. This License is
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life and will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite
upon reassessment of its useful life annually by the management of the
Group. Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The lease-in-place of senior housing business was purchased as part of
business combination in prior year. The lease-in-place is considered by the
management of the Group as having finite lives of 3 years. The lease-in-place
was fully amortised at the end of reporting period.

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

17 HinER & E (8)

HEibEmaE (BER  RI5RKE TS
BR([M2RR 1) M) TYABAREIZ T oMb Al 2

PR RIRINE h 2 RS ETH
REEERABRBEER TF
ERBREZEE ThHF
BHEE 4
REHE =F
EERR EHUEREABURE @
SETTEHUERTEEH - AEEEEE

RRUERAEERAERFEH S g
WHH BEEEAEEEEREREAERF
HEFEMIGHE  BEEAERAFHEAR
Bk - AR GERERTEREZTRE
EITRERH - BRIBERH Z FBENER
B BHMRMEEST

REREEB 2 RERENRFIEREBE
Hr—momBA AEEEEERRBEFE
EZERAIERFRA=F - RMEHR -

REHEC28E -

18 BE N A 2

2016

TN

~ HK$'000

ST T

Non-current: FERED
Interests in associates, including goodwill /N TZ%ﬁn BiEEE 518,705 685,110
Amounts due from associates (note b) FE U B 2 R B BR R (B 5EDb) - 235,960
518,705 921,070
Current: nE
Amounts due from associates (note b) FE U H 2 N BIBR R (B 3ED) 14,985 18,074
Amount due to an associate (note b) FEf—REEE 2 A Bl ERR (FisEb) - 240
The movements in the Group's interests in associates during the year are REBNAFEMEBEAT 2 E=EE 2
analysed as follows: DITET -

2016

—ZE—RF

HK$'000

BT

At beginning of the year F1) 685,110 657,286
Exchange realignment TR (31,097) (10,832)
Addition NE 111,944 57,945
Disposal of Wonder (note 36(b)(ii) tH&EWonder (HI5E36(b)(ii) (53,410) -
Disposals HE (3) (29,902)
Deemed disposal of QiYang Group (note 36(b)(i)) R AHEEEER (K:E36(b)()) (63,536) -

Share of results Frib %4 87,922 116,932
Share of other comprehensive expense iR E 2 m 2 - (3,865)
Dividends fi% & (218,225) (102,454)
At end of the year FR 518,705 685,110
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2017 were set out in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free (2016: amounts due
from associates are unsecured and interest-free, except for the Group's balance
of HK$92,193,000 which bears interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant
parties).

Amounts due from/to associates under current assets/liabilities are repayable on
demand. As at 31 March 2016, amounts due from associates under non-current
assets of HK$235,960,000 are considered equity in nature.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under current assets/
liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates are denominated in the
following currencies:

ARE

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi

Chevalier (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “CHK Group”), Toshiba Elevator
(China) Co., Ltd. (“TCE") and Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. (“STE") have
a similar risk profile, are engaged in similar business activities and related to each
other which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material to the Group. Set out
below is the summarised financial information for CHK Group, TCE and STE. CHK
Group, TCE and STE are engaged in the manufacturing, marketing, installation,
repair and maintenance of the lift and escalator business and accounted for using
equity method.

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position

18 HE DR 2z ()

=
B

B

(b)

(c)

RoB—EF=A=+—BETEWELAL
BRE MG B SRR 48 -

FENES E DRI EBERR L (22—
FoEEEEARNRIABEEANLE  EX
EE 2 #8578 1692,193,0007T R B B 75 R
BERFREE) o

BRBEE ABEETZEREMEER
AIRRARERMEE R _B—R"F=ZRA=+
—H - BIFRBEEET 2 AR EE RS
XA AR RE #6 235,960,000 T # AR 2 B E A 1
5 .

BRBAE /8EET 2K S A
AR EEEBL AR BIRE -

FEUL/ FEATE i A R BR R Z BREE TD A T 51
LV ESv

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
= 77,152

14,985 176,642

Ht (B8) ARARKENBLR (58 [H
TEBEH]) RZBH(FE) ERAF
(TRZEW (PED])) REZES OFH) AR
~E ([RZER (O&H) ) RRLRERMR -
HERUBEEB R MR &%
R HARERMEEEK - UTHIIELE
BEE RZEHR (PE) RRZEH (OBE)
ZHBEREE - EXHEEE  RZBH
(hE) REZER OFG) REABRBEE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Current RE
Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Net current assets MEEEEFE
Non-current liabilities FRBESF
Net assets EERE
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B B R BERRERES LB
YN
SEMBRRRBE
2017
—E2—tF
HK$°000
BET T
377,102 350,189
3,812,169 4,055,532
(2,909,960) (3,010,523)
902,209 1,045,009
(667) (659)
1,278,644 1,394,539
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) s BiE QT 2 (48)

Notes: (continued) MisE : (88)
(c) (continued) (c) (#&)
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income GEZHKERUE

2017 2016

—EB—tF AL

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Revenue WA 6,515,424 7.207,812

Profit before taxation R B2 Al v A 175,478 340,203

Taxation bl (34,240) (59,803)

Profit for the year FERA 141,238 280,400

Other comprehensive expenses for the year FEHEMEZAS S (10,872) (1,110)

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHWREHR 130,366 279,290

Dividends received from associates B E A RIRE 79,179 84,368

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated financial it E R R AR iﬁAﬁﬁ‘%#ﬁi’%Wfﬁ'J
statements of the associates, adjusted for differences in accounting policies S DRAEEEBEATNEHBETRA

between the Group and the associates. The information above is the amount before

inte-company eliminations.

MmiEH AR - BRERTIRA TFﬁTiﬁHIJZ%

e

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying
amount of the interests in associates is provided as follows:

MBENBEHIR

P28 AR E PR S R RIS 2 R
EEZHRHIINT

2017
—g—tf
HK$’000

HK$' OOO
BT T BEETFIT

Net assets at beginning of the year FEHNzEEFE 1,394,539 1,387,322
Exchange realignment L (50,920) (38,105)
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders P& R R4S s F 141,238 280,400
Other comprehensive expenses for the year BREGFEEMEES T

attributable to shareholders (10,872) (1,110)
Dividends %8 (195,341) (233,968)
Net assets at end of the year FERZEESE 1,278,644 1,394,539
Interests in associates® NI 414,233 419,100
Goodwill 5k 32,795 32,795
Carrying value at end of the year ERZREE 447,028 451,895

#  As at 31 March 2017, the interests held by the Group in CHK group, TCE and
STE as associates were 49%, 20% and 20% respectively (2016: 49%, 20%
and 20% respectively).

t RZZE—tE=Zf=+—8 A£EH
RFEELTEBEE  REZEM (FEH)
ERZEHOER) (BWABERR) 2
49% ~ 20% }20% (=T — X F : 5l
BHA9% ~ 20% K20%) HEx -
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 = NEl 2z (8)

Notes: (continued) MisE : (88)

(d) The aggregate summarised financial information of Group's associates that are not (d) ERITERZ AEBEEE R RRMBERNTE
individually material is set out below: o

2017
—B—tE
HK$’000
BETT
The Group's share of results AEBAIEER (1,901) 8,157
The Group's share of other comprehensive expense AEBEEMBEESTH - (3,865)
The Group's share of total comprehensive (expense)/income ZAN&EBEERE (H ), W (1,901) 4,292
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ANEE PTG L A N B i A
interests in these associates Z4ARRTEE 71,677 469,175
19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 58 hE RS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current: B
Interests in joint ventures, including goodwill BEDNEED  BERE 182,772 119,460
Amounts due from joint ventures (note b) e & & bR (MFTb) 408,851 401,245
591,623 520,705
Current: nE

Amounts due from joint ventures (note b) WA EDERR (KizEb) 7,828 59

Amounts due to joint ventures (note b) ERTE B ERR (MiiEb) 1,581 53,230

The movements in the Group's interests in joint ventures during the year AEBNAFEMEGECEZRZETH

are analysed as follows: DT

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

BT

At beginning of the year F7) 119,460 272,066

Exchange realignment 0E 3 (11,629) (18,794)

Addition NE - 65,808
Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group RAKEZSSE (K3E36(b))

(note 36(b)(i)) 79,613 -
Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 36(b)(iv)) WeRg AR & (KEE36(b)(iv) - (174,213)
Share of results Frib 24 (4,672) (25,407)
At end of the year FR 182,772 119,460

Notes: Ffisx -

(a) Particulars regarding the principal joint ventures as at 31 March 2017 were set out (a) RZZ—+tHF=-A=+—HEXZEELEDEZ
in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors were of the view EHEHENGEMBMERMTI0 - EFERAR
that as at 31 March 2017, there was no individual joint venture that was material to RZZE—+F=ZA=+—H  #HEERNEZEr
the Group. EHAEEMEBERK -
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured and bear interest at rates mutually
agreed between relevant parties except for the balance of HK$44,000 (2016:
HK$59,000) which is interest-free.

Amounts due from joint ventures under non-current assets of HK$264,177.000
(2016: HK$264,171,000) are considered equity in nature and HK$144,674,000 (2016:
HK$137,074,000) are not repayable within one year while amounts due from joint
ventures under current assets are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to joint ventures under current assets/
liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to joint ventures are denominated in
the following currencies:

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

19 SEREZHES (])

FiEE ()

(o) FEMAERERRSEERRZEWT AR

TERFIEE - WEBE44,000T (ZF—
N B#559,0000T) ARE ©

BERDEEBE T ZERAELELEERR
7 #264,177,000L (Z T — N F: B E
264,171,00070) # R & B = 18 kB
#144,674,0000C (= T — X F: B #
137,074,00070) HAR —FHR NEE - M
BREEEBET 2 ENAEEEERKANEZER

BRBAE ABETZER EH&ER
EERZEMERE AR ERE -

W N A B ERRZIETMET AT
B RBA

2017
—ZE—+tF F4E
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BEETIT
Hong Kong dollar B 408,895 401,304
Renminbi AREE 6,203 (53,230)
(c) The aggregate summarised financial information of Group's joint ventures that are (c) ERFAERZAEEAECXEINBERTE
not individually material is set out below: LU
2017
—E—tF T—R
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
The Group’s share of total comprehensive expenses AEEMEEEXZ LB (4,672) (25,407)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEEMGLSEECEER
interests in these joint ventures ZHEETEE 591,623 520,705

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20 ATt EZIRE

Listed investment, at fair value:
— equity securities listed overseas (note a)

EHERE - EARE
— BN EWZ ARE S (HFEa)

FLMERE BaRE:
—BARES
—MEEE (M5b)

Unlisted investments, at fair values:
— equity securities
— private funds (note b)

50,070 40,015
7,770 7,760

66,314 81,653

74,084 89,413

124,154 129,428
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20 JHLEZRE (B
A 2 K Y BRENE T A T A

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying value of available-for-sale investments are denominated in the

following currencies: fiI :

2016
—T—RF
HK$'000
BT
US dollar ET 68,217 81,021
Vietnam Dong BEE 50,070 40,015
Others Hit 5,867 8,392
124,154 129,428

(a) The fair value of the listed investment of the Group is determined based on the (@) AEBEMEREZ ARBINIRBBRZ SR

quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchange. ZTSEANBETE °

(o) AEBZAEESZ AREH T RRMER LT
REZT5HREETE -

21 BERPYE

(b) The fair values of the private funds of the Group are primarily determined based
on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed investments.

21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2017
—E—tF

HK$°000
BT T

At beginning of the year F4 1,470,824 1,412,825
Exchange realignment TE 5% (89,486) (71,308)
Additions NE 229,070 362,541
Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 36(b)(iv)) I &R B (MIFE36(b)(iv)) - 546,750
Transfer to properties for sale BEFEYE = (779,984)
Transfer to assets held-forsale (note 44) EEFEREEE (MiH4d) (533,464) -
At end of the year FR 1,076,944 1,470,824

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREREITA -

Non-current assets FEREEE 565,828 1,128,747
Current assets MENEE 511,116 342,077
1,076,944 1,470,824

As at 31 March 2017 the balance is related to property development project RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H Zi&pnd

NI REMMERRAE B

o

in Changchun, Mainland China.

The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is disclosed BRERPYEE R 2 ERRARERE P IER
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. KM FEOWEE -
Properties under development are classified as current assets unless the LRIV MEADEARDEE  BRIEBHIE
construction period of the relevant project is expected to complete beyond B @R BEEE &L EEETX -
normal operating cycle. The amount classified as non-current assets was not BEANRBEEZCEBE I TERAKRT
expected to be realised within the next twelve months. ZEARNEIR -

134 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

22 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HittERENEE

Deposits paid for a property development EN—EYEERER RS
project (note a) (FisEa) 27,956 64,104
Others Hith 54,881 57,019
82,837 121,123

Notes: B 5E -

(a) The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in (a) ZEHRPEAMEET -—EVERREAZ
Changchun, Mainland China. BffEe -

(b) Charges were created on the other non-current assets with total carrying value of (b) BRME#REHEY21,885,0007T (=T —RF B
HK$21,885,000 (2016: HK$21,579,000) for the purpose of securing banking facilities #21,579,0007T) 2 M IR B E E B EE
granted to the Group. B ERBETAEBEBITEEZER -

23 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITORLOSS 23 EAQAAEIIAEZEREZIRE
2017
—E—+tF
HK$°000
BT T
Listed investments: LFHRE
Held for trading FFIEEEAE
- debt securities — EBES 324,505 296,016
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong — FB L2 ’RAGES 39,980 46,454
— equity securities listed overseas — BN ET 2 IRAE S 19,449 26,038
- exchange-traded funds —RGEEES = 2,717
- mutual and hedge funds —EERHIES 695 -
384,629 371,225
Unlisted investments: ELETRE -
Held for trading FFIEEEHiE
— debt securities — (EHE 114,329 55,265
- mutual and hedge funds — BERENES 55,813 79,358
170,142 134,623
554,771 505,848

The fair values of the listed investments of the Group are determined based AEEZ LR EZARBENIRBEBERZ S

on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges and the M EANEMETE MASBEZI L

unlisted investments of the Group are determined based on financial models MREZ AR BNRMBEEXNETE - 8%

or with reference to quoted prices from relevant financial institutions. KB A R R 2 B o
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23 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 23 ?ﬁ;&ﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂk?ﬁﬁlﬁiﬁZ?ﬁﬁ
(CONTINUED) 8)

A A E5 AR IRIE 2 1808 2 BR A T 5L
T AR

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in the following currencies:

2016
S ANCS
HK$'000
BT T
Hong Kong dollar B 39,980 49,171
Japanese Yen =1E 12,905 17,654
Renminbi AR 14,635 31,032
US dollar ET 483,984 406,882
Vietnam Dong HBEE 3,267 1,109
554,771 505,848

24 INVENTORIES 24 F8
2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
BET T
Raw materials ETEET 3,794 3,957
Finished goods ED 294,624 131,216
Consumables EAR 581 1,144
298,999 136,317

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$461,480,000 (2016: HK$590,829,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with total carrying value of
HK$72,851,000 (2016: HK$81,994,000) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

25 PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Unamortised prepaid land leases REBHETEMN RS
- Hong Kong —BE
— Mainland China — R E R
Development costs BERAAR

Properties for sale included the Group's share of joint operation with an
aggregate book value of HK$18,129,000 (2016: HK$18,129,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$144,550,000 (2016: HK$439,334,000).
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ERERAEIHUINABEERAZFEXA
BB ¥461,480,0000T (Z 2 — R F B
590,829,0007T) °

BR T 4818 1572,851,0007T (=T — <4 ¢
75%81,994,0007T) 2 T EE KT - 1EA
BRYIAEEBTEEZER -

25 ISEWE
2016
—T—REF
HK$'000
BT
15,882 15,882
58,394 544,042
303,359 673,104
377,635 1,233,028

BEMERERAEAEAB18,129,0007T
(ZZ—X4%F : #7%18,129,0007T) 2 KN &
EfhAEEE -

BEETIABERRAZDMEKXK BB
#144,650,0000T (= & — /X F: &
439,334,0007T) °
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 26 FEURERTX - FHHIRE R FAFFUE
2016
T—XF
HK$'000
BT T
Trade debtors B SRR 590,569 641,104
Less: Provision for impairment R RER (45,948) (27,099)
Trade debtors, net B o rIRERK - F5E 544,621 614,005
Retention receivables JE YR BB 3008 328,933 309,785
Less: Provision for impairment R ORER (33,570) (33,570)
Retention receivables, net FEWIREE A - F58 295,363 276,215
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HEMEKEER  FRiEeS RBANFKIE 552,550 197,267
1,392,534 1,087,487
The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of ﬁ%@%%lﬁﬁ’bﬁﬁ%g)ﬁ :ILLEE—LTHZE
its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors is 60 EHR f‘?ﬂ/\%ﬁﬁ %FZEJF%)TE’M:.A
days, except for insurance business where credit period granted to certain HiiBiB60K - A TE SR FHEENA
debtors is over 60 days. 60K °
The ageing analysis of trade debtors, net is as follows: BHRWER  FEIBRROTNT -
2016
7 /\‘aE
HK$ [00]0]
BT T
0 - 60 days 0— 60X 491,522 535,860
61 - 90 days 61— 90K 20,536 22,395
Over 90 days #IOK 32,563 55,750
544,621 614,005
As at 31 March 2017, gross trade debtors balances totaling HK$54,279,000 RZE—+ttF=ZA=Z+—"BREETKE
(2016: HK$32,452,000) were individually determined to be impaired, which NP v EoRINBREFEEHAELA
were related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The management B 154,279, 00071: (ZZ2—RF: B
assessed that only a portion of these balances was expected to be 32,452,00070) * EEBI K EE B TR
recovered. Consequently, specific provision for impairment of HK$45,948,000 (= iﬁ %? BE L fE Hﬁ 2 82 U B =6
was recognised (2016: HK$27,099,000). The Group did not hold any collateral 5} tESEthe B ERERIRERE
over these balances. The movement in the provision for impairment during & 75 #45,948,0000T (= = f — NE B
the year is as follows: 27 099,0007T) ° 7N £ B 37 4 B | 55 45 68 4%
BEMERR - RAFERERE 2 EEHN
T

At beginning of the year F1) 27,099 24,686
Exchange realignment (ERREE 96 (99)
Impairment loss recognised R AT E i 23,714 9,797
Impairment loss written back B e R EEE (2,443) (1,189)
Uncollectable amounts written off MisE AT el 2 2 58 (2,518) (6,096)
At end of the year FR 45,948 27,099
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade debtors that are not considered to

be impaired is as follows:

26 FEWERRR - FHIRERFAUIFIR (8)

fﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%i}ﬁiEZ%ﬁ%EEHSZEE%XZEEE%%M
N

Neither past due nor impaired I % 380 B SRl (E
Up to 60 days past due #EHIBOR A

61 — 90 days past due w61 — 90K
Over 90 days past due #EAEI90K
Amount past due but not impaired B e R R E
Total wam

Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly relate to
individuals or companies that have been the Group's customers for more
than six months with no history of default in the past.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated in the
following currencies:

Australian dollar SETT
Hong Kong dollar ot
Macau Pataca ke
Renminbi AR
US dollar e
Others Efh

As at 31 March 2017 retention receivables amounted to HK$33,570,000
(2016: HK$33,570,000) were individually determined to be impaired, on
which the Group experienced unexpected difficulties during the collection
process from the customers. The management assessed that the balance
was not expected to be recovered and full provision for impairment loss
was recognised.

The carrying amounts of retention receivables and other debtors as at 31
March 2017 and 2016 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2017 and
2016 approximated their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments was the Group's share
of receivables of HK$2,036,000 (2016: HK$2,010,000) in relation to joint
operation.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments with total
carrying value of HK$59,241,000 (2016: HK$63,320,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.
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295,715 324,483
202,156 226,473
19,799 15,880
18,620 41,816
240,575 284,169
536,290 608,652

BREZANE ZERETERTRECK
RAEERFPBEBNEALEERLEZA
THARIARE -

REEE S RBERZ REETIA TG
REAL

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

BT T

5,563 36,376
443,387 491,578
9,408 15,338
24,776 10,098
47,639 47,651
13,848 12,964
544,621 614,005

HE-_Z—+tF=ZA=+—8 EHKRH
FIEA 33,570,000 (T —/RF : B
33,570,00070) EEFIEEE A T RE
DAEEPRERFKERFBREFRE FER
NN RE - REIRE 2L TEHIRAEIK
[ 4% R W B HHER AR ERE -

R-FB—LER-_F— A E=A=+—R
FEUS R BRIA R L b R BR R 2 BRI A 2
SABMS B ARBS REBAT -

R-E—+FR_T-RF=ZA=1+—8"
PR R I U R 2 PR B R 1 72 (B4R

Eo

RN FHZe REMRBERIEASE
EnBERE—EAEKLEh 2 BIREER
A8 2,036,000 (ZF — KN F: B
2,010,0007T) °

BR T 48 {876 59,241,0007C (ZZ— /<4
75 #63,320,0007T) 2 EWERR « BTHIES
MIBMREEEEE - EAR T ASERTT
FEEZER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

27 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 27 SN IREREEEWE %
WORK 28

Contracts in progress at end of the year: RERZEIFEL
Contract costs incurred BEEZ B 10,835,741 8,705,640
Recognised net gains BRI T 5 186,444 68,702
11,022,185 8,774,342
Less: Progress billings B EERIE (11,462,902) (9,589,729)
(440,717) (815,387)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEREIWTA -
Amounts due from customers for contract work EEERRBEEARALN IR
included in current assets FEME P WE 2 I8 114,795 119,283
Amounts due to customers for contract work ERERRBEEAREGHNIE
included in current liabilities EREP SN ZHE (555,512) (934,670)
(440,717) (815,387)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to AN T RWEEZRFTEN A B ES5,0007T
HK$85,000 (2016: HK$934,000) and included in creditors. —Z—RF  B1934,0000T) BERIERE
FERFRA o
28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28 STHEMIE TR

Financial (liabilities)/assets in respect of PTHEBEIACZE® (BE),/ BE
derivative financial instruments
— interest rate swap contracts (note a) — FMEBEE L (Kitka) (1,554) (7,231)
— foreign currency forward contracts (note b) —RAINEE L) (MiFtb) (1,323) (720)
(2,877) (7,951)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMERBEIWA -
Current assets MENVEE 97 1,606
Current liabilities A E (2,974) (9,557)
(2,877) (7,951)
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28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28 ST T A (8
The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. PMETERSMEARZAAMBERE - T4
Their fair values are determined with reference to fair values of comparable TAZAREDNREBEIHEREETAZTSEA
instruments in the market or quoted prices from counterparties. The net RENEFREMSE - STETAZEREF
carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated in the following currencies: BIATIEERER -

INE

HK$'000

BT

Australian dollar SR (89) (248)
Euro BR7& (648) 96
Hong Kong dollar ks (1,554) (7,231)
US dollar E (683) 372
Others HAh 97 (940)
(2,877) (7,951)

Notes: B3 -

(a) Interest rate swap contracts of the Group with a total notional amount of (a) AEEAGFEH X AEE N LN ATR
HK$800,000,000 (2016: HK$800,000,000) were entered to swap floating interest EFEA Rz EAmME LA R AL B
rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between different floating rates. These 8% %% AB1800,000,0007T (ZF—<
contracts will mature on 10 October 2018 (2016: mature on 10 October 2018). F ¢ 75 %800,000,0007T) ° I E & #9195 %

ZE-N\EFTATH (ZE-RE BT
NFE+A+THEE) -

(b) Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group with a total notional amount up (b) REBABTRINERBAEMINER
to HK$110,768,000 (2016: HK$239,328,000) were entered to swap various foreign MElZLRMBIINESH HBAZRLER
currencies to other cross currencies. These contracts will mature within the period 7 #110,768,0000T (= & — XN F: H &
from 3 April 2017 to 3 January 2023 (2016: period from 5 April 2016 to 5 February 239,328,0007T) ° WLEAHHR =T —tF
2018). MAZHE-Z-_=5—-—A=AHBRN (=%

—RFRIF-RFEHARRE_F-N\F
“ARAHEN) B -
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29 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits with
an original maturity period over three months, short-term bank deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with financial
institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair
values.

Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRS
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMRITER

Unpledged bank deposits maturing after
three months

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the
following currencies:

Australian dollar SETT
Canadian dollar Yl
Euro ER7&
Hong Kong dollar ks
Macau Pataca ke
Renminbi AR
Singapore dollar #rns T
US dollar eI
Others Efh

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's bank balances of HK$405,867,000 (2016:
HK$333,410,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2017, the effective interest rates on short-term bank deposits
of the Group were 1.1% (2016: 1.0%) per annum respectively; and these
deposits had an average maturity of 49 days (2016: 73 days).

As at 31 March 2017 bank balances and cash of HK$243,971,000 (2016:
HK$95,411,000) were held in Mainland China and are subject to local
exchange control regulations, under which the balances could not be
exported freely out of Mainland China. The repatriation of funds out of
Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of dividends or other means
as complied to the regulations.

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

29 RITEEFERRE

ROTEFLASREMBRS - RAEZHS
[REB =0 A 2 BHRTFR - [RA 2 HH
PR A =1{E A AR & BRITIF R FEAN
BHEzRE HEEEZREEREAR
[ERIEE=

=& AR B 2 EEIRRITF R

2016

—T R

HK$'000

BT T

1,337,894 1,374,081
405,867 333,410
17,871 301,791
1,761,632 2,009,282

RITEFRRSZEEENATIEE RE

fif :
2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
BT
6,895 2,135
36,899 27,108
5,065 1,875
943,593 1,254,183
4,110 6,833
244,692 85,102
2,779 6,522
474,378 588,330
43,221 37,194
1,761,632 2,009,282

RZZ—+F=ZA=+—H8  AEEZRTT
41778 #405,867,0007C (ZF — /N 8
#333,410,00070) B FR1T - {ERE
FALEERITEEZER -

MR-ZE—+F=A=1+—8B A&EEZEH
BITERZEBRFNESRA1A% (ZF—
NE1.0%) 0 WEBRZFHEEHE S F
B4R (ZE—7RF 1 73K) »

R-ZE—+E=A=+—0 H81%
Wiz $RIT4AE 1T MR €8 243,971,000
(Z=Z— X4 : B%95,411,0007T) BB E
EHIMNEEHIRTE - B WELETAEA
FELPEAM - ESABEGER SR E Y
SFREZ AR AR E R o
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e SRR M EE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
HE-ZT—+HF=A=+—-RHILFE

30 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

B I RN ENRE

Trade creditors and bills payable

Retention payables FETMRE RIB

Deposits received EWT)\TR%

Accrued contract costs TERA A

Other creditors and accruals EMEMERETEREA

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as follows:

30 FEAYBR X -

BARRE  FAR

ERFEREH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
281,994 211,982
170,435 151,978
38,428 55,357
744,749 422,302
686,255 456,118
1,921,861 1,297,737

B RMNER BN R R ZREOTNT -

0 - 60 days 0— 60X
61 - 90 days 61— 90K
Over 90 days #I0K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable are
denominated in the following currencies:

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
BT T
265,123 175,503
1,174 17,192
15,697 19,287
281,994 211,982

REEZ B HRNERKENERZREE
TIAT IS R B

Hong Kong dollar 7B WK
Macau Pataca SR
US dollar =TT
Renminbi AR
Euro BR7#
Others i)

The carrying amounts of retention payables and other creditors as at 31
March 2017 and 2016 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca
and Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2017 and

2016 approximated their fair values.

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the Group's
share of liabilities of HK$1,347000 (2016: HK$1,249,000) in relation to joint
operation.
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2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
BT T
190,944 146,242
9,471 21,226
15,786 18,684
61,405 918
— 10,334
4,388 14,578
281,994 211,982

RZB—tFR_T-R"E=ZA=+—8"
JEA (R B8 308 K B A PR BR AR Z BREE A B
o ORPIBRARBREN -

Rt HFR-_T—RNF-_A=1+—H"
FERTBR AR R B S IB 2 BREEEE A R B
E o

JEATERER - BT 24K - ﬁ)&&%&iﬁh%ﬁﬁ
NEREAEER —EEeECEMEZE
& BB 1,347,000 (ZE—RF : B
1,249,0007T) °
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

31 OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS 3N RRRBRE

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually settled THEBERN 2 REBRE—RIE—F AL
within one year: B

- Employee compensation —EEEE

— Motor third party liability —ABEE=EHET

— Public liability - RBER

BEER (IKRERE) BEOT :

The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows:

2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
“RR\F CEENF C®-%F CR--F -®-CF CR-ZF "R-PF CR-EF CFAF L 4%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BMTn  RRTn  EMTn  RRTn  BMTn  AWTn  BRTn  AWTr  BRTn  ARTn BRTR

Estimate of cumulative claims (&3t 23 &E

At end of accident year ENERIAER 88,767 39575 57615 87,09 131582 155800 175730 161549 140,112 122,198
One year later % 84866 50541 57145 B4009 105001 122921 139,004 109443 109,851 -
Two years later WE% 5,288 45852 52207 67192 113384 137,053 152912 114,523 - -
Three years later =3y 4324 40146 46556 63,648 91456 120451 122,007 - - -
Four years later 31 44418 38954 43356 62724 87170 112573 - - - -
Five years later bkl 45508 39814 42636 60170 86,145 - - - - -
Six years later NER 46,140 40427 42595 60,086 - - - - - -
Seven years later i 46,95 40438 43119 - - - - - - -
Eight years later N\E% 46971 40,886 - - - - - - - -
Nine years later NEE 47357 - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative claims LS 47357 40886 43119 60,086 86,145 122201 114523 109,851 122,198 858,965

Less: Cumulative payments W BHENTE (46,466)  (40,335)  (41,609)  (58,170)  (85,024)

(100950)  (93,129)  (50,756)  (27,029)  (10,225)  (553,693)

29,098 63,767 82822 111973 305272

Claims outstanding at RIE-+F
31 March 2017 ZA=1-H
LRREE 891 551 1510 1,916 1121
Claims outstanding at RZE-—R
31 March 2016 Zh=+-H
RRRE 949 1,560 1,800 2,521 10,360

84,250 83852 131,406 - 362519

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will
occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of
insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity
of claims, actual benefits paid which are greater than originally estimated
and subsequent development of long tail claims.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits, approval
procedures for transactions that involve new products or that exceed set
limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of reinsurance and
monitoring of emerging issues.

The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection and the
implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements of reinsurance,
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims as well
as the investigation of possible fraudulent claims. The Group also enforces
a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, in order to
reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively
impact the Group.

The Group's underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks over a number of
years and, as such, reduces the variability of the outcome.

Riga AT ZRRTDELDAREN 2R
o BRESBEZ TEERRREMBIES
ZRERME - AEBRBLESHEAKRZ T
ERRABRRERENEBBARRAE
REE - R BREAR - RERBIR
- BEEREMNBEHRAGH RERIETERE
BREFE -

REBFBEHIAREE - HIEESHE D
FHBEBRBEZ G2 EMIERF - ST EBIE
5|~ P EIR BRI % P K BL R R A
EHEERRER

AREBEFEAT A ERER 2 &M - (F40
BERERARER - RYPEDR - BRIRRE
RIFBR AR P 287 RSB T A 2 RS
AR S BRFFE 2 R - ARBETTETT
TR EIE R AR R 2 B - AR A A]
BESI AR BIER A B 2 A FEH R R
&z Bk o

AREE 7 AR = K —{E 0 B FE

HAEMEELFRMERFO—EBRZHEE
[\ B B AR B BE R A LARUE R MR -
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32 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32 SRIT R EMEK

Bank and other borrowings are IRITREMMEFERHOT ¢
repayable as follows:
Within one year —FR 520,247 960,852
More than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years —F LA BT BIBMRE 355,199 529,521
More than 2 years but not exceeding 5 years ME LA BB BBRE 1,307,320 809,412
Exceeding 5 years BRAF 607,673 812,751
2,790,439 3,112,536
Less: Amount due within one year disclosed B ERBAERNEE
under current liabilities WR—FANEIHZ &8 (520,247) (960,852)
2,270,192 2,151,684
Represented by: 255
Secured B 1,409,272 1,817,931
Unsecured 4 45K 4 1,381,167 1,294,605
2,790,439 3,112,536
The carrying value of the bank and other borrowings approximate their fair AR ERTIOEBFI RS - RITRE
values as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rate. The bank g R EEEEE AR EEE - RITRE
and other borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: fERTIA T A EHE AR -

HK$'000
BT
Canadian dollar meExrT 26,942 26,360
Hong Kong dollar 7B WK 1,498,318 1,970,688
Renminbi ARHE 301,688 259,200
US dollar ET 963,491 856,288
2,790,439 3,112,536

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank and other borrowings as R=A=+—H8 ROTEHMOERZERF

at 31 March were as follows: FEMT -

Canadian dollar meXxT 2.1% 1.9%
Hong Kong dollar ok 1.9% 2.4%
Renminbi AR 4.8% 4.7%
US dollar e 4.1% 4.2%
Bank and other borrowings of HK$1,409,272,000 (2016: HK$1,817,931,000) $R1T R HAb BB 1,409,272,0007T (=&
were secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 14, —7REF : B%1,817,931,0007T) ThLAREE
15, 22, 24, 26 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements. BEFEERE RS BHREME14 15

22~ 24~ 26 29N FE o
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33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 @A
Number of
shares Share capital
gEd= RN
HK$'000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$1.25 each SIREESE 2602 EiER
Authorised: EERA :
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and R-—ZE—RFMA—H -
31 March 2017 —T—RF=ZRA=+—HRK
—E—+tF=A=+—H 540,000,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBZRE
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZE-—RFOA-—BR
—E—+F=A=+—H 301,928,440 377,411
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RFWNUA—H 299,990,835 374,989
Issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes RIE AR BT BT () 1,937,605 2,422
At 31 March 2016 RZEBE—RF=ZA=+—H 301,928,440 377,411
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34 RESERVES 34 B

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
FRARREL
Capital ~ Investment  Other assets Hedging  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation revaluation fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

g% ke  EfEE Hh  HERE
RtaE  ExBR  RERE  EARE 0 EfER  EMER  SERRE  RER A
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMTn  BBTr  BRTRn EWTn BRTn BMTn ERTn BETR ERTR

(note)
(Hi3)
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EMA-A 704,087 365,799 8,785 42,600 613,555 (7212) 267,060 5,377599 1312,213
Profit for the year A = - - - - - - 540,263 540,263
Fair value surplus of ERNEZ AR ERS
properties for own use - - - - 83,488 = = 5,907 94,395
Exchange difference on HERINELT
translation of operations of BELARAELE
overseas subsidiaries, LEBHEEL
associates and joint ventures INEHRER - - - - - - (224,947) - (224,947)
Change in fair value of AL E 2 RE
avallable-forsale investments NMEEY - - - 9,506 - - - - 9,506
Impairment loss on AL E 2 REN
available-for-sale investments HEFRERE
transferred to consolidated Falax
income statement - - - 5,676 - - - - 5,676
Fair value adjustments EEaRLINE
on the derivative financial HAHHTEREIA
instruments designated FEAxEER
as cash flow hedge in EHINEANR
respect of interest rate MEHEE
swap and foreign currency
forward contracts - - - - - 4,985 > S 4,985
Total comprenensive FE2EfRLE
income for the year - - - 15,182 88,488 4,985 (224,947) 546,170 429,878
Dividends paid Efke - - - - - - - n3s0)  (2n350)
Disposals of; HE
- Wonder {note 36(b)lii) - Wonder
(FiE3610)ii) = = = = = - 1,509 - 1509
- other subsidiaries - HHHBAT) - - - - - - (265) - (265)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F
=A=1-H 704,087 365,799 8,785 57,782 702,043 (2,227) 43,357 5,112,419 7,592,045
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34 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

A1 April 2015

Profit for the year

Fair value surplus of
properties for own use

Share of reserves of
an associate

Exchange difference on
translation of operations
of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint
ventures

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss on
available-for-sale
investments transferred
t0 consolidated income
statement

Fair value adjustments
on the derivative financial
instruments designated
as cash flow hedge in
respect of interest rate
swap contracts

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends paid

Issue of shares under scrip
dividend schemes

Deemed disposal of interest
in Cafe Deco (note 36(b)ii)

At 31 March 2016

RZE-T¥0A-H

EEER

BERIMELT
Belmhagts
LERHELL
NERBER

THE 2 FED
IYNEEL)
TRHEREN
FEFRERE
SalER

EEAREREH M
[TEEHIE
BENERSAHY
DAERR

FERENELR

ERks

BEUNRK 253
¥kH

RANERE
Cafe DecoZ B2
(Ht3£36(b)iil)

RZZ-A%
=A=t-8

NIEIE

premium

Capital
reserve

ARG
HK$'000
TR

(note)

364,096

Capital
redemption
reserve

O
HK$'000
i

Attributable to

[nvestment
revaluation
reserve

Al

Qther assets
revaluation
reserve
LAz

HE=

34 3B (&)

eholders of the Company

Hedging
revaluation
reserve

HK$'000
YT

Other
reserve

K
HK$'000
ARt

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve

i
HK$'000
BETR

E—tF=A=+—HIFE

Retained
profits

HK§'000  HK$'000
BT BRTR

680,214 8,785 73978 566,711 (1,801) 1,057 402446 5418776 7514,262
- - - - - - - - 315,056 315,056

- - - - 51420 - - - 4,144 55,664

- - - - (4,254) 1,446 (1,067) - - (3,865)

- - - - - - - (137248) - (137248)

- - - (48,538 - - - - - (48,538)

- - - 17160 - - - - - 17160

- - - - - 6,857) - - - (6,857)

- - - (31,378) 47166 (5,411) (1,067)  (137248) 319,200 191,272

- - - - - - - - (360377 (360,377)
23873 - - - - - - - - 23873
- 1,703 - - (322) - - 1,862 - 3,243
704,087 365,799 8,785 42,600 613,056 (7212) - 267060 5377599 7372273

Note: The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past including
redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of group entities.

M BHRIBEREBEZREEEAEER  8F

AAEEM - REMEZDREALBL
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35 DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:

35 JEIEM IR

IXA#E TR 2 HER &ﬂ&fiﬁ¢ EEE
ZEEREEHIAAE (EE) RAEZ

Amortisation

Accelerated of goodwill  Revaluation of
tax depreciation and trademarks properties Tax losses Others Total
NERERE BHEEEREE EffE HEEs At &g
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~ERA-R 38,956 46,780 218,673 (39,194) (4,540) 260,675
Exchange realignment kLS (38) 61 (11,607) (61) (79) (11,724)

Charged/(credited) to consolidated income EEERANERNR /GIA)

statement for the year (note 11) (BizE11) 455 11,300 56,102 (22,472) (2,235) 43,150
Charged to other comprehensive EEREMZERENR

income for the year - - 29,632 - - 29,632
Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang Group RANEEREE (M3E36(010)

[note 36(b)(i) - - 23,944 - - 23,944
At 31 March 2017 WoZ-+E=Zf=1-8 39,373 58,141 316,744 (61,727) (6,854) 345,677
At 1 April 2015 KZE-REMA-A 38,730 36,167 211,573 (41,068) 1,554 246,956
Exchange realignment EiAE 2 (44) (5,470) 163 (653) (5,982)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated income ERERRANGER GHA)/ Nk

statement for the year (note 11) (Fs¥11) (140) 12,450 12,570 715 (5,441) 20,154
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco BALERM(ECafe DecoZ R

(note 36(b)fiii) (3600 334 (1,793) - 1,006 - (453)
At 31 March 2016 RZF-~EZA=t-H 38,956 46,780 218,673 (39,194) (4,540) 260,675

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position presentation,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BB IREE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEBE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$2,537,188,000
(2016: HK$2,425,039,000) available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of HK$214,203,000 (2016:
HK$150,855,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset had been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$2,322,985,000 (2016: HK$2,274,184,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses were
losses of HK$136,678,000 and HK$75,785,000 (2016: HK$131,039,000 and
HK$152,831,000) of subsidiaries in Mainland China and the United States
of America ("US") that will gradually expire until December 2021 and
March 2037 respectively; the remaining tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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REARFRAVBRRARZBINTR  HTE
ERBEERABEGCDIEERE o BIERIEE
BMEM SIS Rk 2z AT

2016
—E—RF

HK$'000
BT
(26,815) (18,547)
372,492 279,222

345,677 260,675

R_E—tF=A=+—8 ~&EEXSHA
2 BTEE 18 A8 12,537,188,0005T (T —
JNEE ¢ B162,425,039,0007T) ¢ A AEE
R 2 R A s Al o E AR #214,203,000
7T (= Z — /X% : & ¥150,855,0007T) Z
HEBEECHRAECRBEE - BXK
o FEELATER - M BB T 2 RIEEE
75 %£2,322,985,0000T (=T — N F : B
2,274,184,00070) MR AEEFRBEEE -
REBEEEETR AN ENEREREH ([
) WEARERBR I IZE T =—F+
—ARZZE=+4F=H2#%136,678,000
JL K B #575,785,0007T (Z T — /N F : B
131,039,0007T & 7 #152,831,0007T) : 1M
BT 2 RBEEE]EREEE -
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35 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2017 deferred tax liabilities of HK$39,859,000 (2016:
HK$30,237,000) had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such
amounts were expected to be reinvested.

35 IERERLH (45)

HE-_Z—+F=A=+—H XBH#FET
P88 A Bl oK 9 IR & A i 7] B8 2 A5 2 FE AN B AR
RIRE R TE B (&8 139,859,0007T (= Z —
JNAE B #530,237,0007T) ¢ TE B & R0E
GHREBRE -

HE-_Z—+F=A=+—H KAEEZK
HiE 3R AT 1% D B 1 22 B A8 158,173,000
—EF X E#18,733,0007T) © FEEHE
KRR R 502 FERFLE FIA AR B 7
ZAIREREER MY ARRMEBE R
BARCEHBEEE -

36 e R ME R

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unrecognised deductible temporary
differences of HK$8,173,000 (2016: HK$18,733,000). No deferred tax asset
had been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as
it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) REEEZRSE

(a) Cash generated from operations

2017 Fk H+EBREEERD T

Profit before taxation FR 5 A1 4 ) 743,157 463,112
Adjustments for: EE
Share of results of associates Frib B & R RIEE (87,922) (116,932)
Share of results of joint ventures FiiE & &R 4,672 25,407
Interest income from bank deposits HBITFEREFB WA (19,333) (23,646)
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and RITESZ RIRIT R EMER
bank and other borrowings KF B 93,538 105,156
Dividend income from investments RERE ZRBHA (10,538) (22,687)
Depreciation E 81,559 104,195
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfh A E 485 2,619
Increase in fair value of investment properties REWEZ NREEM (226,033) (31,997)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—BREYHE 2 W (276) (52)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, MEWE  BERREZ
plant and equipment (Wezx) / B518 (498) 188
Loss on disposals of HELT AR ZEE
-~ Wonder (note 36(b)(ii)) — Wonder (F#7¥36(b)(ii)) 3,972 -
— other subsidiaries — HAib @R A (265) 97
- associates — BN 3 147
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales HER I E 2R AR
investments = (12)
(Gain)/loss on investments at fair value BEAnBEIANERREZ
through profit or loss TEN (=), B (14,294) 23,258
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial instruments MBI AY (Wes),/ BB (1,385) 1,569
Write down/(back) of inventories to Mom (B TEZR R
net realisable value, net FE - OFEE 765 (1,839)
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE - 4,656
Impairment loss on amounts due from JE UGB = N RIBR 2 R B B 1B
associates - 118,832
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR E 2 BRI EEE
investments 5,676 17,160
Impairment loss on trade and other debtors B 5 R E b YRR 2 B EEE 20,374 8,644
Gain on deemed acquisition of RAEKREE G SEE 2 Ka
Qi Yang Group (note 36(b)(i)) (Ft3E36(b)(i)) (7,060) -
Operating cash flows before EEESEIN LR RE
movements in working capital 586,597 677,875
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from non-controlling interests

Increase in investments at fair value through

profit or loss, net
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in properties for sale

Increase in properties under development

(Increase)/decrease in debtors,
deposits and prepayments
Decrease in amounts due from

customers for contract work

Increase in derivative financial instruments, net

Decrease in amount due to a
non-controlling interest

Decrease in amounts due to
customers for contract work

Increase/(decrease) in creditors,
bills payable, deposits and accruals

Decrease in unearned insurance
premiums and unexpired risk reserves

Decrease in outstanding insurance claims

Increase/(decrease) in deferred income
Exchange difference

Cash generated from operations
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36 FERERERMEE ()

(a) REEEZHE (A)

2016

—m_

HK$'000
BT

(2,850) 8,761
(34,629) (164,772)
7,855 9,224
184,911 439,334
(216,981) (353,445)
(207,744) 125,448
7,079 16,320
1,296 17,571
- (3,538)
(379,158) (16,815)
445,222 (363,988)
(56,552) (60,549)
(47,247) (23,529)
3,931 (4,364)
22,442 31,513
314,172 335,046
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36 ZRRERERM:EE ()

FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses

(b) WEER HEEH
(i) BRWBXE

(i) Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang

Qi Yang Group is engaged in car dealership business in Mainland
China. The Group has owned 40% equity interest in Qi Yang, an
associate of the Group. The remaining 60% equity interest is held
by Qi Yang Holdings Limited, the PRC business partner.

During the year, in order to step up the Group's participation in the
operations and strengthen the corporate governance of Qi Yang
Group, the Group's management had agreed with the PRC business
partner to implement certain changes to (i) the board compositions
of Qi Yang and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Qi Yang (Chengdu)
Investment Management Limited and (i) the control of the key
operating and financial activities of Qi Yang Group's businesses.
Pursuant to the announcement made by the Group on 30 March
2017, Qi Yang became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
since then.

EBEER T E A ETERER
2% AEERERE (REEW
— MRS R E) 2A0%MHE - R T
60% I i R B TG R RS R
BRABRE -

RARFEE  Bigg NE B2 EE
RinaEGEENTEER K&
EMERECRPHESBHEERK
WE - HOBEBLEZ2EWERQR
RS () REERARATNE
EAKURNSEEBRMESR TS
La R RN EITE T
o REAEIAHAE-_Z—+4F
ZA=+tRZRAE  BBAWKA
AEEH—FFEZEMBAA -

f

HK$'000
BT

Total consideration satisfied by: BREZZMAR -
Interest originally held by the Group (note 18) BASERAFENER (Fi18) 63,536
Amount due from Qi Yang Group FEW RIS = B 2 BR K 291,651
,,,,,,,,,,, 355,087
Less: fair value of identified assets acquired, R R BUEE B BiME R
liabilities assumed and the non-controlling ERIEE  TEREAER
interest at the deemed acquisition date: RS 2 A E
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M BB KERE (MiEE15) 356,042
Interests in joint ventures (note 19) AEME R (FEE19) 79,613
Inventories T8 171,302
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERR - FHRS RTFEMNFIEA 93,926
Amounts due from non-controlling interests FEULSEIE R i 25 AR 3K 46,437
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRRS 120,309
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEASTFEAE il 25 2 BRAX (260,964)
Amounts due to joint ventures EREEREZERER (406)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERERR - TARS RIBIREA (110,746)
Bank and other borrowings RAT R E AR B (88,117)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 35) RIEFIR A E (FIF35) (23,944)
Non-controlling interests e M (21,305)
362,147
Gain on deemed acquisition (note 8) R AWEE 2 Wax (KisEs) 7,060
Net cash inflow arising from the deemed acquisition: R &AWEE 2 IHE M AERE -
Bank balances and cash RITETFRAS 120,309

The above table also served as the disclosure of summarised financial
information (after inter-company elimination) of Qi Yang Group that
has non-controlling interests which are material to the Group.

EXRMEBERGER (BRI
lEm S A EEEER) 2 MBER
BZ (REELHEE) -
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)
(i) Deemed acquisition of Qi Yang (continued)

Had Qi Yang Group been consolidated from 1 April 2016, the Group's
consolidated income statement would show pro-forma revenue of
HK$6,444 million and no material change in profit for the year.

36 FEBEERERHE (B)

(b) R HEER (B)

(i) BARWEXS (&)
HWEEEEE T - FHA—H
RERGEAR  AIREEZGE
Wan & K FIR B E WA B 64 4418
TERFER BB ESKES -

The non-controlling interest of Qi Yang Group, an unlisted group,

was determined based on proportionate share of net assets of Qi

Yang Group.

(ii) Disposal of Wonder (HK) Holdings Limited (“Wonder”)

In August 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the Group's interest in Wonder.
The transaction was completed in October 2016.

FELTMEBERGEE 2R ER
TIRENEEGEEEEFEZLL
PIEESE -

(ii) H &Wonder (HK) Holdings
Limited ([ Wonder])

RZT—XNENA - AEEHE—{I
WY E =R UHE HELAER
MPWonderzZ #am c WEHEXHERZ
T—RNF+HAZEK °

HK$'000
BT

Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash received
Less: professional fees and other expenses

Less: net assets disposed of:
Interest in an associate (note 18)
Amount due from non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon
disposal (note 34)

Loss on disposal (note 8)

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal:
Cash consideration received
Professional fees and other expenses
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)

(iii) Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco Holdings Limited

(“Cafe Deco”)

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 11 December 2015,
Cafe Deco had agreed to allot and issue the shares to the third
parties. Upon completion, the equity interest of Cafe Deco held by
the Group was diluted from 60% to 25.28% and no longer be an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary and become an associate of

the Group.

Fair value of 25.28% equity interest of Cafe Deco

Less: net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment (note 15)

Goodwill (note 16)

Other intangible assets (note 17)

Interest in an associate

Other non-current assets

Amount due from an associate

Inventories

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Creditors, deposits and accruals

Deferred income

Bank borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (note 35)

Non-controlling interests

Capital reserve released upon disposal (note 34)

Other assets revaluation reserve released upon
disposal (note 34)

Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon
disposal (note 34)

Gain on disposal

Net cash outflow arising from the disposal:
Bank balances and cash

e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

36 FEBEERERHE (B)

(b) BB R HHE 27 ()
(iii)3 B H €& F7 {hCafe Deco

Holdings Limited ([ Cafe
Deco|) 2#z#:

BEAHA-Z—RFE+_A+—
Hz R W% Cafe DecolB A E
ME=ZFRERETRSD - K
% - NEBEIEE Cafe DecoZ M
60% #4585 %25.28% + Cafe Decol™

BR-HHEEFE2EMNBLR M
BRRAREE 2B E QT

HK$'000
BT

Cafe Deco 25.28% B 2 A A E

W BhEZEEFE

ME - BB REE (Hi5E15)
PE (FizE16)
HipmpaE (MiE17)

—[E AR R

EAIFRENE A

JE U — R 2 2 B BR AR

&

FEUERTR - 7 KR e RIENRIA
RITEFERAS

JERBRFR - FAR S RIBIREA

HRIEUA

ERITIEX

AEETIS R AE

FIEFRBAE (Mi3E35)

Sl

HERRR 2 EAMEE (H7E34)

HERERER Lt EEEGHHE
(F17%34)

HEB R 2 IMNE IR Z B R
(Ff5E34)

HEZ e

HE 2 RS HFHE
RiTEFRAS

(3,908)
(80,857)
(1,541)
(453)
(42,270)
1,703

(322)

1,862

(24,563)
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36 ZRRERERM:EE ()

FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)

(b) R HEER (B)
(iVVKEBEERLAT (HMED 2

(iv) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dolce Field Limited

(“Dolce Field”)

Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group agreed
to purchase 100% equity interest in Dolce Field, the immediate
holding company of 51% equity interest in FEH +REHEZEGR
A7) ("CCPD"), at a consideration of approximately HK$346,563,000,
which represents the cost of share capital and amount due to the
Group. CCPD was a company established in Mainland China and
owned as 49% joint venture by the Group as of 31 March 2015. The
transaction was completed in April 2015 and Dolce Field became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

100% A% #E

REBSHA-ZT—RF=_A_-1H
2@ ~EEREEERE (K
ETEMEZEBRAD ([KEBE
TEME]) Z51%%E 2 BEEER
AR Z2100% M - RELHAEBE
346,563,0007T * HHE AR AN AR K
ENAREEERR - KBETFHE
RAEBEAREKY R_E—RF=
A=+—8 ARESEHBI9%HE

BrABLE - RHR_T—AF
mASHR  EBEELAARATZ
—BW2ENEAT -

The following table summarised the consideration paid and the THRBABNARELRAKEBSHE
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised WRAIWEEERFAEGEZS
as at the acquisition date: Lo

HK$'000
BT

Total consideration satisfied by: BREZZFAR :
Amount due from a joint venture FEl—MEERERR 346,563
Interest originally held by the Group (note 19) AAEERAFENZER (ME19) 174,213
Fair values of net assets acquired (as shown below) Rk EEFEZ AR E (HFIT) 520,776
HK$'000
BT T
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows: BB EENAAEAGENT :
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - BE REE (HEE15) 4,432
Properties under development (note 21) BRAWE (HMiE21) 546,750
Other non-current assets HindEms&EE 2,750
Inventories FE8 637
Properties for sale HEME 869,325
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERFK - TFHiRe RIBARIE 15,166
Bank balances and cash WITHETFRAS 2,304
Amount due to a joint venture R —ME B hEERR (166,701)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERERFR - TARS KIBIREA (612,010)
Bank borrowings RITIEN (141,877)
Total identifiable net assets AR B E T ERTE 520,776
Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition: WEE 2 RS MASEEE ¢
Bank balances and cash RITEFRA S 2,304
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36 ZRRERERM:EE ()

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued) (b) BB R BT (F)
(v) Acquisition of 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest Limited VKB EZEERAT(EE]) 2
(“Mass Harvest”) 1% %
Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group agreed $F< B_T—RAF=A=+B2%
to purchase 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest, the immediate ZISEIITEE%E%I% (PR EPHEA
holding company of A &Pttt %) T BBXIEE AR A 7] at a consideration ﬁ% TEEEER E'd& Al BEER
of approximately HK$26,696,000, which represents the cost of NA) ZN%EHE - RELHAEBE
share capital and amount due to the Group. Mass Harvest was a 26,696,0007E SRR AR A &
company established in the British Virgin Islands and owned as 49% BERNAREERR  RERRBER
joint venture by the Group as at 31 March 2016. The transaction REENY RZTE—RF=A=
was completed in April 2015 and Mass Harvest remained as a joint —H AEREBEEFIO%EZR 2
venture of the Group. BETE - RXFR_ZT-—HFMNA
T REMAAEEZ —HBE%
-

37 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business BETREANR  REBAHBAZHE

combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are FRRR - iR - BARE REM TR IR S
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from such REERRBRZEREERIB2RACESE
intangible assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March 2017 and B - RZE—+FR_ZF—A"F=ZA=+
2016 had been allocated as follows:

37 ﬁ%&ﬂiﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁéiiﬂ{ﬁl,.ﬂ
&

—A - ZEZEAESESEWT

Goodwill License Others
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BETT BETT
Cost AR
Construction and engineering BEREMTIZ
- roads, drainage and waterworks — B BB MOKFEIRE - 26,534 -
Property development and operations PR K EE
- cold storage and public bonded - REBEER
warehouse (note a) NRREE (H5Ea) 66,027 3,000 -
Senior housing (note b) ZEhr & (KizEb) 569,837 - 5,206
Others HApth - - 11,228
Insurance and investment R RIEE - - 4,130
635,864 29,534 20,564
Accumulated amortisation/ Rt RESE
impairment loss
Construction and engineering BENEETIE
- roads, drainage and waterworks — B B RKIFEIRE - (26,534) -
Property development and operations VEERREE
— cold storage and public bonded —REEER
warehouse (note a) ARRTERE (Kizka) (1,461) (3,000) -
Senior housing (note b) ZEfRE (Miskb) (4,662) - (5,206)
Others H - - (1,900)
Insurance and investment R RIEE - - (4,072)
(6,123) (29,534) (11,178)
Net book value at 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF
=R=+—HAZEREEE 629,741 - 9,386
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37 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Nﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁEZMEM
= (48

( =}

Goodwill License Others
[EES hE iR HAtb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok BT BT T
Cost 2%
Construction and engineering FEE N TR

— roads, drainage and waterworks — B RIS MOKIE IR - 26,534 -
Property development and operations MR R EE
- cold storage and public bonded —REBEERAR
warehouse (note a) REE (Hzka) 66,027 3,000 -
Senior housing (note b) s (Misb) 569,104 - 5,199
Others Hith - - 4,530
Insurance and investment R RIZE - - 4,664
635,131 29,634 14,393
Accumulated amortisation/impairment Rt RESE
loss
Construction and engineering BRERMEMTIZ
- roads, drainage and waterworks — B BB NKIEIE - (26,534) -
Property development and operations VHEERREE
- cold storage and public bonded —REBEERAR
warehouse (note a) REE (MiiFa) (1,461) (3,000) -
Senior housing (note b) zEkRE (MiFtb) (4,656) - (4,803)
Others H - - (1,904)
Insurance and investment REg RIGE - - (4,5651)
,,,,,,, ©11n (29534 (11.258)
Net book value at 31 March 2016 R-ZE—RF
=A=+t—HZEREFEE 629,014 - 3,135

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there
are indications that they might be impaired.

The Group tests other intangible assets for impairment whenever there is
an indication that they might be impaired.

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired
require estimations of the higher of the value in use or fair value less cost
to sell. Both approaches require the entity to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from CGUs and suitable discount rates in order to calculate
present value.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate the
discount rates and net operating income (for senior housing). Management
estimates appropriate discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Management determined
budgeted growth rates and gross margins based on past performance and
market expectation. The discount rates and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant CGUs.

(a) Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business

Goodwill, after impairment of HK$64,566,000 (2016: HK$64,566,000)
is allocated to the Group's cold storage and public bonded warehouse
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on
value-in-use approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year
period. Cash flows beyond the period are extrapolated using a 3% growth
rate per annum and a 9% discount rate per annum.

(b) Senior housing business

Goodwill, after impairment of HK$565,175,000 (2016: HK$564,448,000)
and no lease-in-place, after amortisation (2016: HK$396,000) are allocated
to the Group’s senior housing business. The estimated recoverable
amounts are determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation
uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering three to fouryear period. Cash flows beyond
the period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate per annum and a
10.5% discount rate per annum.

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

e I HRAR MR
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Nﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁEZMEM
= (48

( =}

& B R EREKA 2 S AR B EE I K
IS RREE 2 TEHHE - BERERES
ERBALAMSANEECRERLREXILER
o PRERMRBAHRSELBMTIER
ZEERR

(a) ABRERDXBRMAESR

B 1% 7 #64,566,0007T (= T — X
F ¢ B ¥64,566,0000T) Z HE W H B
EAEBZABREERARRMAEE
%o AEtA kB S B IYRERAPEEE
BT BHTEFCHREEREEMZZ
—FHYBEECRBEARESRER
Al o FBBER 2B SR ERIETFI%HE
EENO%IIRFREE o

(b) RERE K

P 2R (B B #565,175,0007T (—ZF— X
& 564,448,000 ) KT #EIRTF
HE (ZF—/ F : B%396,0007T) %
WABREAEE 2 TER S E o B3
e EDNEFERREELET - B
M:tEEAREEREEMRZEZ =ENE
HUBEEZGRBARSRERN - B
BHERZEASTEFEATFINERER
10.5% B IRFEHEH -

BEE2EA RS

Directors’ emoluments EEM:
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: ENRERTESZME0T
2017
—E—+tF
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution
Hek BRETE
=10 Hin g7 Z R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BET T BT T
Executive Directors HiTESE
Chow Yei Ching (Co-Chairman) BTV (B EEFE) - 1,787 - 1,787
Kuok Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and HEE

Managing Director) (B ERHREFELE) - 13,720 675 14,395
Tam Kwok Wing SRR (RIESEKLE)

(Deputy Managing Director) - 11,400 465 11,865
Ho Chung Leung o SRR - 3,500 225 3,725
Ma Chi Wing Eots - 5,500 262 5,762
Lily Chow IEEIE] - 1,850 139 1,989
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph * JEI AR R 300 - - 300
Sun Kai Dah, George #** Rz 127 - - 127
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles * HE= 350 - - 350
Poon Chung Kwong # BRI 250 - - 250
Irons Sze ** i <Y 87 - - 87
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JE4EIE 100 - - 100
Ko Chan Gock, William Sh-d 100 - - 100

1,314 37,757 1,766 40,837
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38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BEFZ2E R (

EE=HS (8)

2016
o

/N
Salaries

Retirement

Directors’ and other scheme

fee contribution
ek RIRGT S
EEMWe H At 42 A Z AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETRT  BETR

HK$’'000
BT

BITEE

Executive Directors

Chow Yei Ching (Co-Chairman) BTV (BEERE) - 15,235 - 15,235
Kuok Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and EE (BEERFE
Managing Director) FERLE) - 13,000 624 13,624
Tam Kwok Wing BRI
(Deputy Managing Director) (RIESBKE) - 10,800 423 11,223
Ho Chung Leung (EGRES - 3,300 210 3,510
Ma Chi Wing R - 4,000 225 4,225
Lily Chow FBFIF) - 1,700 128 1,828
Non-Executive Directors EHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph # JE) BA A 250 - - 250
Sun Kai Dah, George * TARHE 250 - - 250
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles # HiEs 300 - - 300
Poon Chung Kwong * ER 250 - - 250
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar I5kE:3na 50 2,512 169 2,731
Ko Chan Gock, William aBEE 100 - - 100
1,200 50,547 1,779 53,5626
#  Independent Non-Executive Director OB IEITES
*  Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 25 November 2016 * R-TB-RNE+—A-+HBEZEABIIE
WiTES
** Retired as Independent Non-Executive Director on 2 September 2016 > R-B—XNENA-REREBIIENTES
Employees’ emoluments EEES

hEERFMALRIE =3 (ZF—RF:
m&) 8% REZHeFBEDEIIME -
SNTFEBME (ZE—RF: —FR) &S
FATZEFHNR

The five highest paid individuals include three (2016: four) Directors, details
of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments paid to the
remaining two (2016: one) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2017
—E—+tF

HK$'000
BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ha - BN HMAER] 6,685 2,265
Performance-based bonus BRIDE R AL 5,774 4,458
Contributions to retirement scheme RIKET 812 13K 36 18

12,495 6,741
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38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: one) highest paid individuals
fall within the following bands.

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

BEFzENRER (8

EEMS (8)

HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000
HK$6,000,001 - HK$7,000,000
HK$8,000,001 - HK$8,500,000

The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees also
represent only benefits paid to the Group's key management during the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party or were parties and in which a Director of the
Company or any entities connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for
utilised borrowings in relation to:

754,000,001 7T — 7% 4,500,0007T 1 -
756,000,001 7T — #%7,000,0007T - 1
758,000,001 7T — 7#%8,500,0007T

titREEREECNREN 2B RAR
HE-_Z—+FR-_T-—R"F=ZA=+—H
LTEERAEETIZEREXNZE—
F o

EERXS - REHESHNPZEXRES

ARR] -~ HHTE QRS E R R E A S
RIS RN 4 B R AF R AR DAF
£ MARRESREMEZESTAHEN
ERNETERSHEEEEAERAEH
KREEXBNEAR S - RHHAL °

39 HFAREE

AEEFECBHBERMEL ZERZEIAE
VK

Banking facilities granted to associates
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture

The Group's share of contingent liabilities of its joint ventures was as follows:

BYBERRZRITEE

By —HaErEZRIIEE

Guarantees given to banks and housing retirement %4 FRITREEAESHLREET
fund management centers for mortgage facilities & TFWEBR 2 IZBEENER
granted to certain buyers of properties

3,442 14,081
295,254 184,232
492,299 348,964
790,995 547,277

KAEBEMEEAEREZRARABWT

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities #ATHRITHBTFELEDEZMED

granted to certain buyers of the joint ventures’
properties

ETERZIEBEENER

3,212 4,208
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40 COMMITMENT 40 & iE
The Group had commitment as follows: REEZEENT -

Contracted but not provided for in the MTYEEBRITANEBRE
consolidated financial statements in respect of IRA B RERANGTIR 2 AR
- property development projects — Y EERIEE 500,114 637,158
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BABE && 14,211 1,311
— acquisition of an investment property —BA—EIREYE = 5,970
514,325 644,439
The Group's share of commitment of its joint ventures was as follows: AEEMGHEEREZAENT ¢
2016
o
HK$'000
BT T
Contracted but not provided for BEELERFHE 47,275 307,619
41 OPERATING LEASES N EEHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEHERBEA
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under AEBEREFHERBETIRHE EEHRE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which MARAREFZHEBESLE  HHER
fall due as follows: HAGRR
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T
Within one year —FRA 29,630 24,078
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZRFAN (PREEEMTF) 25,103 7,752
Over five years AFMUE 33,944 3,730
88,677 35,560
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic FAEAEEEFEEREEEE - U
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable PiEENERNES (AEE) (BE) 2%
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by applying & MWEEIINEE —REAKRKRBEE TER
pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic rentals of the AoREHEEZERNEeMEE - BT
respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the amount AR R LEEEREIMAS 2 RFE o

of such additional rentals.
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41 OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

As at 31 March 2017, investment properties and properties for sale
with carrying values of HK$3,589,366,000 and HK$21,845,000 (2016:
HK$3,620,184,000 and HK$22,820,000) respectively were rented out under
operating leases. These properties have committed tenants within the next
five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods is
as follows:

M EEBE (8

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

AEEFEHHAA

HE-"ZT—+F=A=+—0 NULERE
LR EENELRFENEZEAES A
% #3,589,366,0007T & 78 #21,845,0007C
(ZZF—7R4F : #¥3,620,184,0007T &8
22,820,0007T) ° LEWEEHERABER K
RAFWAA - AEER TS HERER
AEE s AEREMRARER ZERE
SENT -

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years BBARF

42 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the "ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF
Schemes”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group and in funds under the control of trustees. The
ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both employees
and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.56% of the employee's basic
salary, depending on the length of service with the Group. For members of
the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs
per employee, at a maximum of HK$1,500 per month during the year ended
31 March 2017, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in countries
or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required to make
defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage or sum of
the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31 March 2017 and
2016, there were no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees
leaving the ORSO Schemes and which would be available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years. No forfeited contributions utilised in
this manner during the year end 31 March 2017 (2016: nil). As at 31 March
2017, contributions of HK$3,154,000 (2016: HK$3,196,000) due in respect of
the reporting period were paid over to various schemes in April 2016.

E_ERFA (BEEEMSF)

97,423 107,676
16,497 27,133
154 1,041
114,074 135,750

RIKEF

REBREENGIMER ZBANRIZ AR
RIEFIFTE) -

REER - AEE2EE (BRG]
FEfM 2 5E A B (TR SR IREH 81 )
R-ZFTTFE+ - AR CRHERESETE
GO R ZBBMRESHE ([BRES
SED c RERBZEETARETEAZS
ZERERA  BAKEEENHEE - BB
ERREE RERAKEEARERES
Z5%E7.5% RMHE - HFRERENAEE
ZEEME - AREREESEEIKE -
BEEAMEBAARZLRAHE (BE-ZF
—tFZAZT-ALFEEEARZAEE
1,50070) BLoRTE S 5t &I (E R BIMEHR o

REBET2EAEBREER 2 ERAMER
ZREBRKEFE - AEEARIAT A
ZETAEALEBAFEZ S REREH

ET
N

fis /2 B R 3R 2 BUER B AR ) B %R IR 5T
B B2 UK R AT A A S B0 R R AT 3R
2R R E—+FER_T—RFZA=T
—H - WEREE SR DB ERARGTEIW R
FHRENHRZB2KRER - BE22T—
+tEZAZTALFETENARFEAEA
ZERUER (ZE—RF ) c RZZT—
tF=ZA=+—H  RABREHEEN 2S5
B FBERES,164,0000T (ZZT— < F : B
3,196,00070) ERZE— A FMAZf -
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEAEALTZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with related RAFERBEHAEATZCEERSHFIBEN
parties are as follows: o
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T
Contract income from a joint venture RKE—BAEREZANKRA 39,168 20,100
Contract services fee to an associate LT —EBERARZAEHNRBER (991) (505)
Management fee income from associates (note 7) HEEHME AT 2 EEBBIA (H:X7) 20,146 21,340
Management fee income from joint ventures KEARETEZEBBRA
(note 7) (P 5E7) 3,945 3,138
Maintenance fee to an associate LY HEEARAZREER (6,089) (6,004)
Management fee to an associate By BB E R ZEIREH (337) (336)
Building management fee income from RE—EBERARZIEFTEIRE
an associate WA 1,121 1,132
Rental income from an associate ke —EEE AR ZHES WA 20,539 20,506
Rental expenses to an associate KLY ML AR ZEAETH (152) (161)
Sales and marketing services income from KE—HEBE R ZHER
an associate (note 7) 5 ERR IS YA (K3E7) 27,930 26,037
Secondment fee income from an associate kA —MEERE 2 ERAERA 1,391 1,244
Sales of food and beverage to associates HE THE AR ZER - 1,417
Insurance premium from associates REBE R ZIRBE 7,368 5,829
Insurance premium from a joint venture RE—HEELEZRRE 44 310
The above transactions were entered at terms mutually agreed between all PR S TRAEBER EXRETE 2 GRE
parties involved. hvats
The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key AFEEE (BFENFEERALAEELTEEE
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 38 to the BXE) 2 F SN E M SRR M E38 -

consolidated financial statements.

44 ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE/LIABILITIES DIRECTLY MBEHEEE HIEEHES

ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE EHEHERAZEE
On 1 June 2017 the Company announced it has entered into an agreement RZZ—+FAA—H  AARSHEEH
in respect of the disposal of Chinaford Investment Limited (“Chinaford”) and HERBRAGRAR ([RE]) REBE (5
Dolce Field (investment holding companies which hold the entire interest BERARLIEHESH#@ CRELBD
in CCPD) and the assignment of debt at an aggregate cash consideration of 7)) REBERIL—HBREHNBORE
approximately HK$1,773 million (the “Disposal Transaction”) as detailed in W17 73R TR (HEXZ]) - FRARN
note 45(c). Assets and liabilities of CCPD were reclassified as held-for-sale M5E45(c) - REBETREEZ EERABR
as at 31 March 2017 ZE—tF=RA=+t—HEFLEAFIEL
& o
HK$'000
BT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y - BB REE (FFEE15) 1,676
Properties under development (note 21) BERPWE (HE21) 533,464
Properties for sales HEmE 580,488
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWER - FHiEE RIEM KA 8,165
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRE® 110,004
Assets of subsidiaries reclassified as held-for-sale BN BEARELEZNBRARZEE 1,233,787
Liabilities af&
Amount due to a joint venture B —MEeEhERR (25,893)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER  FARESKEBRER (122,375)
Liabilities of subsidiaries reclassified as held-for-sale BN BEARELEZNBERARZEE (148,268)
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45 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Acquisition of senior housing properties

On 3 April 2017, the Group announced it has entered into an agreement to
acquire two additional senior housing properties located in Michigan, the
US, at the consideration of US$33 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$257 million). These two senior housing properties provide an
aggregate of 299 units with a total rentable area of over 170,000 square
feet.

(b) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Silver Prosper

Holding Limited (“Silver Prosper”)

On 18 May 2017, the Group announced it has entered into a provisional
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in Silver Prosper where the
principal asset is the property located at Davis Street, Hong Kong, which
is for residential and commercial use at the consideration of HK$228
million.

(c) Disposal of entire issue share capital in Chinaford and

Dolce Field

On 1 June 2017 the Group announced it has entered into an framework
agreement to dispose the entire issue share capital in Chinaford
and Dolce Field to Yango International Investment Group Limited and
Yango City Group Co., Ltd at a net consideration of RMB1,570 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,773 million). Chinaford and Dolce
Field are the investment holding companies of CCPD which is principally
engaged in a property development project in Chengdu of Mainland
China, namely Chateau Ermitas, and is also the holders of three parcels
of land.

(d) Acquisition of development right for the land

On 13 June 2017 Urban Renewal Authority (“URA") notified Chevalier
Pacific Limited (“Chevalier Pacific”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group that URA has accepted the tender offer submitted by and awarded
the right to develop the land (“Land”), which is located at Fuk Chak
Street/Li Tak Street in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong to be known
as Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11259, to Chevalier Pacific. The consideration
payable by Chevalier Pacific for the right to develop the Land is HK$680
million.

e I HRAR MR
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BHE-_Z—+F=-A=+—RILFE

45 FHEHR KSR
(a) WERERENE

R-ZT—+tFMA=0 " A&EBESH
HE a3 B R EB = AR N
ZMBEREREME  RERESE3,300
BT (HERQBE2578TT) - ZME
TEREYES LIRH299E B - A
H AT EA170,000°F 5 R -

(b) i BBREBEBAERAT ([RBEKE])

100%% #

R_ZTE—+FRA+NA AEEE
i HERITTREHDEAKBREER
100% s - REABEE228EB T %
AANEBEEAMNREBERTHN
ZWE  ZVEREEERBERR -

(c) HEREBRBAZMERTRA

R-Z—+FRA—H AEEEM -
HEZERABEABRERBBH 2
MEBITERALE TR EEREKR
BERRAEGAHRERRNDARA
A REFER/ARK15.70ET (BE
RAE17.73187T) - RIERE BT
WMETEHE ZREZRQT - KEE
TREMETZNHBE AR EYE
FEIAE (BN EME) TR=1EH
BRZBEA -

(d) U B - 3t ) 3 4

RZZE—tFRA+T=H mMEREER
((MREER]) NeAE@M2EHEB
ARELZTERRAE ([HE+z])
TeEEERDESE T Zhaitit
([t ]) ZFABERR ZBIERE L
B ESZ L R o L
REBNLEXABERZE FEE (8
BNBERNHERFE1126958048) - E+52
DBz L RAEEEN ZRERS
#6.8187T °
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in associates

Other intangible assets
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from associates

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments
Creditors, deposits and accruals
Bank borrowings

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (note a)

Total equity

Non-current liability
Bank borrowings

Total equity and non-current liability

FRBEE
FRAGH B~ )2 #E s
gl VNI 2
HELEE
AHHEZRE

REBEE

JRE W2 B R BR R

JRE MBS 5 R BR R
BonEIABGEREZRE
FEUIRTR - frHiRE RIEN IR
RITEFRESD

REBAE

JEAST BT B8 2 RIBR X
DIEMBTA

FEAERTR - F AR S RIERE R
RITHER

RBRERE
REERRBEE

IR K fit
[N

s (FieEa)
S

FRBAE
RITHEK

BESRIRBEAE
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46 A QT BARR R EEEER

DNRFHARRT
RZZE—+F=A=+—H

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

BT

3,620,707 3,599,408
89,594 89,594
599 599
66,314 81,653
3,777,214 3,771,254
3,211,003 1,969,092
14,983 18,074
160,975 195,694
70,872 15,034
314,805 544,590
3,772,638 2,742,484
3,817,948 2,872,547
1,493 7861
4,049 3,313
104,263 250,943
3,927,753 3,134,664
(155,115) (392,180)
3,622,099 3,379,074
377,411 377411
2,049,583 1,949,869
2,426,994 2,327,280
1,195,105 1,051,794
3,622,099 3,379,074




46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

Reserves movement of the Company

Capital
Share Contributed redemption
premium surplus reserve

R EE BABH EXBERHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT T BETT
(note i)

At 1 April 2016 RZZF-A~FNA-A 704,087 95,413 8,799

e I HRAR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE_T—tF=-A=+tHLFE

=}
i

=

46 AT M BRRREEEE R

(a) ARFIHEEE

Investment
revaluation
reserve
RESRE
HK$'000
BETR

Hedging Retained
reserve profits
HHRE REET aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTE  AETR BETR

25,351 (7.212) 1,123,431 1,949,869

Profit for the year EFEF - - - - - 300,279 300,279
Impairment loss on available-forsale AHREEZRENRE

investments transferred to income FBREEERER

statement - - - 5,676 - - 5,676
Change in fair value of available-forsale AEHE ZREN

investments AREZY - - - (559) - - (559)
Fair value adjustments on the EERREMEN T

derivative designated as cash flow TETERBA R

hedge in respect of interest rate BRONARERE

swap contracts - - - - 5,668 - 5,668
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ENHHE - - - 5,117 5,668 300,279 311,064
Dividends paid BRRE - - - = = (211,350) (211,350)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+&£=A=1—H 704,087 95,413 8,799 30,468 (1,544) 1,212,360 2,049,583
At 1 April 2015 R-E-R&ENA—H 680,214 95,413 8,799 71,105 (355) 995,491 1,850,667
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - 488,317 488,317
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEZRENRE

investments transferred to income BRERZNER

statement - - - 17,160 - - 17,160
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHLE 2 AR

investments AREZY - - - (62,914) - - (62,914)
Fair value adjustments on the EEABSREL R

derivative designated as cash flow fTETARENERS

hedge in respect of interest rate BRNARERE

swap contracts - - - - (6,857) - (6,857)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2HNFHHE - - - (45,754) (6,857) 488,317 435,706
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - (360,377) (360,377)
Issue of share under scrip divided BEABRA B3 8I34T

schemes &fn 23,873 - - - - - 23,873
At 31 March 2016 RZE-A"F=f=1—-H 704,087 95,413 8,799 25,351 (7212) 1,123,431 1,949,869

Note: (i) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of Bt (i) BABRBRTIRETUEN B QA

net assets of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for their acquisition. Under the Companies
Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution to shareholders.

ZEEFERYBERETAR
AkmcEERZZE - BREB
RE(-AN—FREE) K
RAEZHANBHRTI AR T K
o
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place or country
of incorporation or
registration/
operation

Class of
Name of company shares held
Ve

] ER4Y

FERHRH

Changchun New Star Universe Mainland China N/A
Sheng Chi Real Estate HERY TR
Development Co., Ltd. (note a]

REVEFERRHERD
EREERT (M)

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
Hong Kong Limited Be A

A1 (RIR) BRERAR

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary

Limited (note b) & L@
#1 (BT#) BRAR (Kit)

Deferred
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common
nex B
Chevalier (Building Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary
Engineering) Limited (note b) i L
T (BHIR)BRAA Deferred
(Mf3kp) jida
Chevalier Cali Holding (Cal) Inc. US Common
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Mainland China N/A
Management Limited (note ¢ hERY R
At (8) REERERAA (Mikc)
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common
nex i
Chevalier Cold Storage and Logistics Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited i L
ETREMRERAR
Chevalier (Construction) Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited & |
A1 (B%) ERAA
Chevalier Construction (Hong Kongl  Hong Kong Ordinary

Limited (note b) Bo La
ETRE (B%) BRAA (i) Deferred

Issued and
paid up
share capital/
registered
capital

BRTRME
&/ EfREE

RMB675,000,000
AR675,000,0007C

HKS2
o

HK$100
AB1007

HKS2
R

CAD101
01084

HK$20,000,100
7720,000,1007C
HK$2

ko

US$2,012,000
40120005

RMB250,000,000
AR¥250,000,0007C

CAD101
0108AT

HKS2
B

HK$60,500,000
460,500,007

HKS1,000
B1,0001
HK$10,000
%%10,0001
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Number of
shares

vt E!

N/A
TER

200

20,000,100

4,012,000

N/A
TER

200

60,500,000

100

1,000

47 FEMB QT

Effective percentage of issued
share capital/registered capital
held by the Company

ARARRERS
R/ ERRE2EREDL
Directly Indirectly

% %

- 99.67

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by
non-controlling
interests
FRRREER
BRTRE
AfRAZEA

2%

033

Principal activities

Property development

VES

Supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain
walls

RERBRLHERER

Supply and installation of
aluminium windows and curtain
walls

REREEZHERER

Sale and servicing of automobiles

NERERELRT

Supply and installation of building
materials

RENHRERZK

Grocery trading
k225

Investment holding and provision
of management service

BRARRRRREERY

Sale and servicing of automobiles

NERERELRT

Operation of a cold storage
warehouse and logistic business

EELRERRIED

Building construction and
maintenance

BTRERRE

Building construction
|- £5 -
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 471 TEMB AT (&)

Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests  Principal activities

FRRREER
R BRTRAR ARIRRERS BRTRE
AREE EXHE RO R &/ EfREE RO#E  RE/ERRAZERAMM AfRAzAM  TEXE
Directly Indirectly

%

Chevalier (Corporate Management)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Provision of corporate
Limited Bk La AT management services

T (REEE) BRAR RUCEERRE

Chevalier Development (S) Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary 582,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 - Property investment

i il 2,500, 0005 KT NERE

Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 - Installation of electrical and
Limited & a 7%#%69,200,0007C mechanical equipment

£+ (BEIR)ARAA and provision of project

management service

REBERBRRMEREERY

Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common PES08,750,000 87500 - 100 - Waste disposal treatment services
47 iR 8750, 0002 E & BEENRERH
Chevalier (Envirotech] Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 - Environmental engineering
A1 (REEE) BRAA 3 5 7148,600,0007C BRIE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - - Insurance brokerage
A1 (RBER) ARLT EE il 1,000,000 RBEH
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - - Insurance underwriting
ALRBARAT B4 it 7#200,000,0007 REXH
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Trading and servicing of computers
ETHRIRERAA & L BT and business machines
SHRAEHEEARAL

Chevalier iTech Thai Limited (note d) ~ Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 - Trading of computers and
(GED) ZE b 18,980,000%% business machines

Preference BAHT1,020,000 10,200 - 100 - ERREZREES

& 1,020,005
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 4 - 100 - Building construction and installation
£+ (2M) 5RAR ] L AFI%100,0007T of airconditioning systems,

aluminium windows and
curtain walls
BFREATRRRANEERER

Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Network systems and solution
ET (BERE) BRAA B £ BT services
BRERRNRRE
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 471 TEMB AT (&)

Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests  Principal activities

FRRREER
R BRTRAR ARIRRERS BRTRE
AREE EXHE RO R &/ EfREE RO#E  RE/ERRAZERAMM AfRAzAM  TEXE
Directly Indirectly

%

Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Trading of telecommunication
Limited 28 La 15,000,000% equipment
THARES
Keysford 1 Limited (formerly known  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 - Property development
as "Chevalier (OA) Limited") E3 EF A5100,0007 NELE

(FRALL (B22H) BRAF)

OR4 Laurehurst, LLC Us N/A 1S82,000,000 N/A - 100 - Operation of senior housing
*E R 2,000,000%7 TER merEhs
Chevalier Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
Limited (note b) 3 Eic 7#360,000,0007 investment
ELEERERLT (Hih) Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 - DEBRRRE
it BEBIT
Chevalier Property Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Property management and
Limited (note b) i La EE1007T security services
ALERNFERERAT (M) Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 - MEERRRERE
jida E81,002T
CIH (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordinary US$1 1 100 - - Investment holding
EREERES i 30 RERR
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$415,284,200 4,152,842 - 100 - General construction and trading
Limited (note b) B L 7 %415,084,200T0 business
ATEEEAERLT (Mih) Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - 100 - —BRERBREE
jida 7%7%25,936,2007
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 25 Property investment
BALRERLR & L Ao nERE
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 - Property investment
ERRARRAR B i EEI100T NERE
Kwai Hei Investments No.1 Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 75 25 Property investment
B i XAV nERE
Lac Kar Investment Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 - Property investment
Limited & il 743,600,000 VST
NIMEFERAR
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 - Investment holding of property
JIIEYN i 101,100M&AT investment and hotel operation

NERERELERERCRARR

Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 - Property investment
JIEVN il 1000EAT VESIES
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 EEMB AT (F8)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests  Principal activities
FERERRE
BRTRAR RARBFEERN BRIRA
AAER B FisRHER BE/ ERRA RO®E  RA/ERREZEREMM AfBAzEA  FEXE
Directly Indirectly
B
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary Us$1 1 - 100 - Property investment
Hong Kong i 157 NERE
ABEBRER /%
NC4 Albemarle, LLC Us N/A US§10,057286 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
*A R 10,057,865 TER Gezths
NC4 Covington, LLC Us N/A US$3,574,305 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
*H FER 3574305570 HaR fipeiay
NC4 Kingsbridge, LLC N N/A US§3,116,288 NA - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
£8 ol 3,116,288% T HaR fipeiay
NC4 Magcreek, LLC Us N/A US$2,825,617 NA - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
6 TER 282561757 i fipeiay
NC4 Magnolia, LLC Us N/A 1S83,937168 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
8 0 i 393716827 TR wezEhs
NC4 Oliver, LLC Us N/A 1US$2,705,943 N/A - 98.6 14 Operation of senior housing
e AER 2,705 94350 TR ey
NC4 Wellington, LLC Us N/A US$2,852,617 N/A - 986 14 Operation of senior housing
%8 TR 2,852 617% 7 TR gawEhs
OR4 Beaverton, LLC N N/A 1S§500,000 N/A - 100 - Operation of senior housing
e 0 500,000%7 TER Gezths
Proud Rich Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS20 2 - 100 - Property investment
FRERAA (Hitb) & L A8 HES I
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100 -
i k0
TRELMEERERDNA otec)  Mainland China N/A 543,650,000 N/A - 100 - Property management and
(W)  REML TaE 3,650,000 TR provision of property
management consultation
NEERRRENFEREN
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China N/A US$6,500,000 N/A - 100 - Trading of lifts, escalators,electrical
(note ¢l PERY TER 6,500,000% 7 TR and mechanical equipment
HEATASERAT (Mite) el EREREEREES
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 X EMB LT (48)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests  Principal activities
FEREERE
e BRTREE RAREREES EELeS
M5B R FrERA R B /iR RH%A Bx/ ERBAZEREDL HMREZES  EEE
Directly Indirectly
3 %
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate Mainland China N/A 1S$18,000,000 N/A - 80 20 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (notea) ~ FEIRI e 18,000000£7 el investment
DEAZRMERRERAA (Hita) NEERRKE
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 875 125 Logistics services
Limited 3 il £%30,000,0007 it
ARIZREERAR
Talent Luck Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
HERZERAR (M) 3 i 270,000,000 investment
Deferred HKS51 51 - 100 - MEERRRE
jida EESIT
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Property investment
HAERERAR i i i HES
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co., Ltd. Mainland China N/A RMB55,000,000 N/A - 70 30 Hotel operation
note ¢) hEM i li 55,000, 0007 i8R WERERE
ERETRBERRAR (M)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 - Property investment
nex T 10MEAT nERE
RBLTEHEXERRAA Mainland China N/A RMB305,000,000 N/A - 100 - Property development
HERY TR AR305,000,0007T TER NFLE
mIEBEEAERAT Mainland China NJA RMB15,000,000 N/A - 4 - Trading of motor vehicles and
HERY TER AR15,000,0007 TER provision of maintenance services
REE A RRRRERE
ABRERAERERFERAT  Mainland China N/A RMB30,000,000 N/A - 40 - Trading of motor vehicles and
HERY TER AR30,000,0007T TR provision of maintenance services
RERHRRRRERE
AEBIEEAEHERFERAT  Manland China N/A RMB22,000,000 N/A - 40 - Trading of motor vehicles and
RER TER AR22,000,00010 el provision of maintenance services
REEZRRRRERE
AAEESE AEHERKARAT  Mainland China N/A RMB10,000,000 N/A - 40 - Trading of motor vehicles and
HER iR ARE10,000,00070 TR provision of maintenance services
HREE 7 RRARERE
Notes: B3
(a) Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures. (a) PARINE B RFENP BRI
(b) All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to participate in (b) FTEEEMR M EEIEERE  MER LIERERE
any distribution upon winding up. RABEHESERDIR -
(c) Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises. (c) PAONEER R B AL ©
(d) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares of (d) BERBIERFTI0%  MEZARZENRE
this company carry one vote. ERTEH—RERE -
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48 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 48 TEH=E DT
Effective percentage of
Place or country issued share capital/
of incorporation registered capital
or registration/ Class of held by the Company Measurement
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities method
rRAHERE
RIZZMH,/ ERTRE
i INEET EXHEHER FrisRBER dfREzEREIL  TEXH HE-V:
%
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 25.28  Investment holding Equity
Hong Kong T REER b
RBABERES /A
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and Equity
Ht (B8) BRAA BA Epi maintenance of lifts and i

escalators and security devices

B RERREIEE  ERE

RRZRE
REEH (PE) EAR Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
RERL TER repair and maintenance of lifts i
and escalators
B HE TR BEBRRE
FHEE B
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Mainland China N/A 20  Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
Co.,Ltd. FEI A TEH repair and maintenance of lifts %
REBR (F5) BRAH and escalators
BUE - HE  TE - BEBRRE
FEH R B
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Hong Kong Ordinary 25  Manufacturing and provision of Equity
Limited &% L& concrete o
BAEERLTAERAR BETAERERE
Note:  The Group's entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these associates is in MisE : AEBIREEBER 2O E G5
proportion to its ownership interest. BNE) 20w AR EE o
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49 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES

Place or country
of incorporation
or registration/ Class of

Name of joint venture operation shares held

RUAER,/

RELREH EXHUIER iR AR

Effective percentage
of issued share
capital/registered
share capital

held by the Company
indirectly
FAAEERE
BRARA/
SRz EREDL
%

9 FELSE

Principal activities

TERK

>
M

Measurement
method

HERE

Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50  Civil engineering Equity
BHRBEFRAA & g TARTE i
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50  Property development Equity
EEBRAA 7 3 NEER i
It RERrE R AR Mainland China N/A 44 Property development Equity
BRAR FEIRH NER MERR T
RBEGERLM T EHERS Mainland China N/A 2133 Trading of motor vehicles and Equity
BRAH FEIRH TEA provision of maintenance services £

NERARERARERY

Note:  The Group's entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these joint ventures
is in proportion to its ownership interest.

M AEBEREBAEGZLOIFHEEMEE
EREZEHER
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